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in million EUR
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EBIT

Net income

Earnings per share in EUR

Dividend per share in EUR
Equity ratioin %
Number of employees

Number of shares

*Limited comparability due to change inaccountingpolicy, see section B Notes to the consolidated finandal statements

2022

162.15
11.94
6.31
6.61
0.75

Proposal:
0.50

353
861

2021

146.07
11.27
6.23
4.35
0.51

0.75
47.0

685

2020

142.13
9.59
3.63
2.29
0.28

0.47
51.2

711

8,367,758

2019

171.71*
15.24
9.20
6.96
0.82

0.00
45.8

737

2018

169.99*

11,95

9.03
6.13
0.73

0.60
49.4

757
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Preface of the Management Board

Ladies and gentleman*,

When we addressed you in the preface of last year’s annual report, we spoke about a time of
unforeseeable and constant challenges. Unfortunately, a year on, not much has changed in that
regard. In light of fragile supply chains, a tense economic situation and the conflict in Ukraine, it
isfair to say that political, economicand societal upheaval continuestoinformall of our actions.

In 2022, we as the CENIT Group responded with a dynamism that is exceptional in view of the
ongoing challenges generally. Not only have we set the course for further forward-looking
development of the CENIT Group, we have already implemented numerous projects and
underpinned them with clear results and milestones. These include planned acquisitions, internal
programs, portfolio-based refinements and significant customer projects.

First and foremost, we would like to thank the employees of our global CENIT organization. It is
theirdedicationthat has made all of these projects possible. They were united in their support of
us and often wentthe extramile to obtainthe bestresults possible. They nevertired, even when
the pace was tough.

CENIT’s sales year 2022 in review

Let’s first take a look at our economicratios. The companiesinthe CENIT Group recorded sales of
EUR 162.2 million globally.Compared withEUR 146.1 millioninthe prioryear, this translatesinto
a satisfying increase of 11%. Over the same period, group EBIT rose marginally from EUR 6.2
million in 2021 to EUR 6.3 million. It’s worth remembering in this context that the CENIT team
succeeded in making necessary changes to day-to-day operations while at the same time
compensating for the loss of significant subsidies.

The sale of third-party software (including software maintenance) still accounts for the largest
proportion of total sales (roughly 54.3%). However, the share of sales attributable to proprietary
CENIT software solutions as well as to consulting and services also rose in 2022. Firstly, this is in
line with our planned objective of driving the development and sale of CENIT’s own solutions.
Secondly, we are endeavoring to further establish CENIT as a reliable and competent advisor to
our customers. Watching the corresponding sales components move in the desired direction is
proof that we have taken the right course of action.

The performance of the CENIT share in 2022 isindicative of relative stability. The share price rose
inthe first half of the year, only to fallslightlyin the last four months of the year. Despite the year-
end taper, on average the performance of the CENIT share was positive, outperforming
comparable companies in our peer group.

*CENITis an Equal Opportunities Employer. For us, diversity and equal treatment of all people is a matter of principle.
In the sense of better readability, however, we refrain from using gender-differentiatingformulations throughout this
annualreport. Intheinterests of equality, the relevant terms applyto all genders and orientations. The abbreviated

form of language doesnotimplyanyvaluation and is merelyfor editorial reasons.



If we compare our current sales result with the growth target for 2025 — EUR 300 millionand an
EBIT margin of 8 to 10% — it is clear that we are halfway there. This is a strong position to be in.
Nevertheless, the nextthree years willbe the decisive phasefor CENITto achieve this target. Our
approach involves facilitating sustainably planned organic and proactive inorganic growth,
expandingtech collaborations with our partners, actively refining our software solutions and our
consulting approach as well as adopting a conscious habit of cost discipline.

Strong for our team

As the Management Board of CENIT, we are well aware that we will only meet our target and
move at the necessary pace if we offer our international colleagues the best conditions and
support for their professional and personal development at CENIT.

One focus area for our HR-related activities in 2022 was “New Work”. This primarily involved
expanding ouremployee benefits. Together with aspecialist partner, CENIT now offers asupport
structure with advice and/or concrete measures for employees facing challenges such as caring
for family members or other personal matters. CENIT has responded to people’s desire for more
autonomy around structuring their working life by offering the possibility of planned sabbaticals
or planned early retirement.

As part of refining our remuneration and bonus system, we are working on a model that allows
our employees to participate more in the Group’s profits. This move will motivate sales staff in
particular to engage in cross-selling and think in an interdisciplinary way, as this could increase
not only the Group’s profits but also the staff member’s own share in profit.

Togetherwith the generous existingemployer contributions and many benefits at CENIT, we want
to use our new programs and initiatives to become an even more attractive and competitive
employer for our present and future colleagues.

Ultimately, high-performing experts need a high-performing employer. A successful business
depends on both of these factors.

A sustainable future

Our responsibility to our employees is also an integral part of our sustainable approach to
governance. In order for a company to act sustainably and be economically and strategically
successful, it must focus on people, resources and the environment. This is true both in the
organization itself and in relation to partners and customers. Our corporate vision reflects this
idea very clearly: “We empower sustainable digitalization.”

As part of this vision, we have developed a sustainability report at CENIT (ESG report) that goes
far beyond current minimum standards. During this process, we identified potential for
improvement that we will add as sustainability targets within the framework of the CENIT 2025
program and underpin with the requisite measures.



For us, acting sustainably also means growth. As already mentioned, inorganic growth through
mergers and acquisitions is an important factor here. We do not aspire to growth at any cost.
When we look for companies thatbest complementthe strengths of the CENIT Group, there are
three main components that we home in on: their strategic alignment and profitability, a
meaningful and innovative addition to our product portfolio, and the human factor. If all three
components come together, we can be sure that we will create added value for CENIT through
the merger — professionally, culturally and strategically.

We completed three acquisitions in 2022:

e In April 2022, CENIT acquired the majority (74.9%) of ISR Information Products AG, a one-
stop shop foranalytics and process digitalization with its head office inBraunschweig. This
shareholding serves to bundle the competencies of both companies in the field of
document logistics and information management and to achieve a strong joint market
position. It also allowed us to secure the very promising Al platform “Build Simple”.

e The acquisition of the remaining shares of the Mannheim-based SAP expert Coristo back
in May 2022 means that we have now acquired that company in full. This marks a major
step for the CENIT Group towards an end-to-end SAP solutions offering.

e Inthethird quarterof 2022, we took overthe Dassault Systemes business from Romanian
software house Magic Engineering SRLin order to enhance our 3DS Solutions portfolio.

We will continueto add further companies to the CENIT Group in 2023 and progress our ambitious
growth plans in a targeted way. The first was our acquisition of mip GmbH in January, which
constitutes a furtherstepin our growth strategy. We expectfurtheracquisitions to take placein
the first half of 2023.

Everything we do to develop CENIT further — professionally, organizationally and economically —
is informed by our vision of being a trusted advisor to our customers that champions their
sustainable digitalization. This entails a shared mindset, a corresponding culture of leadership and
a strong portfolio of solutionsthatideally can serve all of our customers’ digitalizationneeds from
one source. This is CENIT’s unique selling proposition.

We are confident that ourabsolute dedication, definedstrategies and clear measures will help us
to achieve this goal.

2022: a year of strategic progress for the CENIT Group

We have started 2023 with great momentum. We have a solid economic basis, an international
management team with some new members and strong personnel resources through our
excellent workforce. We will continue to refine our attractive solutions and consulting portfolio to
ensure the innovativeness and competitiveness of our customers.



Itis possible that 2023 will also bring new and unexpected challenges. As the Management Board
of CENIT, we will do all in our powerto respondto any challengesinthe bestinterests of CENIT,
our employees and customers and our shared success. Our decisions are consistently geared to
increasing value, growth and a responsible adherence to our values.

We would like to take this opportunity to thank our customers and partners for the respectful,
productive and enriching working relationships over the past year.

We also want to thank our shareholders—we are very grateful to you for the trust you place in
CENIT. We look forward to our continued shared success!

With best wishes,

e S

Peter Schneck Axelle Maze
Spokesman, Management Board Member, Management Board

—
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Report of the Supervisory Board

Dear Shareholders,

After two years overshadowed by the coronavirus pandemic, 2022 was yet another difficult and
challenging year. It was shaped in the main by the war in Ukraine, but also by numerous other
uncertainties, such as high inflation, continued interruption to supply chains and a dramatic
increase in commodity and energy costs. In view of the many challenges, the German economy
proved extremely resilient over the past year, recording a marginal increase in gross domestic
product of 1.9% despite pessimisticforecasts. Onthe whole, the CENIT Group heldits owninan
adverse environmentand closed the fiscal year 2022 with a positive result of EUR 162.2 million in
salesand EBIT of EUR 6.3 million. Althoughforecasts by economicexperts forthe comingyear are
rather downbeat, the CENIT Group considers itself to be in a strong position. Firstly, there are
indications that growth trendsinthe relevant markets and industries willremainstablein the long
term. Secondly, the Group has a strong positioning in countless European countries which is
expectedtoendureinthe future. Last but notleast, Germany has a lot of catchingup to do inthe
area of digitalization. All of these factors combined are a cause foroptimism for us going forward.

In the past fiscal year, the Supervisory Board duly and conscientiously performed all duties to
which it is obliged by law and the articles of incorporation and bylaws. We regularly advised the
Management Board on its governance of the Company, carefully and continually monitored its
conduct of business and in doing so satisfied ourselves as to the lawfulness, expediency and
correctness of its activities. The Supervisory Board was involved on a timely basis in all decisions
of fundamental importanceto the Company. In the Supervisory Board meetings, the Management
Board informed us orally and in writing in a timely and comprehensive manner on all relevant
aspects of business strategy and enterprise planning, including financial, investment and
personnel planning, the course of business and the financial situation and profitability of the
Group. The reports from the Management Board also examined the risk situation as well as risk
management and compliance matters. We were always informed in good time of variances
between the business planning and the actual course of business.

Before the meetings, all members of the Supervisory Board were each provided with
comprehensive written reports by the Management Board, excerpts from company documents
and in particular documents from the accounting department. Based on these as well as other
information requested by the Supervisory Board at and outside of the meetings, the Supervisory
Board was able to carry out its supervisory task in a due and timely manner.

Outside of the meetings, the ManagementBoard keptthe SupervisoryBoard constantly informed
of the key performance indicators by providing monthly reports, and duly presented for our
consideration such matters as required the approval of the Supervisory Board. The reports by the
Management Board on the business situation and presentations on special matters of interest
were supported by written presentations and documents; these were duly provided to each
member of the Supervisory Board before each meeting. The collaboration between the
Managementand Supervisory Boardsis characterized by respectful and trust-based cooperation
and an open and constructive dialog. As Chair of the Supervisory Board, | also liaise closely and
regularly with the Management Board outside of the meetingsinrelation to the current business
situation and material business transactions.



Inthe fiscal year 2022, the Supervisory Board held eight regular meetingsand three extraordinary
meetings for detailed discussions on the economic situation, the strategic development and the
long-term positioning of the CENIT Group. All of the meetings were held online as video
conferences except for the meeting on 18 November 2022, which took place in person. All
members of the Supervisory Board took part in all of the meetings.

In

Meetings person/ Rainer-Christian Koppitz  Isabell M. Welpe Ricardo Malta
28 January 2022 online X X X
14 March 2022 online X X X
25 March 2022 online X X X
31 March 2022 (extraordinary) online X X X
6 April 2022 (extraordinary) online X X X
20 May 2022 online X X X
22 July 2022 online X X X
23 September 2022 online X X X
18 November 2022 in X X X
person
16 December 2022 online X X X
23 December 2022 (extraordinary) online X X X

In its own estimation, the Supervisory Board has an appropriate number of members who
maintain no businessor personal relationshipswiththe Company or members of the Management
Board that could give rise to a conflict of interest. Asin prioryears, the Supervisory Board did not
consider it necessary to form committees in view of the small number of members on the
Supervisory Board. During the reporting period, no conflicts of interest arose on the part of
members of the Supervisory Board.

Matters addressed by meetings of the Supervisory Board

Atall Supervisory Board meetingsin the 2022 reporting year, the Management Board reported on
the development of sales and earnings in the Group. Additionally, it explained the course of
businessintheindividual businesssegmentsand presented the assets, liabilities, financial position
and performance. Inthis context, the Supervisory Board placed particularemphasis on potential
consequences for risk and liquidity management, especially in light of the ongoing effects of the
coronavirus pandemic and the outbreak of the Russia/Ukraine conflict in February 2022. Other
topics at the meetings included the development of business in the respective quarters, the
change on the Management Board, CENIT’s management of the coronavirus pandemic, M&A
activities as well as Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and implementation of the “New
Work@CENIT” initiative.

At the first meeting of the year on 28 January 2022, the Supervisory Board mainly addressed the
budget planningand the preliminary results of the previous fiscal year. Othertopicsincluded the



amendments to the German Corporate Governance Code and agreement on the Declaration of
Conformity for the fiscal year 2022.

Financial reports / audits

During its balance sheet meeting on 25 March 2022 and in the presence of the auditor/group
auditor, the SupervisoryBoard considered the Company’sannual financial statements. The annual
financial statementsof CENIT Aktiengesellschaft and the consolidated financial statementsfor the
fiscal year 2021, both prepared by the Management Board, were audited by KPMG AG
Wirtschaftsprifungsgesellschaft, Stuttgart, which was appointed auditor at the ordinary General
Meeting of Shareholders on 20 May 2021, includingthe accounting and the managementreport
and group management report. In particular, and in detailed discussions with the Management
Board and the auditor, the Supervisory Board reviewed the annual financial statements and
consolidated financial statements presented as well as the management report and the group
managementreport, also taking underlyingaccounting policy into consideration. On the basis of
the audit reports and in individual discussions, the Supervisory Board further considered the
results of the audit of the annual financial statements. The Supervisory Board was satisfied that
the audit and the audit reports fulfilled the requirements of Secs. 317, 321 HGB. The finandcial
statements for 2021, prepared by the Management Board and on which an unqualified audit
opinion was issued by the auditor, were conclusively reviewed on 25 March 2022. Postponed
dates meantthat the Supervisory Board approved the 2021 annual financial statements of CENIT
Aktiengesellschaft and noted the 2021 consolidated financial statements with approval at an
extraordinary meeting on 31 March 2022.

Further matters addressed by the meetings

During the course of the year, the Supervisory Board was continually kept informed of periodic
financial results and undertook detailed discussions with the Management Board on the 2022
semi-annual financial statements as well as interim reports for the individual quarters. A
consistent focus of these discussions was on the review of developments in earnings and sales
during 2022.

A key component was the preparation forthe General Meeting of Shareholders on 20 May 2022,
which was once again held as a digital conference without the physical presence of the
shareholders due to planning uncertainty as a result of the coronavirus pandemic.

Change on the Management Board

On 17 October 2022, Axelle Mazé took on the role of ChiefFinancial Officer (CFO), following in the
footsteps of Dr. Markus Wesel.

Axelle Mazé’s previous role was that of CFO at the French subsidiary KEONYS. In her new role as
CFO of CENIT, Axelle Mazé is responsiblefor Finance/Controlling, ITand Personnel. Before joining
CENIT, Axelle Mazé had been CFO of KEONYS S.A.S., aFrench software implementation specialist
with its headquarters in Suresnes (near Paris), since 2015. After KEONYS was acquired by CENIT
AGin 2017, Axelle Mazé was responsiblefortopics such as change management and HR alongside
her finance remit. She played a key role in CENIT AG’s merger and acquisition activities. Axelle
Mazé has been a member of the international Leadership Team of the CENIT Group since July
2020.



As an internal successor, Axelle Mazé is already deeply familiar with CENIT’s solutions and has
links with the operating businessin the core marketsof France and GSA. Furthermore, Axelle Mazé
has already made a significant contribution to acquisitions in the field of M&A at CENIT AG. This
means thatthe ManagementBoardis already awell-established team that can push forward with
CENIT’s growth trajectory.

The previous CFO, Dr. Markus Wesel, will be taking up a new professional challenge and has
agreed to facilitate a changeover before the end of his contract. It was mutually agreed, very
amicably, that his term would come to an end on 15 October 2022.

We wish tothank Dr. Markus Wesel for his work and dedication to CENIT over the past yearsand
wish him all the very best professionally and personally.

Risk management

Risk management at the CENIT Group was an important topic at several meetings. The
Management Board reported on the chief risks for the Group and the risk monitoring system put
inplace to address these risks. In a series of discussions with the Management Board and several
meetings with the auditor, the Supervisory Board satisfied itself of the effectiveness of the risk
monitoring systems.

Corporate Governance

On several occasions in the course of the fiscal year, we reviewed particulars of corporate
governance matters with the CENIT Group, including the new version of the German Corporate
Governance Code adopted by the Government Commission. The Supervisory Board is convinced
that good corporate governance constitutes a significant foundation for the success, reputation
and self-image of the Group. Forthis reason, the Supervisory Board has continually monitored and
considered the ongoing development of corporate governance standards and their
implementation within CENIT. Thisalso included regular verification of the efficiency of our own
activities. In numerous discussions—also with the auditor — particular attention was paid to the
continual lawfulness of business management and the efficiency of the organization.

An awareness of continually responsible and lawful conduct and of its existential significance for
the CENIT Group are well entrenched within the Group and its corporate bodies. In accordance
with Article 3.10 of the German Corporate Governance Code, the Management and Supervisory
Boards report on corporate governance at CENIT in their Corporate Governance Report. On 17
February 2022, the Supervisory Board issued its Declaration of Conformity with the German
Corporate Governance Code asamended on 7 February 2017 in accordance with Sec. 161 AktG. It
has made this declaration available to the Company’s shareholders on the Company’s website.

Balance sheet meeting 2023 on the annual and consolidated financial statements for
2022

The accounting, the annual financial statements with the managementreportforthe 2022 fiscal
year, the consolidated financial statements with explanations and the group management report
for the 2022 fiscal year were audited by Grant Thornton AG Wirtschaftspriifungsgesellschaft,
Frankfurt. Grant Thornton was appointed as auditor of the annual financial statements and
consolidated financial statements at the General Meeting of Shareholders on 20 May 2022. In



accordance withits duties, the Supervisory Board reviewed the qualifications, independence and
efficiency of the auditor.

The auditor issued unqualified audit opinions on the 2022 annual financial statements and
consolidated financial statements of CENIT prepared by the Management Board, including the
management report and group management report. The annual financial statements of CENIT
Aktiengesellschaft were prepared in accordance with the principles of German commercial law
(HGB). The consolidated financial statements comply with the International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS). All members of the Supervisory Board had full and timely access to the finandal
statements documents and audit reports. The Supervisory Board has discussed the audit report
intensively with both the Management Board and the auditorin order to satisfy itself as to its
propriety. The Supervisory Board is confident that the audit reports for 2022 were fully compliant
with statutory requirements.

During the balance sheet meeting on 31 March 2023, the auditor reported on the main findings
of the audits of the separate financial statements of CENIT Aktiengesellschaft and was available
to provide additional information and respond to queries. On that occasion, all members of the
Supervisory Board were able to satisfy themselves that the audit has been conducted in
compliance with statutory requirements and in an adequate manner.

As a conclusive result of its own reviews in accordance with Sec. 171 AktG, the Supervisory Board
noted that it had no objections.

Atits meetingon 31 March 2023, the Supervisory Board approved the annualfinancial statements
prepared by the Management Board for CENIT Aktiengesellschaft for the 2022 fiscal year, thus
ratifying the financial statements pursuant to Sec. 172 AktG. The Supervisory Board also
acknowledged and approved the consolidated financial statements for the 2022 fiscal year on
31 March 2023.

Following its examination, the Supervisory Board agrees with the proposal of the Management
Board for the appropriation of the net profit.

In view of the challenging—yet successful — past fiscal year, the Supervisory Board would like to
thank the Management Board and all CENIT employees throughout the world for their personal
commitment, their achievements and their performance.

Rainer-Christian Koppitz
Chairman of the Supervisory Board

Stuttgart, March 2023
On behalf of the Supervisory Board
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SUSTAINABLE DIGITALIZATION

AN INTERVIEW WITH CEO PETER SCHNECK

Since assuming the position of CEO in January of 2022, Peter Schneck has pursued an active growth
strategy for the international IT and software provider. Growth — but not at any cost, that’s his motto.
What, then, is CENIT’s idea of sustainable digitalization? An interview with Peter Schneck.

Mr. Schneck, you have officially been CEO of CENIT since January, 2022. Ever since you took on the posi-
tion, you have been orienting your growth strategy more strongly on sustainability. What dimensions
are you focusing on?«

We plan to achieve an attitude change — first internally, and later with our external target groups — in which
we fully penetrate the issues of sustainability and sustainable digitalization, rather than just reducing them
to environmental aspects.

Sustainability is often associated with aspects like power and water consumption, waste reduction, etc. But
a business approach to sustainable digitalization must also include the ambition to add quality by improving
processes, achieve greater efficiency in production and abbreviate or entirely avoid prototyping cycles and,
of course, create new long-lasting products.

Our thinking revolves around optimal generation, utilization and integration of data and information from
the entire product lifecycle, end to end. This intelligently connected information helps us — and then our
clients — to gain a better understanding of their products and thereby maximize the added value they can
derive from them. That’s sustainability — a best possible use of resources and information.

But for me, the concept of sustainability also means creating sustainable jobs for your employees. I look at it
from the perspective of the “war for talent”: In the years to come, how do we develop our human resources in
line with market needs, ensure that they remain loyal to us and stay at the cutting edge in all our disciplines?
And how do we deploy them optimally?

In addition, sustainability extends to diversity considerations and social responsibility.

And that’s where we come full circle: We mean to change the mindset of our employees and customers so
that together we can develop sustainable products that give us a competitive edge and serve the value chain
in all respects. It’s the only way to ensure that sustainable digitalization becomes our own “solution pro-
duct”, and it’s why we have to focus on all these dimensions, now and in future.

We can see how CENIT’s strategy has been reoriented and refined under your auspices when we look at the
newly formulated vision, mission and corporate purpose. The latter states that CENIT shapes sustainable
digitalization. Could you explain that in more detail?

In itself, the topic of “sustainable digitalization” is not a new one for CENIT. We have already addressed
sustainability issues in a great many projects over the years — even if we haven’t called it by that name until
now. Let’s take our 3DS Solutions unit: Based on the capabilities of the 3DEXPERIENCE platform and our own
solutions, we optimize the entire engineering and manufacturing process of a product, shortening cycles
and improving resource use.



Now, we are focusing even more heavily on the data and the analyses that we can make available to our
customers, not just via the simulations and manufacturing steps but far beyond.

This data still contains dormant potential with respect to product development, product use and the entire
circular economy related to the product. And, in this context, also the use of human and material resources.
To give you a classic example: Since 2021, we have been integrating the platform of Dassault Systémes
(3DEXPERIENCE) and SAP, whether on-premises, hybrid or in the Cloud. That means we are addressing two
key dimensions for manufacturing enterprises: The product innovation process on one hand and the ope-
rational business on the other. Our goal is to optimize and digitally interconnect these processes along the
entire product development cycle, through to maintenance and feedback — to fuse them, if you like.

To offer our clients the best possible conditions for sustainable digitalization, we want all of our solutions
and products to reflect this digital sustainability and consistency. That means we will align the solutions of
our five business units to ensure that they mutually support each other in the best possible way and permit
truly continuous digital flow. In this way, we want to offer our clients solutions that help them simulate, ana-
lyze, document and control — at each and every stage of the value cycle.

It’s our direct and indirect contribution to promoting sustainability considerations among our clients: If a
business has optimal information on its processes, it becomes more flexible and can react more proactively
if something goes wrong. It can also think in a more future-oriented way — and it gains a better footing for
addressing aspects like efficiency and resource use.

Does a digitalization approach that focuses on sustainability actually offer businesses competitive
benefits? If so, how do you arrive at that conclusion?

Anyone who wants to get serious about sustainable digitalization can achieve enormous benefits, becau-
se the term “sustainable digitalization” is actually just a synonym for “strategic planning”. And in that
arena, the technology goal is to interconnect all the information and data generated from product incep-
tion to recycling, thereby optimizing added value — and to plan that process throughout an organization.
Doing that successfully gives you best-possible resource use and high, measurable profitability.

This means that those of us who are involved in this dimension of sustainability are involved in questions
of strategic orientation for the coming years. How can | merge the information available to me today in a
meaningful way, one that lets me optimize my resource allocation? How do | cut costs? How do | hone my
competitive edge? Or, more comprehensively: How do | produce the best possible product at minimum
cost and maximum quality while simultaneously eliminating/minimizing risks, securing jobs and brin-
ging my business forward?

In sum, the classic elements of a business strategy. Thus, at the end of the day sustainability is a strate-

; ""'?'- gy for best-possible forward motion — also with a view to aspects like sales and EBIT.
;ﬁ% Let’s look a bit further ahead. Where do you see CENIT in five years?
_‘-: Let’s first look three years ahead — to the goal of our “CENIT 2025” strategy program, in which we defined
_ a sales target of € 300 million and EBIT of 8 to 10 %. Qur USP — having five business units working in
- ' mutually supportive collaboration — will be instrumental in achieving these targets and be valued by
— our customers as a so-called trusted partner. CENIT will strongly influence the digitalization of industry
and thus be an essential partner for our customers. We will extend our digitalization know-how to other
industry segments as well as the public sector.
Looking at a time span of five years, i.e. until 2027, | naturally hope that by then we will be approaching
the € 500 million mark and EBIT significantly above 10%. That, of course, would be the natural conse-
quence of sustainable digitalization.
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HIGHLIGHTS FROM QUR
BUSINESS UNITS




SALOMON Footwear, specialized in cutting-edge equipment dedicated to outdoor sports, had a double challenge: imple-
ment the company’s global company social responsibility guidelines (CSR) in terms of eco-design and improve product per-
formance based on digital simulation from Dassault Systémes (Abaqus).

This technology enables to simulate the multiple behaviors of the shoe in 3D from the design phase. The environmental bene-
fits are clearly identified as the performance of the shoe is thus optimized and today Salomon goes from 100 to 10 physical
prototypes. The objective is to reduce the carbon footprint by 30% in 2030.

»Digital simulation is essential to conciliate
the design of a high-performance running
shoe with carbon footprint reduction*

Guillaume Meyzeng, Senior Vice President SALOMON Running, Outdoor & Sportstyle




MELTON MACHINE & CONTROL COMPANY is an established leaderin automated arc
welding systems. With 50-plus years of experience designing and building premi-
um-quality, value-focused equipment and fixtures, the system integratoris trusted
by its partners around the world to develop precise, efficient solutions for factory
automation.

FASTSUITE brand-agnostic simulation and offline programming (OLP) software all-
owed Melton, as system integrator to substitute different robot brands when supply
chain shortages caused long lead times. The software’s powerful simulation tools
help prove out complex automation concepts upfront and eliminate rework later.

Cost savings yield a strong return on investment.

FASTSUITE provides accurate 3D process simulation, including collision detection,
axis limits and singularity monitoring as well as full control of multi-robot cells and
dynamic workpiece positioners.

,,Our time to runoff has shrunk considerably: By using FASTSUITE
in a specific project, we reduced the project execution lead time

by 6 weeks.*

Glenn Archer, VP of Sales & Marketing at Melton Machine

—

DIGITAL
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ENDRESS+HAUSER is a global leader in measurementinstrumentation, services and solutions forindustrial process engineering.

The company provides process solutions for flow, level, pressure, analytics, temperature, recording and digital communications.

The main challenges were an existing complex change process, no standardized process templates and multiple SAP systems
across the entire organization. The solution: cenitCONNECT Advanced Process Management as enterprise license with 3,600
users for the control of the global change process.

Main benefits include a highly flexible workflow for mapping and controlling the global change process, managing multiple SAP
systems and technology platforms.

,,cenitCONNECT APM gives us end-to-end
control of our global processes across a

variety of SAP systems and technology platforms,
plus the means to adapt them dynamically.*

Dr. Ulrich Binninger, Solution Architect PLM at Endress+Hauser



ENTERPRISE
INFORMATION
MANAGEMENT

MTU AERO ENGINES is a German leading engine manufacturer whose innovative

technology contributes to make aviation safer, more efficient and more sustainable.

Enterprise Information Management (EIM) solutions are key for a company whose
activity is closely linked to compliance and regulation requirements as it is the
case in the aerospace sector. MTU sets very high standards for its products and
processes and they chose CENIT ECLISO to securely manage all the documents,
the associated files and processes in line with their efficiency and excellence
objectives.
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Project BEST - Biologization of Technology

The project ,Trees as efficient support structures in additive manufacturing
(BEST)“ is carried out by CENIT AG in cooperation with the Institute for Laser and
Plant Systems Technology at the Technical University of Hamburg and is funded
by the German Federal Ministry of Education and Research.

Project tasks

* CENIT AG develops and implements a basic algorithm and a tool to create
support structures in 3D printing

* Hamburg University of Technology is developing the simulation and design
rules for the tool.

The project aims to develop a computer-aided tool that generates bioinspired sup-
port structures for a given component. For this purpose, simulation and generative
design are linked by means of algorithmic botany and tree structures are generated
by algorithmic biological growth. Due to the characteristic high residual stresses
of the titanium alloy Ti-6Al-4V during additive processing, the project work focuses

on this material. The project will be concluded with a physical demonstration.

CENIT DIGITAL
| BUSINESS SERVICES

,,our studies have shown
that the optimal structu-
res have a tree-like geo-
metry. The algorithm we
have developed lets the
tree-shaped structure
grow inversely, from the
crown down fo the trunk.“

Jochen Michael,
Senior Consultant Digital Business
Services, CENIT AG






Combined (group) management report for the fiscal year 2022

The management report of CENIT Aktiengesellschaft (hereinafter also “CENIT”) and the group
management report of the CENIT Group for the fiscal year 2022 were combined below. The
declaration on corporate governance is also part of the combined (group) management report.
The consolidated financial statements prepared by CENIT as of 31 December 2022 comply with
the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) applicable as of the reporting date as well
as the supplementary provisions of the German commercial code (HGB) in conjunction with the
German Accounting Standards (GAS).

1. Fundamental information about the Group

1.1. Organization and group structure

CENITAG is headquartered inGermany (Stuttgart) and represented inthe industrial centers there,
including Berlin, Hamburg, Hanover, Munich and Frankfurt. CENIT has expanded its presence in
Europe through acquiringthe KEONYS Group in 2017. Through KEONYS, CENIT has since then also
been represented in the Netherlands and Belgium as well as in France with its own local
companies. CENIT has further locations in the US, Switzerland, Romania, Japan and China.

On 31 May 2022, CENIT AG acquired the majority interest in ISR Information Products AG
(hereinafteralso“ISR”) by purchasing 74.9% of the shares. ISRis aone-stopshop for data analytics
and process digitalization with its head office in Braunschweigand officesin Miinster, Hamburg,
Cologne, Frankfurt and Munich.

This shareholding servesto bundle the competencies of both companiesin the field of document
logistics and information managementand to achieve a strongjoint market position. ISR continues
to operate under its own name — with the addition “A CENIT company”. For CENIT, the
shareholding in ISR is a key milestone on the way to becoming the top-ranking player for
document logistics and information management.

In May 2022, CENIT was also able to top up its stake in Coristo GmbH (hereinafteralso “Coristo”)
to 100%.

The domestic and foreign companies included in the consolidated financial statements are
consolidated in accordance with the uniform accounting and valuation methods in the CENIT
Group. The companies use the same accounting and valuation methods as the parent. Like the
parent, the subsidiaries are specialized in the sale and integration of software and IT services in
the segments Product Lifecycle Management (“PLM”) and Enterprise Information Management
(“EIM”). In addition, CENIT holds one third of the joint venture CenProCS AlRliance GmbH. The
jointventure provides services and consulting forashared major customer in the PLM segment.



The company-law organizational chart for the CENIT Group is as follows as of the reporting date:

KEONYS SAS
Sureshes / France
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100%
_—

100%

KEONYS NL BV
Houten / Netherlands

CENIT Aktiengesellschaft
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Germany
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Mannheim / Germany
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AG EENIT_ Nolrth CENIT SRL CENIT France SARL CENIT Japan K.K. Technology Co.,
Effretikon / merica inc. lasi / Romania Toulouse / France Tokyo / Japan Ltd.

Suzhou/ China

The basis of consolidation was larger than in the prior year on account of the acquisition of ISR
Information Products AG as of 31 May 2022.

CENIT AG’s Management Board comprised the following members as of 31 December 2022:

= Peter Schneck, CEO and Chair of the Management Board
= Axelle Mazé, CFO since 17 October 2022
. Dr. Markus Wesel, CFO until 15 October 2022

CENIT AG’s Supervisory Board comprised the following members as of 31 December 2022:

] Rainer Koppitz, Chair of the Supervisory Board
] Prof. Dr. Isabell Welpe, Deputy Chair of the Supervisory Board
= Ricardo Malta, Employee Representative onthe Supervisory Board

1.2 Business activities

CENIT has five business divisions, subsumed under the segments PLM and EIM. The PLM segment
comprises 3DS Solutions, PLM-SAP, Digital Business Services and Digital Factory Solutions. The
PLM divisionisfocused on using Dassault Systemes Software on PLM platforms and applications
inthe traditional manufacturingindustry and optimizes keyproduction processes such as product
development, production or change management, also using additional dedicated CENIT software
solutions. Unlike pure software resellers, CENIT is a value added integrator that offers its
customers considerableadded value. By contrast, the EIMdivisionis focused on processes relating
to 360 degree customer communication, processing, fileand document management primarily in
the insurance and financial services sectors. By acquiring the shareholding in ISR, CENIT has also
gained a foothold in retail as well as in the public sector.

CENIT is the specialist for the core processes of its customers, focusing on the manufacturing
industry and the financial servicesindustry. The consultancy, service and software offering of the
CENIT Group is based on standard products by its software partners as well as CENIT’s own
solutions based on those standard products. Leading software providers such as Dassault



Systemes, IBMand SAP are strategic partners to the Company. The employeesin the CENIT Group
provide the customers with tailored industry support in the planning, implementation and
optimization of their business and IT processes.

To allow the customersto concentrate on their core competences, the CENIT Group also manages
the applications (AMS) and the related IT infrastructures.

1.3 Markets

CENIT breaks down its sales markets into the regions of Germany, Rest of Europe (“RoE”) and Rest
of World (“RoW”). In the fiscal year, the largest sales market was Germany, followed by RoE (with
afocus on France) and RoW.

1.4 Objectives and strategies

WE EMPOWER SUSTAINABLE DIGITALIZATION

=
=
] CENIT is the champion for process digitalization We advise, optimize, integrate and manage
= in product lifecycle and document logistics digital processes for our customers
] Expand and deepen Position amang e S e —
E strategic partnerships with top providers 2 : 'm;';' S :I( Diversify our Y on Hedge sustainable growth
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“ KEY SUCCESS FACTORS MEASURES & METRICS

CENIT’s vision and mission revolve around digitalization becauseitis vital for CENIT. This vision is
reflected inthecompany name: “CENter forITand DiglITalization”. CENIT's purposeis to empower
our customers as well as ourselves to facilitate sustainable digitalization.

Our vision is to be a champion for process digitalization in the areas of document processes and
production processes. CENIT endeavors to be a trusted advisor to our customers. The mission
describes the day-to-day activities in the fields of consulting, integration services, optimization
using third-party or proprietary software solutions and the management of digital processes for
our customers.

CENIT’s strategy is geared to sustainable profitable growth. For this reason, CENIT's objectives
focus just as much on the employees and technology partnerships as on efforts to give the
customers a competitive edge with CENIT’s own solutions.

The CENIT 2025 Strategy is based on the following five strategic pillars, which correspond to the
respective business divisions:

(1) CENIT will be the leading integrator for business processes on the platforms of Dassault
Systemes and SAP. It will use its own proprietary software applications to expand these areas in
order to reduce its dependency on the editors.



(2) In the area of Digital Factory Solutions (DFS), CENIT will be a leading provider for the
communication of robotics solutions on CENIT’s own robotics platform.

(3) In the area of Enterprise Information Management (EIM), CENIT will build on its partnership
with IBM and become Europe’s ‘document hero’ with its own Al-based solution.

(4) CENIT will use Digital Business Solutions (DBS) to provide specific IT services — Application
Managed Services (AMS) —to increase customer retention.

(5) CENIT will be an attractive employer with multicultural and enthusiasticemployees.

Implementation of the aforementioned core points of the CENIT 2025 Strategy is to be achieved
with the help of organic growth at business division level on the one hand and significant
acquisitions on the other. The growth target for 2025 is to achieve sales of approximately
EUR 300 million with an EBIT margin of between 8% and 10%.

The planforinorganicgrowthis based on justtwo to three acquisitions annually so as to prevent
any watering down of CENIT’s corporate culture. This growth will be financed using cash and
external financinginstruments. Any capital increasesare earmarked for specificacquisitionsif the
acquisition amount exceeds EUR 50.0 million.

Organicgrowthissetto exceedaround 5% p.a. inall business divisions. As digitalization is running
accordingto planfor all of the companiesinourregional focus, market potential lies beyond that
target of 5%. CENIT is making good progress in terms of its 2025 strategy. CENIT's advancing
diversification as wellas key topics such as sustainability, cross-selling, strengthening partnerships
and developing an end-to-end approach for resolving digitalization challenges play a significant
role here.

1.5 Internal management system

The Management Board of CENITis responsible forthe overall planning and for realization of the
long-term objectives of the Group. The uppermost goal of corporate developmentisto raise the
business value on a long-term basis by means of profitable growth. The planning required to
manage both segments, PLMand EIM, as well as the resulting measuresare derived from the long-
term corporate planning, taking into account the developments in the competitive and market
environment.

The annual planning process is carried out using top-down and bottom-up methods, with planning
initially done independently by the Management Board (top down) and by the respective
managers responsible for the business units (bottom up). Revenue and EBIT are the key
performance indicators for the respective assessments. At joint planning rounds, these
assessments are discussed, tested for plausibility, consolidated and presented as final by the
Management Board to the Supervisory Board for approval. As part of this planning process, the
current five-year plan is also examined and updated.

During the year, the business management of the CENIT Group is carried out with the help of a
monthly variance analysis at the level of the separate financial statements and consolidated
financial statements as well as a quarterly forecast. As part of this process, the Management Board
analyzes the business development of the segments regularly in order to make necessary
adjustments on a timely basis. The key performance indicators are sales, gross profit, OPEX and
EBIT. However, some financial ratios that are critical to success are not quantifiable or can only be



qguantified indirectly. These include factors such as the reputation of the brand, customer
satisfaction and employee qualifications.

Because of the ongoing exceptional societal and economic situation, itis more necessary than
ever to think and work in scenarios as part of the internal management system. For CENIT's
internal management and planning process specifically, this means weighing up opportunities
and risks as sensitively as possible. In a best-case scenario, it means making investments and
assisting growth. In more difficult situations, it also involves exercising cost discipline and thus
actively managing margins. In this context, liquidity planning that is appropriate for the Group’s
size has already played a key role in managing liquidity risks for a long time.

1.6 Research and development

Anongoingobjectiveistoraise the innovative power of the CENIT Group. The Group had its own
research and development expenses (R&D) of EUR9.3 million in the fiscal year 2022 (prior year:
EUR 8.3 million) to this end.

The business units of the CENIT Group focus their R&D efforts on the next generation of their
products and solutions and preparefortheirsuccessful marketlaunch. Close cooperationwith the
product and client-facing areas allows the CENIT Group to offer customized solutions. In addition
to selling standard software from third-party providers, the CENIT Group develops its own
programs to supplement and extend these solutions in a way that adds value. Its software
expertiseand decades of industry experienceallow the CENIT Group to optimize the productivity
and data quality of its customers with its own CENIT solutions.

Because innovation also means progress, research and development are of centralimportance for
the further achievement of the corporate objectives. This allows the CENIT Group to enhance its
market position at the same time. For this reason, the Management Board plans to retain
development expenses at this level.

1.7 Employees
a) Overview

On 31 December 2022, the Group had 861 employees (prioryear: 685). CENIT AG, Germany, had
441 employeeson the same date (prioryear: 446). The mainreason forthe year-on-yearincrease
was the stake in ISR.



The employees of the CENIT Group are distributed by region as follows:

2022 2021

198
(29%)

190
(22%)

Il Germany [ Rest of Europe Rest of World

There were scarcely any year-on-year changes in terms of the global distribution of employees.
Roughly three quarters of all employees in the CENIT Group are employed in Germany.

The following table shows the headcounts for the individual group companies:

Entity 31 December 2022 | 31 December 2021

CENIT AG stuttgart, Germany 441 446
KEONYS SAS suresnes, France 99 111
CENIT SRL 1asi, Romania 47 45
CENIT North America Inc. Auburn Hills, USA 18 19
CENIT France SARL Toulouse, France 17 16
CENIT (Schweiz) AG Effretikon, Switzerland 13 13
Coristo GmbH Mannheim, Germany 7 10
CENIT Japan K.K. Tokyo, Japan 7 8
KEONYS Belgique SPRL waterloo, Belgium 7 7
KEONYS NL BV Houten, Netherlands 7 6
CENIT Software Technology Co., Ltd. Suzhou, China 4 4
ISR AG Braunschweig, Germany 194 -
Total 861 685

Personnel expenses in the reporting period came to EUR 67.3 million in the CENIT Group (prior
year: EUR 59.7 million) and to EUR 37.9 million at CENIT AG (prior year: EUR 39.4 million). Salary



increasesandthe inclusion of ISRledto a EUR 8.7 millionincrease in expenses at group level, on
top of which the Group no longer had any cost savings from short-time work payments (down
EUR 1.4 million on the prior year).

b.) Personnel policy (unaudited)

We continue to dedicate ourselves to the objective “We are an attractive employer”. Because our
staff make a decisive contribution to the success of the Group, we place our employees at the
heart of our HR strategy.

A key elementinourstrategyisthe continued education of our staff in orderto prepare them for
future challenges in the world of work. These continued education options range from training
opportunities forimproving one’sindividual professional expertise to broad-based further training
programs as part of our CENIT Campus training program. In addition to acquiring and improving
language skills, there are also training events for soft skills that help employees to be even more
confident in their day-to-day work.

Alongside further professional training, we are also very committed to our employees’ personal
development. We offer various personnel development programs, including on-the-job
development programs such as CENIT Skill and Organizational Development and the one-year
Talents@CENIT program, which is a measure aimed at promoting core potentials and young
executives. 12employeestook partinthe programin 2022. We also carried out several executive
training sessions in 2022 to assist our executives in their day-to-day challenges.

PZG@CENIT, our employee appraisals system, is a further important component of employee
motivation and further development. The focus here is on employees’ personal development.
Enablingemployees to recognize their contribution to the overall success of the Group is a further
key objective of our programs.

The pandemic also changed how we work at CENIT. Through a high level of flexibility and the
ability to adjustto new circumstances, we have succeeded in maintaining close links and personal
contact amongemployees and between employees and executives. We have started to shape the
transformation of the working world togetherwith our employees. Feedback from our staff that
we received as part of the internal New Work@CENIT survey has been key to this process. One
resulting measure was the partial redesign of office spaces at the Stuttgart location and the
introduction of desk sharing. We are also endeavoring to reduce leased spaces by means of
sustainable use of space.

We survey our employees on a regular basis, asking them for feedback on their current work
situation, CENIT’s strategyand processes. We carried out another globalemployee surveyin 2022
(“Your Feedback”).

We have continued to optimize and expand social security at CENIT, for example by introducing
working time accounts and pme Familienservice. The working time account (‘Zeitwertkonto’)
allows employees to bank time through salary conversion that they can use at a later stage for
activities outside of CENIT, for leisure, caring for family members or for early retirement.

A focal area of HR work in 2022 was once again to hire new talent in order to foster the success
and growth of the Company and of the entire Group.



This saw us take part in several recruiting eventsin 2022, some of which were back to in-person
events this year. Furthermore, we always try out new ways of recruiting qualified staff. For
example, we also used online platformsin orderto be able to carry out interviews online as well
as in person. This simplified things a lot for applicants, who were more inclined to submit an
application because they did need to travel long distances for the interview. It also reduced the
administrative workload and meant that applications could be processed much faster.

Once again, an importantfactor inrecruitingwas the increased use of marketingtools and social
mediachannelssuch as XING or LinkedIn, where we used some of ourown videos as wellas sodial
media campaigns. We also continue to expand our existing recruiting channels further, such as
the partnership with Germany’s Federal Labor Office, the Bundesagentur flir Arbeit, and
consistently promote our program incentivizing employees to refer new staff. We hired 12 new
colleagues in 2022 using this method. Another important pointis the constant optimization of
touchpoints, for example expanding our presence on variousnationaland international employer
portals.

Vocational training is still an important and strategic investment area for the Group. We see
CENIT’s dedication to helping young people start their career and accompanying them on this
journey as part of our responsibility to society. Particularly foryoung people, qualified trainingis
a vital component for their further professional careers. In 2022, we also took part in various
events to showcase our apprenticeships and study places to interested schoolgoers. In 2022,
CENIT Germany had trained 28 young people in various professions by the end of the year,
especially in technical courses of study such as computer science, information systems or
industrial engineering.

13 apprentices completed theirapprenticeships or studiesat CENIT successfully in 2022, of whom
ten were hired by CENIT upon completing their training. Our focus on quality also extends to
apprenticeships, which is why we offer regular internal and external training sessions for our
apprentices. CENITalso employed teninterns and students completing their Bachelor’s degreein
the past year.

The pandemic management system successfully introduced back in March 2020 and the related
technical and procedural adjustments meant that all employees had the option of working from
home again in 2022.

Even after the end of the pandemic, we will continue and expand our CENIT health management
system, which has beenin place for many years. In addition to dedicated healthy living days with
workshops, talks and options to have one-to-one discussions with advisors and coaches, we
provide hints and advice in regular blog entries in our internal communication platform to
encourage our employees to pursue a healthy lifestyle.

Remuneration system — profit sharing (unaudited)

Apart from performance-based career progression opportunities and the chance to take on
responsibility atan early stage, CENIT offers its employeesan attractive remuneration policy that
isregularly reviewed and adjustedin line with market conditions. Remuneration comprisesa fixed
salary, whichis governed by individual employment agreements, and remuneration components
in amounts based on the operating result and on other quantitative and qualitative targets.



2 Report on economic position

2.1. Macroeconomic environment

a) General

2022 was a year of numerous challenges. The coronavirus pandemic, the war in Ukraine, the
energy crisis and record inflation are just some of the issues that led to a palpable growth
downturn on the markets as well as turbulence on the financial markets.

Atthe beginning of the year, the effects of the pandemic, the problems withsupply chains as well
as large-scale lockdowns in Chinaweakened the pace of economicdevelopment. In addition, the
war in Ukraine and the ensuing sanctions against Russia resulted in a drastic energy scarcity,
prompting high inflation and causing private consumption to wane.

Concerns around growth and inflation as well as geopolitical uncertainty dampened the mood on
the international capital markets, with some considerable price fluctuations on the stock
markets. For example, after three years with positive results, the DAX closed 2022 down
significantly by 12.3% year onyear. The Dow Jones alsoclosed down 8.8% as of year end. However,
the CENIT share held its own during these turbulent times.

b) Europe

Apart from the disruption caused by the war in Ukraine, the economy of the eurozone proved
resilient in the first half of 2022. The pace of economic growth slowed from the third quarter,
though not as much as originally expected.

Aftera major economicrecoveryin 2021 and a 5.3% rise in GDP, the eurozone economy grew by
approximately 4.3% in 2022 based on preliminary estimates by the European Commission and
most economic experts.

Inflationin the eurozone seems to have peaked at 10.6% in October 2022, as inflation rates have
been on the decline for some months now.

The mainreasonsforthe lack of growth in the economywere asharp rise in consumer prices and
lower purchasing power on the part of private households, uncertaintyaround energy supply and
continued high prices of energy.

c) Germany

According to preliminary estimates by Germany’s Federal Statistical Office (‘Statistisches
Bundesamt’), gross domestic product (GDP) improved by 1.9% in 2022. This means that the dire
forecasts made by the International Monetary Fund (IMF) last summer have not come to pass.
In light of the coronavirus pandemic, now in its third year, and its impact as well as the war in
Ukraine, ongoing for over a year now, the German economy proved robust and resilient overall
in 2022.

Ongoing supply bottlenecks, energy supply shortages and the huge increases in energy prices
afterthe trade and economicsanctionsimposed on Russiawere particularly challenging, both for
companies and consumers. This situation was compounded by the extraordinarily high inflation
rate of 7.9% on average over the course of 2022.

The German labor market remained unaffected, with the number of people in employment in
Germany in the past year higher than ever before. Compared to 2021, the number of employed
persons rose by roughly 589,000 to a total of 45.6 million. The unemployment rate dropped from



5.7% in 2021 to 5.3%, thus highlighting the challenges for companies facing tough competition for
new hires.

2.2 Sector-specificenvironment

Business in the digital sector is far outperforming the economy as a whole. Despite the warin
Ukraine, continued interruptions to global supply chains and record inflation figures, the digital
sector remains stable and is expecting further growth.

For example, ITC sales increased by 4.0% to EUR 196.1 billion in Germany in 2022. The labor
market in the digital sector has also continued to develop positively, with 45,000 additional jobs
created in Germany in 2022 according to Bitkom. This means that somewhere in the region of
1.31 million people were employed in the ITC industry. Automation as a response to the low
availability of qualified staff requiresfurtherinvestmentin digitalization and will continue to push
digitalization forward.

2.3 Overall course of business

2022 was a mixed year for the CENIT Group. Firstly, the economic framework conditions for our
customers in the main industries of aerospace, automotive, civil and mechanical engineering
remained difficult. Especially in conjunction with the war in Ukraine and after the health crisis
brought about by COVID-19, this mean that capital expenditures did not recover. Sales rose
organically by 1.8% in this adverse environment. At the same time, geopolitical challenges
triggeredincreased sales with existing customersin the area of defense. Overall, this meant that
CENIT was able to hold its ground in a tough environment.

CENIT compensated forvolatility in sectorsin which it has a strong footing historically by way of
majoracquisitionsin the EIM segment (ISR) and in the PLM segment by taking over the customer
base and employeesof MagicEngineering SRLin Romania. It also acquired Coristo GmbHin full in
May 2022. These acquisitions make it possible to balance out future volatility in the industrial
segments and better respond to any dependences on segments or on partners. The acquisition
costs and the related effects on the capital structure and on liquidity will be countered with
corresponding liquidity planning.

These strategicacquisitions not only enhance the Group’s positionin certain geographic markets
(eastern Europe) and areas of tech, they also contribute significantly to CENIT’s profitability.

Despite the difficult market conditions described, consolidated sales improved considerably from
EUR 146.1 million in the prior year to EUR 162.2 million (up EUR 15.9 million or 10.9%). Because
of the after-effects of the pandemicand uncertainty stemming from the warin Ukraine, sales with
software licenses of EUR105.7 million remained marginally lower than in 2021
(EUR 106.2 million). Some customers in the PLM segment had reduced or deactivated software
maintenance during the pandemic and have not yet reactivated this due to ongoing uncertainty
caused by the war in Ukraine.

By contrast, sales from services shot up by 40%.

Operating expenses adjusted for the effects of the acquisitions remained stable year on year. In
addition to major investments in digital transformation, it was also possible to progress with
internal reorganization measures. At the same time, the budget was burdened by the loss of
savings fromthe short-timework scheme (down EUR 1.4 million compared with the prioryear). A



dropinresearch and development grants also reduced other operatingincome by EUR 1.0 million
compared with 2021.

Consolidated EBIT grew slightly to EUR6.3 million against this backdrop (prior year:
EUR 6.2 million).

In terms of CENIT’s two segments, the picture compared tothe prior yearand to the budgetisas
follows:

(1) The PLM segment with customersinsome of the industries still impacted by the pandemic
(including automotive, plant and mechanical engineering) noted asharp rise in year-on-year sales
of EUR 4.5 million (+3.5%) to EUR 134.6 million (prioryear: EUR 130.1 million). Sales nevertheless
fell slightly short of the ambitious target of EUR 137.1 million.

At EUR 3.5 million, recognized EBIT was unchanged on the prior-year level of EUR 3.5 million.

(2) Sales in the EIM segment rose substantially by EUR 11.6 million (up 72.5%) on the prior
year. This development was thanks in the mainto the shareholdingin ISR, which makes the CENIT
Group the marketleaderonthe GSA market. Salesin 2022 (EUR 27.6 million)far exceeded budget
forecasts (EUR 13.0 million, up 112.3%), as the shareholdingin ISR was not contained in the plan.
Segment EBIT came to EUR 2.7 million (prior year: EUR 2.7 million). It is worth noting that ISR’s
EBIT was only included for a period of seven months.

Earnings per share (EPS) increased to EUR 0.75 per share compared to EUR 0.51/share in the
previous year due to a better financial result.

Because the parentcompany CENIT AG also makes a key contribution to the development of the
CENIT Group, the sales and earnings development at CENIT AG resembles that of the Group,
exceeding the planned sales target for 2022 of EUR 94.3 million by EUR 0.8 million (+0.8%).
CENIT AGgrew its sales fromthe consulting and services business by EUR 1.6 million comparedto
the prior year. Software-related sales remained virtually unchanged. Taking higher expenses (up
2.6%) into account, EBIT fell by EUR 0.6 million to EUR 3.2 million (prior year: EUR 3.8 million).
Alongside financial performance indicators, non-financial performanceindicators are also gaining
insignificance. A key componentof the non-financial performanceindicators is ESG/CSR. The next
steps as part of CENIT’s ESG/CSR strategy involve expanding the sustainability report in
accordance with the GRI Standards, developing a sustainable code of conduct for suppliers,
trainingemployees on compliance, reporting within the framework of the EUtaxonomy as well as
integrating the sustainable development goals.

In conclusion, itis fair to say that CENIT is continuing on its growth trajectory despite adverse
circumstances and that the progress made with CENIT’s 2025 Strategy offers further opportunities
for growth.



3 Assets, liabilities, financial position and performance of the CENIT Group

3.1 Financial performance

Sales of CENIT in the fiscal year 2022 amountedto EUR 162.2 million and were thus up 11.0% on
the prior-year figure. Breaking down revenue by segment (PLM and EIM) shows the following
picture:

2022 2021

27,6
(17%)

ey e

Sales by product / income type break down as follows:

Sales by product / income type 2022 2021
in EUR k
Third-party software 88,139 88,543
thereof software 19,569 19,590
thereof software updates 68,570 68,953
CENIT consulting and services 55,719 39,822
CENIT software 17,710 17,688
thereof software 6,602 7,427
thereof software updates 11,108 10,261
Merchandise 584 18
Total 162,152 146,071

With a share of 54.3% (prioryear: 60.6%) in total sales, the sale of third-party software (including
software maintenance) continues to be the largest component in sales. The acquisition of the
shareholding in ISR allowed for a rebalancing of the distribution of sales between software and
services. As far as the type of sales is concerned, software updates for third-party software and
proprietary software continue to be a large componentinsales, accounting for a share of 49.1%
(prioryear: 54.2%). This means CENIT still has a stable recurring sales base that is now combined
with a complementary service offering in the very vibrant EIM segment (up 39.9% on the prior



year). The sales mix featuring software and services allows for diversification and better margin
control. It also reduces dependency on partner software considerably.

Looking at sales distribution by region, itis clearthat sales shareshave shifted since the prior year
from Rest of Europe to Germany, not least due to the stake in ISR:

2022 2021

I Germany [ Rest of Europe Rest of World

61.0% (prioryear: 56.8%) of total sales were recorded in Germany, with 33.7% (prioryear: 38.0%)
recorded in Rest of Europe and 5.3% in Rest of World (prioryear: 5.2%). The slight change in sales
distribution by region is due principally to the acquisition of the ISR shares in Germany. Other
operating income came to EUR 1.4 million in the reporting period (prior year: EUR 2.3 million).
This decline is linked to the expected and foreseeable drop in tax allowances in Germany and
France.

Cost of materials totals EUR 71.5 million in the reporting year after EUR68.6 million in the prior
year (up4.3%). Thisriseis attributable chiefly toalargersalesvolume (up 11.0%) and the inclusion
of ISR in the consolidated financial statements. Adjusted for ISR, the ratio of cost of materialsto
sales is 47% and thus virtually unchanged on the prior year.

At EUR 67.3 million, personnel expenses in 2022 are around 12.7% higherthan the prior-year
figure of EUR 59.7 million, attributable primarily to the acquisition of the ISR shares and the
related additional employees (up EUR 8.7 million). Additionally, the prior-year cost savings from
short-time work of around EUR 1.4 million are nolongeravailable. This was countered by a drop
in the number of employees in CENIT’s original headcount to the tune of approximately 3%. The
ratio of personnel expenses to sales role by 0.9 percentage points to 41.1% accordingly.

Other operatingincome climbed by EUR 3.7 million yearonyearto EUR 12.6 million. Once again,
the main reason for thisrise isthe inclusion of ISRin the basis of consolidation. Atthe same time,
travel expenses increased by EUR 0.7 million as pandemic-related restrictions were dropped.
Ongoing IT-related costs were up by EUR 0.7 million year on year as part of the Group’s digital
transformation process. Consulting costs rose EUR 0.8 million year on year in line with CENIT's
growth trajectory (especially due to the acquisitions).



CENITthusrecorded EBITDA of EUR 11.9 million(prioryear: EUR 11.3 million). The EBITDA margin
slipped marginally, from 7.7% in the prior year to 7.4%.

Amortization, depreciation and impairment amounted to EUR 5.6 million. This figure included
amortization, depreciation and impairment of EUR 0.6 million stemming from the purchase of
sharesin ISR. EBIT remained stable at EUR 6.3 millionin this context (prioryear: EUR 6.2 million).
Additionally, the Group’s earnings for the year of EUR 6.6 million (prior year: EUR 4.4 million)
contain a tax expense of EUR 2.6 million (prior year: EUR 2.2 million).

Order intake at CENIT amounted to EUR 167.5 million in the past fiscal year 2022 (prior year:
EUR 157.9 million). The order backlog as of 31 December 2022 amounted to EUR 46.1 million
(prior year: EUR 40.6 million).

3.2 Financial position

a) Fundamentals and objectives of financial management

The aim of financial management in the CENIT Group is to safeguard financial stability and
flexibilityin connection with the liquidity needed to achieve the strategicgoals. The foundations
for this are provided by a stable equity base despite the intensive growth strategy. The
Management Board endeavors to keepthe equity ratio above 25% in spite of the growth strategy.
Financing policy and financial management are unchanged comparedto prioryears. Accordingly,
the key components of financial management include liquidity and cash flow analysis as well as
the management of liquidity and exchange rate risks as part of foreign exchange management.

b) Capital structure of the Group

Total assets in the CENIT Group come to EUR 127.0 million as of the reporting date, up
EUR 34.2 million onthe prioryear (EUR92.8 million). Thisis due in the main to higherliabilitiesto
banks as part of funding the growth strategy.



In terms of maturity, the Group’s capital structure breaks down as follows:

92,8 127,0

44,8
(35%)

Equity

14,0
(11%)

Non-current liabilities

68,3
N 39,1 (54%)

Current liabilities (42%)
2021 2022

The share of equity in total capital decreased from 47% inthe prior year to 35% in the reporting
period, although the absolute figure rose by EUR 1.1 million (up 2.6%).

Short-term liabilities climbed to EUR 68.3 million as a result of the expanded scope of business
overall and the financing forthe acquisitions (up EUR 29.2 million or 74.7% on the prior year). This
developmentis chiefly due to higher liabilities to banks (upEUR 21.4 million). Itis also attributable
to higher trade payables (up EUR 5.1 million or 84.7%) and higher contract liabilities (up
EUR 2.6 million or 16.3%).

There was also an increase in non-current liabilities (EUR 3.9 million or 38.8% year on year), first
and foremost because of the acquisition of ISR. The increase stemmed firstly from the option of
EUR 1.7 million enteredinto and alsofromthe deferred tax liabilities on the assets recognized as
part of remeasurement.

c) Liquidity analysis

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents dropped to EUR 19.9 million year on year (prior year:
EUR 26.4 million).The EUR 28.3 millionincrease innegative cash flow frominvesting activitieswas
compensated for by the EUR 18.2 million increase in cash flow from financing activities and a
EUR 3.3 million increase in cash flow from operating activities.

Short-term, risk-free availability is the ultimate aim of investing cash, in orderto be able to access
the available cash at very short notice as needed and thus to promote growth. At the same time,
this keeps the Group’s financial risk profile at a low level.



In detail, cash and cash equivalents developed as follows:

Cash balance Cashflow from Cashflow from Cashflow from FX effects / others Cash balance
31.12.2021 operating activities investing activities financing activities 31.12.2022

At EUR 11.5 million (prior year: EUR 8.2 million), positive cash flow from operating activities
contributed to the development outlined above. Structural changes in the composition of cash
flow from operating activities stemmed primarily from changes in the balance sheetitems under
working capital. In the main, the change in working capital was caused on the assets side by the
year-on-year decrease in receivables and other current non-monetary assets of EUR 0.8 million
and on the equity and liabilities side by the rise in liabilities of EUR 3.2 million.

At EUR -29.2 million, negative cash flow from investing activities was much higher than in the
prioryear (EUR -0.9 million)and was mainly influenced in the reporting period by the investments
to buy shares in ISR and Coristo.

Cash flow from financing activities amounted to EUR 11.0 million (prior year: EUR -7.2 million)
and is attributable to borrowing financial liabilities of EUR 23.0 million, dividend payments of
EUR 6.3 million (prior year: EUR 3.9 million), repayments from current finance leases
(EUR 3.6 million, prior year: EUR 3.3 million) and the repayment of financial liabilities
(EUR 1.7 million).



3.3 Assets and liabilities
The Group’s assets for the fiscal years 2021 and 2022 are presented below by maturity:
92,8 127,0

26,4
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Non-current assets
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As of the reporting date, non-current assets accounted for approximately 49% (prior year: 28%)
of all assets and were thus EUR 35.8 million higher than in the prior year. Non-current assets
chiefly comprise fixed assets of EUR 54.2 million (prior year: EUR 25.4 million). In addition to
property, plantand equipment of EUR 13.4 million (prioryear: EUR 11.9 million), there was also a
significant increase in intangible assets of EUR37.6 million (prior year: EUR 10.3 million), chiefly
due to including ISR (an additional EUR 27.6 million) in the consolidated financial statements.
Current assets fell by EUR 1.5 millionyearonyear to EUR 65.0 million. Thisincluded an increase
in trade receivables to EUR26.0 million (EUR 24.7 million) and in receivables from associates to
EUR 3.9 million (EUR2.9 million). By contrast, cash and cash equivalents decreased by
EUR 6.4 million to EUR 19.9 million.

Against the backdrop of the continued difficult circumstances arising from the last throes of the
pandemicand the continuing war in Ukraine, the Management Board of CENIT AG considers the
course of business of the CENIT Group in the fiscal year 2022 to have been “satisfactory”. The
objective in the coming monthsand years will be to accelerate organic growth as set out in the
2025 Strategy and support this with an adequate level of inorganic growth. In conclusion, it can
be said that overall the CENIT Group has returned toits growth trajectory despite the challenging
circumstances andis now endeavoring to take advantage (more intensively) of the opportunities
arising from the digital transformation of industry.



4 Assets, liabilities, financial position and performance of CENIT AG

The following commentsrelateto CENITAG as the parent of the CENIT Group. The disclosures are
made on the basis of HGB [“Handelsgesetzbuch”: German Commercial Code] for accounting by
large corporations and AktG [“Aktiengesetz”: GermanStock Corporation Act]. CENITAG's eamings
are influenced by the earnings of the subsidiaries as well as of the joint venture CenProCS
AlRliance GmbH.

4.1 Financial performance

Sales of CENIT AGin the fiscal year 2022 amounted to EUR 95.1 million and were thus up around
2.3% on the prior-year sales of EUR 92.3 million. Breaking down revenue by segment (PLM and
EIM) shows the following picture:

2022 2021
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Sales by product / income type break down as follows:

Sales by product / income type 2022 2021
in EUR k

Third-party software 46,226 45,580

thereof software 12,761 13,737

thereof software updates 33,465 31,843
CENIT consulting and services 32,682 31,056
CENIT software 14,949 15,727

thereof software 5,314 6,774

thereof software updates 9,635 8,953
Merchandise 581 20
Other 657 545
Total 95,095 92,929

Totalsales rose to EUR 95.1 million in 2022 compared with EUR 92.9 million in the prior year (up 2.3%).
The trends identified were as follows:



e percentage of recurring sales in total sales increased by 1.4% to 45.3% (prior year: 43.9%).
(1) Th f i les i | sales i d by 1.4% to 45.3% (pri 43.9%)

(2) There was a repeated rise in sales from consulting and services (up 5.2%), which accounted for
34.4% of total sales in the fiscal year compared with 33.4% in the prior year.

(3) New sales of third-party and proprietary software declined by 11.9% year on year, mostly due to a
strong end-of-year rush with special effects in the prior year.

Other operating income came to EUR 0.9 million in the reporting period (prior year:
EUR 1.3 million). Thisdeclineislinked to the expected and foreseeable drop in tax allowances in
Germany.

Cost of materials came to EUR 42.2 millionin the reporting year after EUR 39.8 millioninthe prior
year (up 6.1%). Thisincrease stems primarily from the higher sales volume (up EUR 2.2 million) as
well as a changed product mixin connection with a higher percentage of servicesin revenue. The
resulting ratio of cost of materials to sales is 44.1% (prior year: 42.3%).

At EUR 37.9 million, personnel expensesin 2022 were EUR 1.5 millionbelow the prior-year figure.
Thisis particularly noteworthy in view of the fact that the cost savings from short-time work were
no longeravailable inthe fiscal year (down EUR 1.2 million). The EUR 1.8 million drop invariable
remunerationyearonyearand a decrease inthe average headcount overthe course of the fiscal
year had a positive impact. This resulted in a ratio of personnel expenses to sales of 39.5% after
41.9% in the prior year.

Other operating expenses are at EUR 11.8 million as of the reporting date compared to
EUR 10.0 millioninthe prioryear. Thisincrease is due first and foremost to investmentsas part of
the digital transformation and related expenditure in the IT infrastructure as well as higher
consulting costs in connection with the acquisitions made and higher travel expenses as travel
restrictions eased after the pandemic.

CENIT AG achieved EBITDA of EUR 3.9 million (prioryear: EUR 5.0 million), leading to a reduction
in the EBITDA margin from 5.3% in the prior year to 4.1%.

EBIT likewise fell from EUR 3.8 millioninthe prioryearto EUR 3.3 millioninthe reporting period,
decreasing the EBIT margin from 4.2% in the prior year to 3.3% in the reporting period.
Additionally, the netincome for the year of EUR 5.4 million (prioryear: EUR 2.8 million) contains
a tax expense of EUR 1.0 million (prior year: EUR 1.0 million).

The financial result totaled EUR 3.2 million in the reporting period. This was chiefly linked to
higherdistributions by subsidiaries. Deferred tax assets must be calculated based on a tax rate of
31% (prior year: 31%). The tax rate is 28.2% in the fiscal year (prior year: 33.2%).

4.2 Financial position

In the reporting period 2022, the investing activities of CENIT AG were informed by investments
infinancial assets (EUR 30.5 million) and by investments to replace fixed assets (EUR 0.4 million).

Liquidity as of the reporting date dropped from EUR 15.3 million to EUR 6.9 million.



The Management Board and Supervisory Board will propose to the General Meeting of
Shareholders on 17 May 2023 that a dividend of EUR 0.50 per share be distributed from the
retained earnings of CENITAG of EUR 4.2 million. Thisisinline withthe original dividend policy of
always distributing 50% of retained earnings to the shareholders.

Consequently, the financial strategy remains geared to maintaining a strong credit rating in the
longtermthatdoes, however, also takeinto account the interests of the shareholders inreceiving
adividend.

4.3 Assets and liabilities

The total assets of CENIT AG increased from EUR 52.4 million to EUR 75.4 million as of the
reporting date. The development of the individual balance sheetitems can be seen from the
following chart:

75,4
Fixed assets
32,6 Equity
Inventories and receivables
5,5 Provisions

and other assets

30,8 Liabilities

Cash and cash equivalents

Prepaid expenses Deferred income

2021 2022 2021 2022

As of the reporting date on 31 December 2022, the assets side of the balance sheet of CENIT AG
is mostly characterized by fixed assets, which increased considerably (up EUR 28.7 million) as a
result of purchasing the shares in ISR and stepping up the shareholding in Coristo. Prepaid
expenses likewise rose substantially by EUR 2.9 million on the prioryear. By contrast, opentrade
receivables remained virtually unchanged as of the reporting date.

On the equity and liabilities side, CENIT AG’s balance sheetis characterized by the share of equity
and liabilities, with the equity ratio falling to 43.3% as of the reporting date compared to 64.1% in
the prior year. Liabilities mainly increased on the back of borrowing.

Against the backdrop of the continued difficult circumstances arising from the last throes of the
pandemicand the continuing war in Ukraine, the Management Board of CENIT AG considers the
course of business of CENIT AG in the fiscal year 2022 to have been “good”. The objective in the
coming months and years will be to accelerate organicgrowth as setout in the 2025 Strategy. In
conclusion, itcan be said that overall CENIT AGremains on its ambitiousgrowth trajectory despite
the challenging circumstances and will now endeavor to take advantage (more intensively) of the
opportunities arising from the digital transformation of industry.



5 Report on expected developments

This (group) management report contains forward-looking statements and information. These
statements can be recognized from wording such as “expect”, “intend”, “plan”, “estimate” and
similar. Such statements are based on certain expectations and assumptions that entalil
corresponding risks and uncertainties. Many factors that influence the business model, business
activity, business strategy and success of the CENIT Group are not always within the sphere of
influence of the CENIT Group. This may lead to the actual results of the CENIT Group deviating

materially from the results mentioned directly or indirectly in the forward-looking statements.

5.1 Expected macroeconomic and sector-specificenvironment

In its updated forecast at the end of January, the International Monetary Fund (IMF) was
significantly more optimisticthan inthe autumn of last year, when it warned of the risk of a global
recession. The global economy is now expected to grow by 2.9% in 2023.

Accordingto IMF Chief Economist Pierre-Olivier Gourinchas, growthis expected to slow compared
to the prior year but the prospects are “less gloomy” than assumed in last October’s forecast.

He states the mainreasons forthis as surprisingly high resilience in numerous national economies
that have mastered the weighty challenges such as the Ukraine conflict, energy supply problems
and the huge increase in consumer prices betterthan expected. China’s move away fromits zero-
COVID strategy could act as a further driver for the global economy.

According to the IMF, the largest growth in the current year will be experienced by the two
emerging economies of China and India. China’s economy is expected to grow by 5.2% in 2023,
withIndiasettorecord growth of 6.1%. The IMF also predicts areturn to stronger growthin Russia
in 2023. After contracting by 2.2% in 2022, Russia’s economy is expected to return to growth of
0.3%.

The IMF considers that the largest national economy, the US, will have 1.4% economic growth,
while growth of just 0.7% is predicted forthe eurozone. The IMF’s weakest prognosis is reserved
for the UK, whose economy is expected to shrink by 0.6%.

According to IMF Chief Economist Pierre-Olivier Gourinchas, the battle against inflation is
gradually bearing fruit. The interest rate increasesby central banks around the world have had an
effect, and consumer and energy prices are expected to rise much more slowly this year.
Consequently, the IMF is forecasting global inflation of roughly 6.6% for 2023.

Forecasts for 2023 continue to be very uncertain and are subject to numerous risks that could
entail a deteriorationinthe economicsituation. These primarily include a potential worseningof
the situation with COVIDin China, an escalation of the Ukraine conflict ora debtcrisis due to the
strict monetary policy of the central banks.

In its annual projection, the German government is likewise somewhat more upbeat than in the
autumn, forecastinga 0.2% rise in GDP in Germany for 2023, an inflationrate in the region of 6.0%
and a virtually unchanged unemployment rate of 5.4%.

Digitalizationis set to continue itsgrowth trajectory in the current fiscal year. According to Bitkom,
ITC sales are to rise globally by 4.8% to EUR 4.33 trillion. The US will account for the dominant



market share of 35.7%. Germany will rank fifth behindthe UK (4.5%) with a market share of 4.2%.
German ITC sales are predicted to smash the EUR 200 billion figure for the first time.

Bitkom President Achim Berg has warned that Germany urgently needs a turnaround in digital
policy: “Instead of alittle change hereand there, we have to move away fromold analog processes
and switch todigital only as soon as possible”. In particular, he says, Germany needs to resolveits
structural problem of a lack of specialist staff. The country has a shortage of around 137,000 IT
experts that is seriously hampering its efforts to become a digital nation.

5.2 Expected developments of the CENIT Group and of CENIT AG

The fiscal year 2023 is expected to be a year of growth and increased productivity for the CENIT
Group. The following forecasts do not include the potential effects of acquisitions. Based on the
macroeconomic and sector-specific developments described above (5.1), consolidated sales are
expected to amount to roughly EUR 180 million. EBIT is forecast to top EUR 9.5 million, thus far
exceedingthe prior-yearlevel andresultingin an increase in the EBIT margin of more than 50%.
To achieve this goal sustainably, aplan was developed to uncover potential for raising efficiency
in all areas of the Group and measures were derived from the plan for direct implementation.

In the EIM segment, salesin excess of EUR 35.0 million and EBIT of more than EUR 4.0 millionare
expected. In the PLM segment, sales above EUR 140.0 million and EBIT of more than
EUR 5.0 million are planned.

CENIT AG is expected torecordsalesinthe region of EUR 96.0 millionin 2023. EBIT is forecastto
be roughly EUR 1.0 m. This is due to investments in internal projects to increase operating
efficiency in order to raise competitiveness in the long term.

In light of the geopolitical situation, the plan presented is based on the assumption that the
current war between Russia and Ukraine will not have any significant negative economic effects
(supply chaininterruption, dropin demand etc.) on our industry or our main customer segments
(aerospace, automotive and civil and mechanical engineering) and that we will be able to achieve
our growth targets.

Asin prioryears, software development will be stepped up, in particular the digital factory solution
FASTSUITE E2 and SAP integration. The entire production industry (PLM) as well as financial
services providers (MEPs) are facing challenges posed by digitalization and the related
investments in transforming their IT landscape. As an innovative and reliable solution provider,
the CENIT Group will make its contribution to overcoming these challenges through its software
and service offerings.

Inaddition, CENIT offers aone-stopshop forall digitalization processes along the production chain
as well as document processing, which sets CENIT apart globally from its competitors on the
market.

The Group’s strategy comprises inorganic growth to enhance its own market position and to
become more independent of third-party providers, to win market share and at the same time to
improve profitability.

Additionally, asannouncedinthe prioryear, ashared understanding of the five business divisions
was established in 2022 in order to better exploit existing customer potential while at the same
time creating a unique selling proposition in the area of digitalization of production processes.



This strategy will be continued in 2023 and progressed throughout the year by implementing
supporting tools.

The targets described above will be supported through corresponding acquisitions of two to three
companies per year in order to further enhance the respective business divisions. A portfolio
requirement was preparedforthis purposethatis constantlyupdatedbased on the strategy, real-
life options for courses of action and the underlying framework conditions.

CENIT is also planning that its internally developed software will account for a large part of the
overall portfolio. Its current share is 14%, thus already achieving the target set in the 2025
Strategy. The Management Board therefore raised the targetinthe 2025 Strategytoa 20% share
of proprietary software.

The cooperation with the partners Dassault Systemes, IBM and SAP will be pursued on a lasting
basisinorderto continue to position the CENIT Group as their strategic partner.Last but not least,
reporting within the framework of the EU taxonomy and raising employee awareness through
training on compliance and sustainability will increase the significance of non-finandal
performance indicators further.

5.3 Overall statement on future development

Despite the ongoing uncertain market conditions on account of the global SARS-CoV-2 pandemic
as well as the war in Ukraine, the Management Board is positive about the future. This view is
borne out by the long-term stable growth trends in relevant markets and sectors as well as what
the Management Board considers to be the Group’s strong present and future positioning in
numerous European countries, such as Germany, with a huge backlog of demand interms of the
digital transformation of industry. It remains very difficult to gauge the future effects of global
events. Inaddition, the stake in ISR has shown that targeted strategicshareholdings can open up
new market segments thatresultin a large number of new customersfor all of CENIT’s business
divisions. At the same time, it reduces dependency on individual industry segments, thus
stabilizing planning reliability.

The high share of recurring sales from software update agreements in particular means that CENIT
has a solid basisfor the planned sales developmentin 2023. Additionally, the CENIT Group has a
solid capital structure that contributes to financing growth.

Taking into consideration the uncertain macroeconomic framework conditions, which could
change again at short notice at any time, the Management Board currently expects another
growth year with plans for a rise in the EBIT margin to more than 5%.

The statements on future development are expressly subject to the proviso that there are no
material changes in macroeconomic and sector-specific conditions, especially on account of the
consequences of the SARS-CoV-2 pandemic, the conflict between Russia and Ukraine and the
tensions around Taiwan, or that they will not have any significant impact on our industry or our
main client segments.



6 Report on opportunities and risks

6.1 Key characteristics of the internal control and risk management system (unaudited)

Risks are an intrinsiccomponent of entrepreneurial action. As part of the internal control and risk
management system, which alsoincorporates the financingreporting processes as wellas all risks
and controlsrelated tofinancial reporting, CENIT endeavors to counter these risks appropriately.
The aim is not to avoid risks or eliminate them completely, but to provide an adequate and
appropriate internal control and risk management system to counter the risks as they arise. In
order to ensure this, CENIT has a control and risk management system in place that uses a
continuous process to safeguard assets and that meets statutory and regulatory requirements.
Part of this systeminvolves defining control procedures, regular risk inventory-taking and deriving
corresponding measures.

The key elements of the internal control and risk management system of the CENIT Group are
explained below.

6.2 Opportunities and risk management

The diverse nature of the CENIT Group’sbusinessactivities means that its entrepreneurial activity
issubjectto opportunitiesand risks alike. In orderto recognize and assess opportunities and risks
at an early stage and ensure that they are handled correctly, the CENIT Group uses a
corresponding management and control system. In the short, medium and long term, the
objective isto grow sustainably and profitablyand thus increase the business value in the interest
of all stakeholders. This can be ensured by exploiting opportunities to the fullest and recognizing
risks as early as possible in orderto take adequate countermeasures. Itis the responsibility of the
Management Board of CENIT to recognize risks at an early stage and to take appropriate
countermeasures. A risk management system has been implemented to identify risks across the
Group and to assess these risks according to uniform criteria and categories, both from a
qualitative and a quantitative perspective. The current risk situation is updated, analyzed and
documented on a six-monthly basis using risk assessment.

The risk management system chiefly covers financial, operating, strategic and compliance risks.
The system is based on CENIT AG as the parent of the CENIT Group and also includes all of the
companiesincluded inthe consolidatedfinancial statements in the assessment together with their
key processes.

The probability of occurrence and primarily the related (forecast) impact on sales, EBIT and
liquidity play a decisive role for risk assessment.

In order to ensure a functioning risk management system, integral components of the risk
managementsysteminclude compliance with the principle of dual control and the segregation of
functions, allocation of responsibilities, controls for the preparation of the financial statements,
group-wide guidelines for accounting and preparing the financial statements as well as suitable
rules for access to IT systems.

CENIT’s growth strategy offers significant opportunities. These chiefly pertain to the tapping of
new marketand customer segments as well as copperfastening CENIT’s position with itslong-term



partners. There are also opportunitiesinrelation to the closerintegration of CENIT’s ownbusiness
models and the related rise in cross-selling potential.

The CENIT companies operate inmarkets that are permanently undergoing dynamic development
and from which new opportunities can constantlyarise.Itis the task of risk management to assess
potential opportunities and potential related risks. Increasing digitalization and the related
development of new technologies and products that offer additional value added potential but
also require constant adaptability is particularly significant in this respect.

The strategy of continued, planned inorganic growth is also expected to yield further potential
and a positiveimpact on the assets, liabilities, financial position and financial performance as well
as the market position of the CENIT Group.

6.3 Risk assessment and reporting

A key component of the system is a detailed planning system, an annual budget plan, monthly
variance analyses as well as the early and regular communication of risks and opportunities. This
risk management is assisted by regular meetings of management, where opportunities and risks
relating to business development are analyzed and examined in detail.

The risk principles at CENIT (guiding principles) are as follows:

e Entrepreneurialactivityisalways linked to risks.

o We will notacceptany risks that could jeopardize the continued existence of the Group.

e Each individual employee is called upontodeal withrisksinaresponsibleand conscious
manner.

e Quraimis proactive risk management ratherthan mere fulfillment of statutory requirements.

e The safety awareness of all employees, the acceptance of necessary measures and active
participation formthe basisforsafety in the Group.

e Executives ensure familiarity and compliance with guidelines and regulations within their
own area of responsibility.

o Employees mustfamiliarize themselves with safety regulations and precautions and must
base theirconducton these.

e Allemployeesare obliged to protectinformation to ensure thatthe Groupis not harmed by
the unauthorized use of such information.

e Thesafety departmentsonthe ground will assist employees and executivesinimplementing
all safety-related matters.

CENIT AG’s risk culture centers around the following three risk principles:

(1) Willingness and ability to identify key risks in the respective areas of responsibility orareas
monitored.

(2) Consistent communication throughout the entire organization regarding the assessment of
risksin order to create a shared understanding and a coordinated approach.

(3) Efficientrisk managementin the areas of responsibility orareas monitored aswell asin
consolidated form atthe level of the business divisions and of the CENIT Group.



Risk management is implemented using a standardized process, which involves the following
main steps as set out below:

Risk analysis & Risk
identification

Check & control Risk assessment

Risk treatment

In the CENIT Group, risks are analyzed and assessed systematically. The risks are categorized into
individual risk categories for this purpose. The risk categories are updated and managed in the
newly introduced risk management tool. The entire risk assessment process is coordinated by
centralized risk management.

Based ontwo parameters—(1) the expected probability of occurrence and (2) the expected loss —
the risks are assessed and classified into the categories low, medium, high and existential,
dependingon their potential impact. In a next step, the risk categories “low” and “medium” are
assessed as acceptable risks. Risks classified as “high” should be responded to using suitable
measures to mitigate the risk. Risks classified as “existential” are not acceptable and must be
addressed with suitable measures.

Furthermore, the risks mustbe assessed based on quantitative aspects, preferably using triangular
distribution as a risk assessment function and using a simple value in certain circumstances. In
addition, adistinctionis made betweenthe two assessment periods (1) next 12 monthsand (2) in
months 13 to 24.



A corresponding risk matrix is created based on the assessments made:

>60% - 100%

>25% - 60%

Probability of occurence

>5% - 25%

0% - 5%

0-1 1-5 5-15 >15
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Loss

The Management Board uses the matrix to decide which risks must be classified as existential. If
necessary, risks will be grouped together for this purpose. Risk treatment involves drafting and
implementing suitable measures for responding to the risks that need to be addressed.
Corresponding measures are allocated to the risks in the risk portfolio and documented.

As part of the risk management process, risk capacity is initially determined and then monitored
regularly and continually. The corresponding risk-bearing capacity is entered in the system at
entity level.

Computerizedsimulations (Monte Carlo simulation) and riskaggregation are used to assess arisk’s
potential existential threat.

The Management Board examines the classifiedrisks together withthe department headsand the
employeesresponsibleinthat business unit. In addition, the Supervisory Board regularly receives
reports on the risk situation and discusses the issue in detail.



6.4 Risk situation
a) General

Out of all opportunities and risks identified, those areas that currently could have a material
positive or negative impact on the assets and liabilities, financial position and finandal
performance in the forecast period are described below. Pursuant to the aforementioned
assessmentbased onthe expectedloss of consolidated earnings and liquidity, the corresponding
classificationof the expected loss causedby the risk that remains after taking countermeasures is
stated for the following risks.

The risk situation for the CENIT Group is as follows:

Risk category Risk assessment
Financial and tax risks Financing / creditworthiness low

Currency risks low
Market risks Customer dependency low

(Global) crises medium
Strategic risks Supplier dependency medium

IT security low
Legal and compliance risks Contractual risks low

Compliance low

b) Financial and tax risks

The Group is exposed to credit, counterparty and liquidity risks as well as interest and exchange
rate fluctuations in the course of its operations that are identified and assessed as part of risk
management. The CENIT Group has had an equity ratio higher than 30% for many years, which
provides it with a solid financing base. Furthermore, credit ratings are obtained as necessary to
assess customers’ ability to repay and to avoid payment default, and historical data from the
business relationship to date are taken into account — especially in relation to payment history.
Anadequate accounts receivable management systemisin place in thisrespect. The CENIT Group
processes most business transactionsinthe local currency.Because the salesinlocal currency are
countered by corresponding expenses in local currency, the risk of currency fluctuations is low.

Particularly at present, the management of liquidity risks is especially vital. Liquidity risks occur
when the customers of the CENIT Group are not in a positionto meettheir payment obligations.
To recognize this risk at an early stage and thus limit it to the extent possible, the CENIT Group
carries out regular analyses to assess customer solvency.

As part of its growth strategy, CENIT pursues a policy of financing on a solid economic basis.
CENIT’s orderly capital structure helps to ensure that it can procure sufficient liquidity successfully
when it finds itself in need of capital.

Currency risks from procurementin the CENIT Group occur when goods and servicesare procured
ina currency otherthan the functional currency of the respective company. We minimize this risk
by concluding corresponding purchase and sales agreements in the same currency. Since



procurementfocuses primarily onthe eurozone, foreign exchange risks from procurement at the
parent company are the exception.

The volatility on the foreign exchange markets and the resulting uncertainty surrounding
exchange rate developments also have an influence on CENIT. The business activities of the CENIT
Group also generate receivables in US dollars (USD), Swiss francs (CHF), Romanian leu (RON),
Chinese yuan (CNY) and Japanese yen (JPY) among others. CENIT is thus exposed to a certain
currency risk. Because payment generally takes place soon after invoicing and because
prepayments are taken, the residual currency risk is assessed as part of an economic cost/benefit
analysisandis even hedgedif necessary. No transactions to hedge currency exposure were carried
outin the 2022 reporting period.

c) Market risks

The Company counters ongoing price pressure by investingin the constant furthertraining of its
employees. The shortage of skilled staffin the IT sectoralso helps to escape the pressure on price.
Adapted recruiting systems that use new (virtual) tools for hiring staff are managing the lack of
skilled staff and minimizing the performance risk.

The CENIT Group trustsits partners and suppliers and wants to contribute to a fairand long-term
cooperationinthis way. Performance, counterperformance and risks are appropriatelybalanced.
Partnersand suppliers are expected to participate in recognizing and implementing potential for
raising efficiency. Inthisregard, CENIT pursues a purchasing policy that is tailored to the specific
requirements of each project.

d) Strategic risks

CENIT is well positioned in its target markets. CENIT has a strong market positionin its two
segments, PLMand EIM, with regard toits A and B customers. CENITintends to take advantage of
the opportunities that this creates even morerigorously inthe futureto secure its market position
and expand it further. The resulting potential for opportunities is rated as medium to high.
Especially the Group’s own software solutions will help, forging even-stronger links to customers.
The strategic partnerships with global players such as Dassault Systemes, IBM and SAP will also
help to increase customer loyalty. In addition, the Group regularly identifies, assesses and
monitors opportunities and (potential) risksin all material business transactions and processes.

The strategic partnerships create dependencies onindividual suppliers. Because of its size, CENIT
is well positioned as a partnerto Dassault Systemes, as access to several thousands of customers
is ensured only via the distribution network of the CENIT Group. There are thus mutual
dependencies at play. Nevertheless, this dependencywill be greatlyreduced by meansof targeted
acquisitions in other business divisions.

The Management Board monitors dependency on key accounts on a constant basis. No one
customer contributes more than around 6% to consolidated sales in the fiscal year 2022.

The Group’s central IT department is responsible globally for all information systems and user
control rights. The IT environment is uniform across the Group and is centrally managed. The IT
function monitors system operation continuously, checks existing access rights of the individual
users at regularintervals and adapts access rights to the individual systems as necessary. For this
risk, the IT risk is considered manageable.



Residual risks include the unforeseeable effects of the coronavirus pandemic as well as the
conflict between Russia and Ukraine.

Despite the improving situation in termsof the coronavirus pandemic and takinginto account the
war in Ukraine and the uncertainty stemmingfrom both of these events, particularly in terms of
the economic development in CENIT’s key customer industries such as automotive, aerospace
and civil and mechanical engineering, the planning is also characterized by uncertainty for the
fiscal year 2023 and subsequent years. Monthly analysis is carried out of the relevant
developments onthe salesand EBIT side, and scenario planning and sensitivity analyses are used
in an effort to obtain forecasts that are as accurate as possible.

To manage the uncertain overall situation as regards business processes, a pandemic plan was
developed that covers the main points on hygiene (e.g. in the office), safeguarding business
processes (e.g. workingfromhome) and a contingency plan inthe event of infection (e.g. reporting
channels and quarantine). The measures taken were updated in 2022.

e) Legal and compliance risks

The CENIT Group enters into contracts with its customers at arm’s length. Contractual risks are
limited by using standardized General Terms and Conditions. In addition, the CENIT Group has
taken out sufficient publicliability insurance to minimize the risk.

Compliance risks are penalties, financial or othertangible losses due to breaches of the law and
failure to comply with internal company regulations or principles. Compliance risks are classified
as low on the whole.

6.5 Overall picture of the CENIT Group’s opportunity and risk situation

A review of the current risk situation has shown that there were no risks in the reporting period
that jeopardized the continued existence of the Group as a going concern and that no such risks
are foreseeable at present for the future. All recognized risks were taken into account
appropriatelyinthe consolidated financial statements, and provisions were created as necessary.
Furthermore, as of the reporting date there are no otherrisks that could have a material impact
on the assets and liabilities, financial position and financial performance. The risk management
and early warning system make transparent corporate governance and early detection of risks
possible.

An overall analysis of opportunities and risks shows that, in addition to strategic risks, the CENIT
Group is primarily exposed to operational risk, which is determined by topical issues such as
inflation and the war in Ukraine. The latter encompasses the uncertainty surrounding further
economicdevelopmentinrelevantindustries and the related unit sales opportunities. By contrast,
the strategic risks include dependency on developments at key strategic suppliers as well as
specialization ontechnology partners and therelated dependency on their businessdevelopment.
There is an opportunity to optimize and increase the daily rates achievable by means of a high-
quality service and process expertise. This can only be implemented based on sustained training
for our employees. By raising its profile on the labor market, CENIT takes advantage of the
opportunities on offer to recruit high-quality specialist staff.

There are significant market opportunities for CENIT in connection with the advancing
digitalization of the production industry and the continued long-term focus on its own software
and the related services.



Alongside the risks described, ever-shorterinnovation cycles open up the possibility to progress
with the digitalization of our society and offer our business customers solutions with our own
software products that will make them more competitive. Consequently, our activities relating to
innovation and product developmentare decisivein orderto recognize and use opportunities and
establish them in the face of increasing competition.

6.6 Internal control and risk management system in relation to the accounting and group
financial reporting process, Sec. 315 (4) HGB (CENIT AG: Sec. 289 (4) HGB)

A major part of the risk management system is the accounting-related internal control and risk
system of the CENIT Group. Accordingly, the internal control systemis understood to include the
principles, processes and measures introduced by management that are geared to the
organizational implementation of executive decisions to ensure the effectiveness and effidency
of the business activities for the compliance and reliability of the internalaccounting and extemal
financial reporting.

An internal control system appropriate for the respective circumstances is implemented at each
of the group companies; this system is continuously refined. Accounting recognizes the principle
of a separation of functions. Most finance and accounting functionsare performedcentrally at the
Stuttgart location. There is a clear allocation of tasks, both for preparing the separate finandial
statements and for preparing the consolidated financial statements. Controls are also
implemented in accordance with the principle of dual control orin the form of system controlsin
order to avoid inaccuracies.

The Management Board is responsible for the internal control and risk management system in
terms of the group financial reporting process.

6.7 Quality assurance and information security

a) Quality assurance

The success of the CENIT Group hinges primarily on meeting customerrequirements. In the field
of business process consulting, we wish to win customers with high-quality and economical
solutions. By carrying out operating activities for the customer or at the customer, we want to
raise the efficiency of the operations assumed.

To achieve this, the CENIT Group has designed its own processes to meet these customer
requirementsinwhat CENIT considersto be the best possible way. To this end, the CENIT Group
has drafted and enforced key process descriptions applicable to the entire Group. All employees
are instructed to implement these processes and to improve them constantly by means of
specified methodical procedures.

Continuous monitoring and improvement thus forms an important component of the quality
management system. This ongoing process allows potential forimprovement to be identified,
evaluated and implemented.

Responsibility for quality management lies with the Management Board. This ensures that the
Management Board has directinfluenceand control overthe Group’squality management system
and can respond very quickly and flexibly to any negative developments.



The CENIT Group has documented quality management rules in the management manual. The
basis is provided by the 1SO 9001:2015 standard.

The Management Board defines the quality policy and objectives while ensuringawareness and
implementation at all levels of the Group. Furthermore, the Management Board defines the
organization and areas of responsibility and provides the necessary financial and human
resources.

The Management Board examines regularly —but atleast onceayear—whether the agreed targets
and processes as well as laws and standards have been complied with. Compliance with the
requirements of 1ISO 9001:2015 is assessed annually, both by internal audits and by an
independent external certification body.

b) Information security

To ensure compliance with legal, official and contractual requirements and to safeguard the
protection of customer information and CENIT’s own information, an information security
management system was implemented based on ISO/IEC 27001:2017. I1SO 27001 is an
internationally recognized standard and involves a systematic process-based approach for
implementing an information security management system that takes into account both the
technology andthe employees while at the same time establishing a continuous monitoring and
optimization process.

The information security management system thus supplements the quality management system
with specific technical and organizational measures to maintain information security, such as
physical and personnel safety by means of physical and virtual access protection or the encryption
of critical data.

The employees are informed of current company developments at information events. The
information required for day-to-day business is communicated either at regular meetings or
during individual meetings. Open communication that is based on dialog is valued.

Compliance withthe requirements of ISO/IEC 27001:2017 is assessed annually, both by intemal
audits and by an independent external certification body.

6.8 Statement on the appropriateness and effectiveness of the internal control and risk
management system (unaudited)

Based on the key elements in relation to the internal control and risk management system and
the information provided to us, the internal control system does not contain any critical intemal
control weaknesses that could have a material impact on the CENIT Group. Likewise, no matters
have arisenfromthe internal risk management or from ourinternal quality assurance procedures
that could jeopardize the achievement of the corporate objectives and that have not been
appropriately dealt with by our processes. The processes as part of the internal control system
and in relation to the risk management system are reviewed at regular intervals by the intemal
audit function (TQM) and in the course of external audits.

Overall, we are not aware of any circumstances that would indicate that the internal control
system and risk management system (which also includes the financial reporting processes) used
in the CENIT Group are not appropriate or did not function effectively as of the end of the
reporting period.



7 Other notes
7.1. Declaration on Corporate Governance (unaudited)

The Management Board and Supervisory Board of the Company have issued the corporate
governance statementfor 2022 prescribed by Sec. 289f HGB and/or Sec. 315d HGB and have
made it available onthe homepage at: https://www.cenit.com/en_EN/investor-
relations/corporate-governance.html.

7.2. Non-financial group statement (CSR or sustainability report) (unaudited)

The Management Board will prepare the non-financial group statement prescribed by
Sec. 315b HGB and make it available permanently on the homepage by 30 April 2023 at:
https://www.cenit.com/en_EN/investor-relations/corporate-governance.html.

8 Explanations of the Management Board on the disclosures pursuant to
Secs.289aand 315aHGB

(1) Composition of issued capital

The capital stock of CENIT AG amounts to EUR 8,367,758.00 as of 31 December 2022.
(2) Restrictions on voting rights or the transfer of shares

There are no restrictions on voting rights or the transfer of shares.

(3) Equity investmentsin capital that exceed 10% of voting rights

Direct or indirect equity investments in issued capital that exceed 10% of voting rights are
presented in the notes to the annual financial statements and in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements of CENIT AG.

(4) Shares with special rights that grant control
There are no shares with special rights that grant control.

(5) Type of voting right control if employees have equity investments in capital and do not
exercise their control rights directly

There are no voting right controls for employees who have equity investments in capital.

(6) Statutory requirements and regulationsin the articles of incorporation and bylaws
concerning the appointment and dismissal of Management Board members and amendment
of the articles of incorporation and bylaws

The appointment and dismissal of Management Board members is regulated in Sec. 84 AktG.
Furthermore, Article 7 Nos. 1 and 2 of the articles of incorporation and bylaws states that the
Supervisory Board appoints the Management Board members and determines the number of
Management Board members. Pursuant to Article 7 No. 1 of the articles of incorporation and
bylaws, the Management Board comprises at least two persons.

The provisions to amend the articles of incorporation and bylaws are regulated in Secs. 133,
179 AktG. Additionally, Article 21 No. 1 of the articles of incorporation and bylaws states that
resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders require a simple majority of the votes cast
and, where required, the simple controllinginterest, unless legal regulations or the articles of



incorporation and bylaws prescribe otherwise. The Supervisory Board is entitled pursuant to
Article 16 of the articles of incorporation and bylaws to make amendments to the articles of
incorporation and bylaws that only affect the version.

(7) Authorization of the Management Board to issue and buy back shares

Unless expressly authorized by law, the Company requires special authority by the General
Meeting of Shareholders pursuanttoSec. 71 (1) No. 8 AktGin order to purchase and use treasury
shares.

The Management Board of CENIT AG assures that the combined (group) management report
presents the course of business including the business result and the positionof the Group and of
the Companyin a way that provides atrue and fair view and describes the material opportunities
and risks.

(8) Company arrangements that are subjectto the condition of a change of control as a result
of a takeover offerand resulting effects

There are no material company arrangements that are subject to the condition of a change of
control as a result of a takeover offer.

(9) Company compensation arrangements for the event of a takeover offer with the members
of the Management Board or employees

There are no company compensation arrangements for the event of a takeover offer with the
members of the Management Board or employees.

Stuttgart, 31 March 2023

CENIT Aktiengesellschaft

The Management Board

i WY

Peter Schneck Axelle Mazé
Spokesperson, Management Board  Member, Management Board






CENIT Aktiengesellschaft, Stuttgart

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (in accordance with IFRS)

in EURk

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Intangibleassets

Property, plantand equipment
Investments recognized at equity
Other financial assets

Deferred taxassets
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade receivables

Receivables from investments recognized at equity

Contract assets
Current tax assets

Other receivables
Cashandcash equivalents
Other financial assets
CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

F1
F2
F3
F4
F5

F6
F7
F7

F8
F10

F9
F11
F12

31 Dec. 2022

37,626
13,371
59
9,988
1,017
62,061

72
26,032
3,891

1,639
2,222

425
19,914
10,781
64,976

127,037

31 Dec. 2021

10,268
11,884
60
3,184
886
26,282

15
24,713
2,873

2,133
2,453

493
26,361
7,482
66,523

92,805



CENIT Aktiengesellschaft, Stuttgart

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (in accordance with IFRS)
31 Dec. 2022

in EURk
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY

Subscribed capital

Capital reserves

Currency translationreserve
Legal reserve

Other revenue reserves
Profitcarryforward

Net income of the Group for the year

Equity attributableto shareholders of the parent company

Non-controllinginterests
TOTAL EQUITY

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Other liabilities

Pension obligation
Non-current leaseliabilities
Other financial liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Liabilities to banks
Trade payables

Liabilities to investments recognized at equity

Other liabilities

Current leaseliabilities

Current income tax liabilities
Other provisions

Contract liabilities

CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

F13
F13
F13
F13
F13
F13
F13

F17
F19
F14
F4
F5

F21
F16
F16

F17
F14
F15
F15
F18

8,368
1,058
1,397
418
13,787
11,522
6,283
42,833
1,950
44,783

511
844
8,144
1,660
2,830
13,989

21,353
11,163
26

13,273
3,349
558

74
18,469
68,265

127,037

31 Dec. 2021

8,368
1,058
1,159
418
14,076
13,547
4,251
42,877
768
43,645

723
1,397
7,947

10
10,077

6,044
28

13,893
2,674
480

85
15,877
39,083

92,805



CENIT Aktiengesellschaft, Stuttgart

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT (in accordance with IFRS)

in EURk

1. REVENUE

2. Other income
Operating performance
Cost of materials
Personnel expenses

5.  Amortization of intangibleassets and depreciation of
property, plantand equipment

6.  Other expenses

7. Valuationallowanceontrade receivables

NET OPERATING INCOME (EBIT)
8.  Other interestandsimilarincome
9. Interest and similar expenses

10. Financialinstruments atfair valuethrough profitor loss

NET PROFIT OR LOSS FOR THE PERIOD
BEFORE TAXES (EBT)

11. Income taxes

NET INCOME OF THE GROUP FOR THE YEAR

thereof attributableto the shareholders of CENIT

thereof attributableto non-controllinginterests

Earnings per sharein EUR
basic

diluted

El
E3

E4
ES

F1+F2

E7

E8

E9
E9
E10

E11

E12
E12

71,516
67,266

5,632
12,612

374
3,272

2022

162,152
1,359
163,511

157,026

-180

6,305

2,899

9,204
2,595

6,609
6,283
326

0.75
0.75

2021

146,071
2,321
148,392
68,595
59,686

5,044
8,910

142,235

77

6,234

161
434
281

6,515
2,161

4,354
4,251
103

0.51
0.51



CENIT Aktiengesellschaft, Stuttgart
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (in accordance with IFRS)
in EUR k

2022 2021

Net income of the Group for the year 6.609 4354
Other comprehensive income
Items that will bereclassified to the income statement in the future
under certain circumstances

Currency translation reserve of foreign subsidiaries F13 238 218
Items that will notbe reclassified to the income statement in the
future

Actuarial gains/losses from defined benefit obligationsand

similar obligations F13 584 359

Deferred taxes recognized on other comprehensive income

F13 -155 -76

Other comprehensive income after tax 667 501
Total comprehensive income 7276 4.855
thereof attributableto the shareholders of CENIT 6,950 4,752
thereof attributableto non-controllinginterests 326 103



CENIT Aktiengesellschaft, Stuttgart
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (in accordance with IFRS)

in EURk

As of 31 Dec. 2020

Reclassification of net
income of the Group

Total comprehensive
income

Dividend distribution
As of 31 Dec. 2021

Reclassification of net
income of the Group
from prior year

Total comprehensive
income

Addition to basis of
consolidation
Dividends paid to
minority interests
Step-up of minority
interests

Dividend distribution

As of 31 Dec. 2022

Subscrib

ed

capital

8,368

8,368

8,368

Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent company

Capital Currency Revenue reserves Profit Net Equity Non-
resenes  translation Legal Other carryfor incomeof attributable cgntrolling
reserve ward the Group to interests
reserve reserves
for the shareholders
year of CENIT AG
1,058 941 418 13,793 15,161 2,318 42,057 666
2,318 -2,318
218 283 4,251 4,752 103
-3,933 -3,933
1,058 1,159 418 14,076 13,547 4,251 42,877 768
4,251 -4,251 0
238 429 6,283 6,950 326
2,260
-523
-718 -718 -881
-6,276 -6,276

1,058 1,397 418 13,787 11,522 6,283 42,833 1,950

Total

42,723

4,855
-3,933
43,645

7,276

2,260

-523

-1,600
-6,276

44,783



CENIT Aktiengesellschaft, Stuttgart
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (in accordance with IFRS)
in EUR k 2022

Cash flow from operating activities
Netincome of the Group for the year 6,609
Adjusted for:

Amortization ofintangible assets and depreciation of property, plantand equipment = 5,632

Gains/losses on disposals of assets -3
Finance income/cost -2,899
Tax expenses 2,595
Increase/decrease in other non-current liabilities and long-term provisions -196
Increase/decrease in other non-current assets -1,147
Interest paid -247
Interest received 1
Income taxes paid -2,092
Increase/decrease in trade receivables and other current non-cash assets -81
Increase/decrease in inventories -54
Increase/decrease in current liabilities and short-term provisions 3,370
Net cash flows from operating activities 11,488

Cash flow from investing activities

Cash paid for purchase of property, plantand equipmentand intangible assets -1,304
Cash paid for purchase of shares in fully consolidated entities (net cash outflow) -27,927
Cash paid forinvestments 0
Income from the sale of property, plantand equipment 5

Net cash used in investing activities -29,226

Cash flow from financing activities

Cash repayments of lease liability -3,605
Cash paid to shareholders -6,276
Dividends paid to minority interests -523
Bank liabilities borrowed 23,000
Bank liabilities repaid -1,650
Net cash used in financing activities 10,946
Net increase/decrease in cash and cash equivalents -6,792
Change in cash and cash equivalents due to foreign exchange differences 347
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period 26,359
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period (F10) 19,914

2021

4,354

5,044

-281

2,161
275

-25

-2,217

-11,371

10,290
8,236

-646

-250

-892

-3,286
-3,933

-7,219

125
178
26,056
26,359



Notes to the consolidated financial statements of CENIT
AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT for 2022

A Commercial register and purpose of the Group

The parent company of the Group, CENIT Aktiengesellschaft (hereinafter the “Company” or
“CENIT”), has its registered offices at Industriestrasse 52 - 54, 70565 Stuttgart, Germany, and is
filed in the commercial register of Stuttgart local court, department B, under No. 19117. The
shares of CENIT are publicly traded on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange (Prime Standard).

The business purpose of the group entities is to provide all types of services in the field of
introducing and operatinginformation technology and to sell and marketinformation technology
software and systems. With afocus on product lifecycleand document management solutions as
well as IT outsourcing, CENIT and its subsidiaries (hereinafter the “CENIT Group”) in its business
segments PLM (Product Lifecycle Management) and EIM (Enterprise Information Management)
offer tailored consultancy services from a single source. The focus of the CENIT Group is on
business process optimization and computer-aided design and development technologies.

B Accounting principles

The consolidated financial statements of CENIT Aktiengesellschaft, Stuttgart, are prepared in
accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted inthe EU and
in compliance with the supplementary provisions of commercial law that apply pursuant to Sec.
315e (1) HGB [“Handelsgesetzbuch”: German Commercial Code]. They will be approved for
publication on 31 March 2023.

The consolidatedfinancial statements are prepared in euro. To aid clarity, allfigures are presented
inthousands of euro (EUR k). The end of the reporting period is 31 December of any given year.

Forthe classificationforthe statement of financial position, a distinction is made betweencurrent
and non-current assets and liabilities; in the notes, they are broken down in detail by their term
to maturity. The income statement is classified using the nature of expense method.

The assets have been measured on the basis of historical cost (acquisition cost principle), apart
from financial assets that are held for trading or are classified on initial recognition as finandial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and are thus measured at fair value.

The annual financial statements of the entitiesincluded in the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on the basis of the parent company’s uniform accounting policies as of the
end of its reporting period.

Amended or new IFRSs issued by the EU and the resulting presentation, recognition
and measurement changes

Compared with the consolidated financial statements as of 31 December 2021, the following
standards and interpretations were mandatory for the first time but did not have any material
effects on the consolidated financial statements.



e AmendmentstoIFRS 3: Amendmentsto References to the Conceptual Frameworkin
IFRS Standards

e AmendmentstolAS 37: Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfillinga Contract

o AmendmentstoIAS 16: Property, Plantand Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use

e AmendmentstolFRS 1, IFRS 9, IFRS 16 and IAS 41: Annual Improvements

Upcoming IFRS amendments

The following IFRSs adopted by the EUwere issued by the end of the reporting period but are not
mandatory until laterreporting periods. The CENIT Group decided not to early adopt the standards
and interpretations that are not mandatory until later reporting periods. No material effects are
expected from applying these standards.

e |FRS17: Insurance Contracts

e AmendmentstolAS 1: Disclosure of Accounting Policies

e Amendmentsto IAS 8: Definition of Accounting Estimates

e AmendmentstolAS 12: Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arisingfrom a
Single Transaction

e AmendmentstoIFRS 17: Initial Application of IFRS 17 and IFRS9 — Comparative
Information

The other published standards not yet endorsed by the EU are likewise not expected to have a
material impact on the assets, liabilities, financial position or performance of the Group.

e |FRS 14: Regulatory Deferral Accounts
e AmendmentstolAS1: Presentation of Financial Statements
e Amendmentsto|FRS 16: Leases

o Consolidation principles

1. Consolidation principles and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the parent and of the
entities it controls (its subsidiaries).

CENIT exercises control when CENIT has power over the investee, is exposed to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect the amount of those retums
through its power over the investee. If CENIT does not hold the majority of voting rights, it still
controls the investee if it has the unilateral ability to direct relevant activities of the investee
through its voting rights in practice.

Subsidiaries are fullyconsolidated fromthe date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control by the parent
ceases.

As of 31 May 2022, CENIT acquired 74.9% of ISR Information Products AG, basedin Braunschweig.
ISR Information Products AG offers software products and IT solutions in the areas of analytics,
process digitalization and application management at six locations in Germany. The majority
interestisallocated tothe EIMsegmentand aimsto bundle the competencies of both companies
in the field of document logistics and information management.



The purchase price amounted to EUR 27,880 k and comprises the fixed purchase price installment
of EUR 28,605 k as well as options with rights and obligations to acquire the remaining 25.1% of
the shares. The cash outflow on account of this acquisition amounted to EUR 26,327 kto date and
stemmed from the outflow through the payment of the fixed purchase price installment and
inflow of the acquired cash and cash equivalents of ISR Information Products AG amounting to
EUR 2,278 k. The ancillary costs incurred in connection with the acquisition (EUR 171 k) were
recognized in other expenses.

ISR Information Products AG recorded revenue of EUR 23,489 k in the 2022 reporting period, of
which EUR 13,572 k relates to the period of belongingto the Group. It has generated a profit of
EUR 841 k since belongingto the Group. The theoretical presentation of the profits and losses of
ISR Information Products AGduringthe reportingperiodasif the business combination had taken
place at the beginning of the current reporting period is impracticable, as assets and liabilities
were for the most part not remeasured as of 1January 2022.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of ISR Information Products AG as of the
acquisition date and the corresponding carryingamounts directly before the acquisition date are

as follows:

in EUR k Fair value as of the Carryingamount
acquisition date to date

Intangible assets 7,038 34
Property, plantand equipmentand financial 3,644 3,644
assets
Trad? receivables, contract assets and other 3,942 3,942
receivables
Prepaid expenses 794 794
Deferred tax assets 0 25
Total assets 15,418 8,439
Lease liabilities 2,911 2,911
Trad? !:)ayables, otherliabilities and other 2314 2314
provisions
Deferred tax liabilities 2,076 0
Deferredincome 1,390 1,390
Total liabilities 8,691 6,615
Total netassets acquired (74.9%) 6,743 3,071
Consideration (excluding ancillary costs) 27,880
Goodwill arising from the acquisition 21,137



The non-controlling interest was recognized at EUR 2,260 k as of the acquisition date, thus
corresponding to 25.1% of net assets.

Because the purchase price exceeded net assets, the acquisition of ISR Information Products AG
resulted in goodwill. The consideration paid also includes amounts that take into account the
benefits from expected synergies, revenue growth, future market development and the existing
labor force of ISR Information Products AG. These benefits are not disclosed separately from
goodwill, as they do not meet the disclosure requirements for intangible assets.

The new goodwill arisingfrom the business combinationis not recognized under German tax law
rulesand is thus not deductible fortax purposes. Deferred taxes on the goodwill did not arise as
part of the purchase price allocation and will not arise in future either.

In May 2022, CENIT acquired an additional share of 49% in Coristo GmbH, increasing its interest
from 51% to 100%.

in EUR k

Carrying amount of non-controlling interests acquired 882
Purchase price paid to non-controlling interests 1,600
Drop in equity of the shareholders of the parent -718

The drop in equity of the shareholders of the parent led to a EUR 718 k reduction in revenue
reserves.

The Group’s investments in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method.

Intercompany sales, income and expenses and all intercompany assets and liabilities as well as
equity between the consolidated entities were eliminated in full as part of the consolidation.



The following entities have been included in the consolidated financial statements of CENIT in
accordance with IFRS 10 or IFRS 11/1AS 28 respectively (shareholdings pursuant to Sec. 313 (2)
HGB). With the exception of the aforementioned acquisitions, the shareholdings are unchanged
on the prior year.

Subscrib
No. Entity Curren % eq Date of pur.chase
cy capital accounting
EUR
1 CENIT Aktiengesellschaft EUR 8 368 Parent
Stuttgart, Germany
2 CENIT (Schweiz) AG CHF 100 313 26 October 1999

Effretikon, Switzerland

CENIT NORTHAMERICA Inc.
3 Auburn Hills, USA usD 100 28 29 November 2001

4 CE'.\“T SRL . RON 100 105 22 May 2006
lasi, Romania

5 CENIT France SARL EUR 100 10 26 April 2007
Toulouse, France

CENIT Japan K.K. Tokyo,

6 YEN 100 470 13 May 2011
Japan

7 Coristo GmbH Mannheim, EUR 100 25 1 January 2016
Germany

3 KEONYS SAS Suresnes, EUR 100 155 1 July 2017
France

9 KEONYS Belglqge SPRL EUR 100 19 1 July 2017
Waterloo, Belgium

10 KEONYS NL BV Houten, EUR 100 18 1 July 2017

Netherlands

CENIT Software Technology

11  (Suzhou) Co. Ltd. CNY 100 462 30 June 2020
Suzhou, China
ISR Information Products AG

12 . EUR 74.9 170 31 May 2022
Braunschweig, Germany

13 CenProCSAlRliance GmbH EUR 333 150 16 November 2007
Stuttgart, Germany



2. Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition
ismeasured as the fairvalue of the assets given, equityinstrumentsissued and liabilities incurred
or assumed at the date of exchange.

Changesinthe Group’sinterestinasubsidiarythatdo notresultinaloss of control are accounted
for as an equity transaction.

The goodwill resulting from the acquisition of a subsidiary or of an entity under common control
isinitially measuredat cost, being the excess of the cost of the acquisition overthe Group’s share
in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities.

Afterinitial recognition,goodwillis measured at cost less accumulatedimpairment losses. For the
purpose of the impairment test to be carried out annually, the goodwill acquired as part of the
acquisition is allocated from the acquisition date to the Group’s cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the business combination orthat are created as a result of the business
combination.

Each impairment loss on goodwill is recognized directly in profit or loss. Any impairment loss
recognized for goodwill can no longer be reversed in future periods.

3. Investment in a joint venture

CENIT has held a 33.33% investment in a joint venture, CenProCS AlRliance GmbH (CenProCS),
since 16 November 2007. A contractual agreement has been signed by the shareholders, CENIT
AG Stuttgart, PROSTEP AG Darmstadt and CS Sl LePlessis Robinson, France, on the provision of
packaged services by the shareholders in the area of information technology as well as the
coordination and marketing of these servicesto amajor customer. CenProCSpasses on the orders
froma majorcustomerexclusively toits shareholders, does not have any business activities of its
own and is thus not exposed to any entrepreneurial risks directly. CenProCS is subject to the
common control of the shareholders.

The CENIT Group accounts for its investment in CenProCS using the equity method. Under the
equity method, the investmentin CenProCSis carried inthe statement of financial position at cost
plus post-acquisition changesinthe CENIT Group’s share of CenProCS’s equity. During formation
of the entity, CENIT AG made a cash contribution of EUR 50 k.

The financial statements of CenProCS are prepared with the same end of the reporting period as
the financial statements of the CENIT Group. Where necessary, adjustments are made to comply
with the Group’s uniform accounting policies.

Afterapplication of the equity method to the CENIT Group’sinvestmentin CenProCS, the parent
company determines whether it is necessary to recognize an additional impairment loss on the
investment. The Group determines at the end of each reporting period and as the need arises
whetherthereisany objective evidence thatthe investmentin the jointventure isimpaired. For
example,objective evidence exists in the case of payment difficulties. If thisis the case, the Group
recognizes the difference between the fair value of the investment in CenProCS and the cost of
the investment as an impairment loss in the income statement.



4, Foreign currency translation

The presentation currency is the parent company’s functional currency. The functional currency
concept is applied to translate the financial statements prepared in foreign currency by the
entitiesincludedin the basisof consolidation. The functional currency of the group entities is their
respective local currency. Financial statements prepared in functional currency are translated to
the Group’s presentation currency using the modified closing rate method. Assets and liabilities
are translated at the closing rate, with equity translated at the historical rate and income and
expenses at the annual average rate.

The differencearising from translation of the individual financial statementsis recognized directly
in equity. A figure of EUR 238 k was recognized directly in equity in the reporting period (prior
year: EUR 218 k). When subsidiaries are sold, the exchange differences recognized in equity
relating to these entities are released to profit or loss.

Foreign currency transactions are generally translated at the current rate as of the transaction
date. At the end of the reporting period, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated to the functional currency at the annual closing rate. Non-monetary
itemsthat were measured at their historical cost are translatedat the rate of the transaction date,
while non-monetary items that were measured attheirfairvalue are translated at the rate which
was current at the time the fair value was determined. Differences arising from currency
translation at closing rates are recognized in profit or loss. Exchange losses of EUR 200 k overall
were recognized in profit or loss in the reporting period (prior year: EUR 21 k).

The following exchange rates were used for currency translation:

in EUR Closing rate Annual average rate

31 Dec. 2022 31 Dec. 2021 2022 2021
CHF 0.9847 1.0331 1.0047 1.0811
usD 1.0666 1.1326 1.0530 1.1827
RON 4.9495 4.9490 4.9313 4.9215
YEN 140.66 130.38 138.03 129.88
CNY 7.3582 7.1947 7.0788 7.6282

D Accounting policies

Purchased intangible assets with finite useful lives

Purchased intangible assets with finite useful lives (mainly software) are recognized at cost less
accumulated amortizationand impairment. Amortizationof intangible assetsnot acquired as part
of a business combination is performed systematically using the straight-line method over the
expected economic useful life, which is generally three years.

In the case of intangible assets acquired for consideration in connection with a business
combination (mainly customer bases, software, technologies, bans on competition), the
acquisition costs of the intangible assets are equal to their fair value. They are reduced by



amortization overthe expected useful life using the straight-line method. The useful life is fiveto
twelve years for the identified customer bases and ten years for software and technologies. In the
case of a ban on competition, the useful life is determined on the basis of the contractual
regulations. CENIT determines the useful life based on the expected periodin which cash inflows
can be generated fromthe respective customer base. The useful life of technologies is ten years,
whileitisoneyear for the identified order backlogand generally three years for otherintangible
assets.

Purchased intangible assets with indefinite useful lives (goodwill)

Purchased intangible assets with indefinite useful lives (goodwill) are recognized at cost less
accumulated impairment. These intangible assets are not amortized. They are tested for
impairmentatleastonce ayearforthe individualassetoratthe level of the cash-generating unit.
Impairment testing of the goodwill is based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on 5-year financial plans prepared by management (discounted cash flow
method).

As inthe prioryear, there are no intangible assets with indefinite useful lives as of the reporting
date except for goodwill.

Internally generated intangible assets

Internally generatedintangible assets are not capitalized due to non-fulfillment of the cumulative
criteria in 1AS 38.57. Like costs incurred for research activities, non-capitalizable development
costs are also recognized as an expense in the period incurred.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recognized at cost, net of accumulated straight-line
depreciation and/or accumulated impairment losses. Cost comprises expenses directly
attributable tothe acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are only recognizedinthe carrying
amount of the assetor as a separate assetifitis probable that future economicbenefits that are
attributable tothe asset will flowto the Group and the cost of the asset can be reliably measured.
Maintenance costs are recorded directly as expenses. Items of property, plantand equipment are
depreciated on the basis of theirestimated useful lives. The useful life of plantand machinery s
three to five years, and five to ten years for furniture and fixtures. Buildings on the Group’s
premises are depreciated over a period of 33 years, or eight to 15 years for land improvements.
Buildings on third-party land (leasehold improvements) are depreciated over the terms of the
lease agreements. No material residual values had to be considered when determining the
amount of depreciation.

Residual values, depreciation and amortization methods and the useful life of property, plantand
equipment and intangible assets are reviewed annually and adjusted if changes take place. A
write-down to the recoverable amountis thus performed in accordance with IAS36.59 if the
carryingamount is higher. Any changes required are taken into account prospectively as changes
in estimates.

Intangible assets or property, plantand equipment are derecognized either upon disposal or when
no further economic benefits are expected from their further use or disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal



proceeds and the carryingamount of the asset) isincluded inthe income statementin the period
in which the asset is derecognized in the items for other income or other expenses.

An impairmenttest is performed at the end of each reporting period forall intangible assetsand
property, plant and equipment if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the assets may not be recoverable. Wheneverthe carryingamount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss for items of property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets carried at cost.

Areversal ofimpairmentlosses recognized in prioryearsis recorded forassets, with the exception
of goodwill, when thereis an indication that the impairmentlosses no longerexist or could have
decreased. The reversal is posted as a gain in the income statement. The increased carrying
amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
amortization or depreciation, if no impairment loss had been recognized for the assetin prior
years.

Leases

As the lessee

On the commencement date or when a contract containing a lease component is amended, the
Group breaks down the contractually agreed consideration based on the relative stand-alone
selling prices. Atthe commencement date, the Group recognizes a right-of-use assetand a lease
liability. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which corresponds to the initial
measurement of the leaseliability, adjusted for paymentsmade on or before the commencement
date, plus any initial direct costs as well as the estimated cost of dismantling or removing the
underlyingasset ortorestore the underlying asset or the site on whichitislocated, less any lease
incentivesreceived. The right-of-use asset is then depreciated from the commencement date to
the end of the lease term using the straight-line method, unless ownership of the underlying asset
istransferredtothe Group atthe end of thelease termorthe cost of the right-of-use asset reflects
that the Group will exercise a purchase option. In this case, the right-of-use asset is depreciated
overthe useful life of the underlying asset, which is determined in line with the rules for property,
plantand equipment. Additionally, the right-of-use asset is continuouslycorrected forimpairment
losses, where necessary, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability. The lease
liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments outstanding as of the
commencementdate, discounted using the Group’sincremental borrowing rate. To calculate the
incremental borrowingrate for matching terms and collateral, CENIT obtains interest rates from
external financing sources and makes asset-specific adjustments as necessary.

The lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:

— fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments

—variable lease payments thatdepend onanindex ora(ninterest)rate, initially measured using
the index or (interest) rate as at the commencement date

— lease payments for a renewal option, if CENIT is reasonably certain that it will exercise this
option.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is
remeasured if the future lease payments change due toa change in an index or (interest) rate, if



the Group changesits view of exercising a renewal ortermination option oranin-substance fixed
lease payment changes. In the statement of financial position, the Group presents right-of-use
assets underproperty, plantand equipment.The leaseliabilities are presentedin current liabilities
or non-current liabilities depending on their remaining term.

CENIT has decided nottorecognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low-value
assets orshort-term leases.The Group recognizesthe lease payments linked to those leases as an
expense over the term of the lease using the straight-line method.

Financial instruments

A financial instrumentis a contract that givesrise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities include
primary financial instruments, such as cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and trade
payables, otherloans originated or borrowed and otherreceivables and liabilities, and derivative
financial instruments. Financial liabilities generally give rise to the right to receive settlement in
cash or another financial asset. Financial instruments are recognized as soon as CENIT becomes
party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

Regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized as of the trading date.

Dependingonthe Group’sbusinessmodelfor controlling the assets and the question whether the
contractual cash flows of the financial instruments are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding, the existing financial instruments are classified either ‘at
amortized cost’ (AC), ‘at fair value through profit or loss’ (FVTPL) or ‘at fair value recognized
through other comprehensive income’ (FVOCI) and measured accordingly.

The fair value corresponds to the market value. If there is no active market, the fair value is
calculated using market, cost or income-based measurement methods. Observable inputs are
kept as high as possible, while unobservable inputs are kept as low as possible.

The recognition and measurement of financial instruments in the AC and FVTPL categories is
explained in detail below, as these categories are materially important for the consolidated
financial statements. If there are financial instruments in the FVOCI category, the required
disclosures are made in sections E and F.

Financial instruments measured at amortized cost (AC)

The Group measures financial instruments at amortized cost if both of the following conditions
are met:

o Thefinancial assetorthe financial liability is held within abusiness model whose
objective isto control assetsand

e The contractual terms of the financial assetorfinancial liability give rise on specified
datesto cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Financial assets orliabilities at amortized cost are measured using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Financial assets are subject toimpairment. Gainsand lossesare recognized through profit
or loss in the period when the asset or liability is derecognized, modified or impaired.

Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)



Financial instrumentsare classified at fairvalue through profitorlossif they do not meetall of the
criteria for classification at amortized cost (AC) or at fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI).

Changes in fair value are recognized in the income statement, unless they are part of a hedging
relationship. Interest payments on the financial liability are also taken into account.

Gainsand lossesforwhichthe change in fairvalueis attributableto achanged defaultrisk for the
liability are recognizedin other comprehensiveincome. Future changes do not lead to recognition
in the income statement. Instead, they are transferred to revenue reserves when the financial
liability is derecognized.

Fair value measurement

The measurement of fairvalue including the corresponding disclosuresin the notes is carried out
inaccordance with the rulesinIFRS 13. The fairvalueis the price that would be received to sellan
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date.The assets and liabilities measured at fair values must be categorized intothe
three levels of the fair value hierarchy described below, based on the lowest-level input that is
significant for the fair value measurement as a whole.

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2: Inputs otherthan quoted market prices that are observable either directly or indirectly
Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability

In Level 1, fair value is measured using quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets foridentical
assets or liabilities that CENIT can access at the measurement date.

In Level 2, fair value is measured using valuation techniques based on information other than
quoted prices categorized into Level 1 but that are observable either directly or indirectly.

In Level 3, fair value is measured using valuation techniques that include unobservable inputs.

In the case of assets and liabilities recognized at fair value on a recurring basis in the finandial
statements, the Group determines whether reclassifications between the hierarchy levels have
taken place by examining the classification at the end of each reporting period (based on the
lowest-level input that is significant for the fair value measurement as a whole).

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are non interest bearing and are recognized at the transaction price less
impairmentlosses due to their short-term nature. Impairment losses are calculated based on the
expected credit losses model as defined in IFRS 9. Based on the simplified method used, a loss
allowance equal to the amount of the expected loss was recognized for the remaining term of
trade receivables and contract assets, regardless of their credit quality. Based on the weighted
probability of default and taking into account prospective information, a loss allowance of 0.9%
(prioryear: 1.3%) was recognized on the receivables as of the end of thereporting period. Because
of the economicdownturnin ourtarget marketsand the resulting financial difficulties of individual
customers, management considers thatthereis still an increased defaultrisk as of 31 December
2022. To account for this risk, a risk markdown of 5.0% (prioryear: 5.0%) was recorded on trade



receivables past due by more than 90 days, as in 2021. Thanks to CENIT’s robust customer

structure, there is still no excessive risk of default when receivables are past due by between 30
and 90 days.

Contract assets

Unlike trade receivables, contract assets are dependent onthe occurrence of a future condition.
Impairment losses on contract assets are calculated in line with the same principles as for trade
receivables.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are cash, checks and on-demand bank balances. These are recognized
at nominal value.

Lease liabilities
Lease liabilities are recognized at the present value of the outstanding minimum lease payments.
Trade payables and other financial liabilities

Trade payables and other financial liabilities are due in the short term and are recognized at
nominal value.

Liabilities to banks

Interest-bearing bank loans including overdrafts are recognized at the pay-out amount received
less the directly allocable issuing costs on the date of initial recognition. Finance costs, including
premiums payable onrepayment or settlement, are recognized as an interest expense using the
effective interest method andincrease the carrying amount of the instrumenttothe extentthat
it will only lead to the outflow of payments at a date in the future.

Impairment losses
IFRS 9 has introduced amodel for calculatingimpairmentlosses based on expected creditlosses.

For cash and cash equivalents, this practical expedientis usedforfinancialinstruments witha low
credit risk as of the end of the reporting period.

The probabilities of default used to calculate expected credit losses on trade receivables and
contract assets comprise individual and constantly updateddata regarding counterparty risk, such
as the payment history and company and industry data, taking forward-looking assumptions into
account. If there is objective evidence that a default event will occur, the individual default risk is
taken into account in the impairment loss alongside expected credit losses. Objective evidence
includes, forexample, significant financial difficulties of the debtor, payment default and delayed
payments, downgraded credit rating, insolvency and other observable data that indicate a
considerable reduction in expected payments. CENIT checks at the end of each reporting period
whether the credit risk of the receivable has changed and adjusts the valuation allowance as
necessary.

Inventories

The inventories reported are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Costs of
conversion are determined on the basis of directly allocable costs. Net realizable value is the



estimated sales proceeds less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

Pension obligations and similar obligations

Pension obligations and similar obligations result from obligations to employees. The
contributions to statutory pensioninsurance are generally classified as defined contribution plans
inaccordance with IAS 19. The amounts payable in connectionwith defined contribution plans are
expensed as soon as the obligation to pay arises and are reported as personnel expenses. The
exception to this rule involves pension commitments at CENIT Switzerland.

The LOB pension plansin placeat CENIT Switzerland qualify as defined benefit plansin accordance
with 1AS 19 due to the statutory minimum interest and conversion rate guarantees. Likewise, the
pension paymentthatthe Group must pay in France when an employee enters retirement must
be recognized as a defined benefit planinaccordance with IAS 19. The cost of providing benefits
under these benefit plansis determined using the projected unit credit method. The plan assets
available to coverthe pensionobligations are offset againstthe pension obligations in accordance
with the rulesin IAS 19.

Provisions

Provisions are reportedat the best estimate of the amount requiredto settle the obligation. They
are created forlegal or constructive obligations resulting from past events whenitis probable that
the settlement of the obligation will lead to an outflow of resources and the amount of the
obligation can be reliably estimated. Where the Group expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a
separate asset, but only when the reimbursementis virtually certain. The expense relating to the
provision is presented in the income statement net of any reimbursement. Provisions are
discounted where the remainingtermislongerthanone year. The discountrate chosenis a pre-
tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. Discount rate adjustments are recorded as
an interest expense.

Current tax assets and liabilities

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods should be measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The current tax
expense is determined on the basis of the taxable income for the year. Taxable income differs
from the net profit taken from the consolidatedincome statement in that it does not include
expensesandincome that are nevertaxable ortax deductible oronly taxable ortax deductiblein
later years. The calculationis based on the tax rates and tax laws applicable as of the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred taxes

Deferred taxes are recorded on temporary differences between the tax base and the carrying
amountin the consolidated financial statements according to the balance-sheet-oriented liability
method described in IAS 12.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized in principle for all taxable temporary differences.



Deferred tax assets are recognized in principle for all deductible temporary differences, unused
taxlossesand unused tax assets to the extent thatitis probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences and the unused tax losses and unused tax
assets can be utilized.Inthe case of entities witha history of losses, deferred tax assets on unused
tax losses are recognizedonlyifitis probable (>50%) that the unused tax losses can be used in the
future in line with the business planning or in the amount at which deferred tax assets were
recognized.

The carrying amount of the deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow the benefit of part or all of that deferred tax assetto be utilized. Unrecognized
deferred tax assets are reassessed atthe end of each reporting period and are recognized to the
extentthat it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax assetto
be realized.

Deferred taxes on temporary differences are calculated at the tax rate that is expected to apply
forthe period whenthe assetisrealized orthe liabilityis settled. Deferredtax assets and deferred
tax liabilities are calculated according to the laws and regulations enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Income tax implications related to the items posted directly to equity are also recorded directly
under equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if the Group has a legally enforceable
rightto offset current tax assets and current tax liabilities and these relate toincome taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on the same taxable entity.

Revenue

CENIT generates revenue from the licensing of (standard) software (proprietary software and
third-party software), software updates (for proprietary software and third-party software), the
provision of IT services as well as the provision of consulting services for the planning,
implementation and optimization of business and IT processes. Revenue is also generated from
the sale of goods.

At CENIT, the different products are categorized according to the following contract types:

- Royalties—these encompass the revenue from software and software updates

- Fixed-price projects

- Sale of services—this encompasses revenue from service and consulting projects
- Sale of goods— thisencompasses revenue from hardware sales

Software licenses

Accordingto IFRS 15.31, revenue recognitionas the principal (on agross basis) orasthe agent (on
a netbasis) dependson the transfer of control of a promised good or service. To the extentthat
control is not transferred unequivocally from the respective software manufacturers to CENIT,
revenue from software licenses is recognized on a net basis.

Royalties from grantingtemporary licenses—to the extent that the software grants a rightto use
the intellectual property as of the date of granting the license — and income from the sale of



permanent licenses are recognized when the software has been provided to the customer
(revenue recognition at a pointin time).

Royalties from software as aservice are recognized pro rata over the termof rendering the service.
Royalties from software as a service are generally charged annually or quarterly in advance. The
advance payments received for future services are recognized as contract liabilities.

The average payment term of customers is between five and 60 days after invoicing.
Software updates

This includes revenue from contracts that grant the customeraccess to software updates. These
updates mainly involve error resolution, improved performance or adjustments to changed
framework conditions.

Royalties from software updates are recognized prorata overthe term of rendering the service.
Royalties from software updates are generally charged annually or quarterly in advance. The
advance payments received for future services are recognized as contract liabilities.

The average payment term of customers is between five and 60 days after invoicing.
Services (consulting & service)

Revenue from services charged on an hourly basis relates to consulting services, training,
application and user support. For these services, revenue recognition generally takes place
monthly based on hours worked.

If there are multiple element arrangements that comprise the sale of software licenses and
services, these are examined to determine if one or several performance obligations exist. If
several performance obligations are identified, the transaction price is allocated in proportion to
the relative stand-alone selling prices. CENIT bases its derivation on its own stand-alone selling
pricesor, if these are not available, on relative stand-alone selling prices for comparable industry
transactions. Revenue recognition for the separate performance obligations can take place at a
pointintime orovertime, depending on whenthe customer has control of the service. In general,
performance obligations that involve the sale of software meet the prerequisites for revenue
recognition at a point in time. Such contracts mainly relate to orders where CENIT offers
integrated consulting, software and after-sales services to the customer as an end-to-end
provider.

The average payment term of customers is between five and 60 days after invoicing.

Fixed-price projects

Income from contracts for which a fixed price was agreed (generally contracts for work in
connection with software programming orimplementation) is recognized in accordance with the
percentage of completion provided that the outcome can be measured reliably. When the
outcome can be measured reliably, contract revenue and contract costs associated with the
project should be recognized as part of the contract costs incurred for the work inrelation to the
expected contract costs by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the end
of the reporting period. Management came to the conclusion that this constitutes an appropriate
measure forthe percentage of completion of those performance obligations pursuantto IFRS 15.



Changesto contracted work, claims and bonus payments are included to the extent that they are
agreed with the customer in writing. If the outcome of a project cannot be measured reliably,
contract revenue is recognized only to the extent of contract costsincurred thatitis probable will
be recoverable. Contract costs are recognized as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.
If it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is
recognized as an expenseimmediately. An expected loss is recognized as an expense immediately
as soon as this loss is probable.

The average payment term of customers is between five and 60 days after invoicing.

Merchandise

Revenue from merchandise relates chiefly to the sale of end devices. Sales of merchandise are
recognized whenthe performance obligation has been met through delivery to the purchaser.

The average payment term of customers is between five and 60 days after invoicing.
Government grants

Government grants are recognized once there is reasonable assurance that the Group will meet
the conditions tied to the grant and receive the grants materially. Income is recognized in the
same way as expenses associated with the grants.

Dividends and interest income
Dividend income is recognized when the Group’s right to receive the payment is established.

Interestincome is recognized as the interest entitlement accrues (using the effective interest
method, i.e. the rate used to discount estimated future cash flows over the expected life of the
financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset).

Significant accounting judgments, assumptions and estimates

According to the opinion of the Management Board, the following judgments, assumptions and
estimates had the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated finandial
statements.



When recognizing revenue from third-party software licenses, there is a significant
judgmentindeterminingwhether CENITisa principal or an agent. The pronouncements
from the IFRS IC of December 2021 “Principal versus Agent: Software Reseller (IFRS 15)”
indicate thatforresellers of standard software, generally the status shouldbe assumed to
be that of an agent, and that this could become the practice for software resellers. To the
extent that CENIT does not have a comprehensive legal position in terms of control of
third-party software licenses, CENIT will recognize revenue on a net basis as the agent.
This provides reliable and more relevant information on the impact of the underlying
transactions. A differing assessment (recognition on a gross basis) would lead to the
adjustments presented in the following table:

Presentation of gross/net
recognition of software licenses 2022 2021
(principal/agent classification)

in EUR k Agent Principal Agent Principal
(reported)  classification (reported) classification
Revenue 162,152 171,719 146,071 155,130
Operating performance 163,511 173,078 148,392 157,451
Cost of materials 71,516 81,223 68,595 77,654
Gross profit 91,995 91,995 79,797 79,797
EBITDA 11,937 11,937 11,278 11,278
EBIT 6,305 6,305 6,234 6,234
EBIT margin 3.89% 3.51% 4.27% 4.02%

It is not permissible to recognize research costs as assets. Development costs may only be
recognized as an asset if all of the conditions for recognition pursuant to IAS 38.57 are
satisfied, if the research phase can be clearly distinguished from the development phase
and material expenditure can be allocated to the individual project phases without
overlap. On account of numerous interdependencies within development projects and
uncertainty about whether some products will reach marketability, some of the conditions
for recognition pursuantto IAS 38 are not currently satisfied based on CENIT's estimates.
Development costs of EUR 9,263 k (prior year: EUR 8,264 k) are consequently not
capitalized.

Assessing the separability of the performance obligations for multiple element
arrangements is based on an assessment of whether the different contractual
components have aseparate valueforthe customerand can be separated from the other
components. Itisthus subjectto certain discretionary decisions. This assessment s based
on the underlying contract and the knowledge on the date of signing the contract.
Allocating the transaction price to the different contractual components is likewise
subject to certain discretionarydecisions. Thisis particularly relevant for CENIT in relation
to the separation of software license services and software update services. CENIT bases



such decisions on its own stand-alone selling prices or, if these are not available, on
relative stand-alone selling prices for comparable industry transactions.

Determiningthe percentage of completionis subject to certain discretionary decisions
withregard to estimating the contract costs yetto be incurred. The assessmentis based
on the knowledge of the actual costs incurred and the expected total costs of the project
as of the end of the reporting period. Of the contract assets reported, a figure of
EUR 1,381 k (prior year: EUR 341 k) relates to ongoing projects.

The cost and present value of defined benefit obligations and the corresponding plan
assets is determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making
various assumptions that can differfrom actual developmentsin thefuture. Theseindude
the determination of the discount rates, future wage and salary increases, mortality rates
and future pensionincreases. Due to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying
assumptions and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to
changesinthese assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period. The net pensionobligation is EUR 844 k as of the end of the reporting period (prior
year: EUR 1,397 k).

The fair value of derivative financial instruments is measured using the respective
appropriate actuarial method. The underlying inputs such as volatility, interest rate and
cash flow forecasts may deviate from actual future developments. As of the end of the
reporting period, non-currentassets include along call option of EUR 5,657 k (prioryear:

EUR 0 k), while other non-current financial liabilities include a short put option of
EUR 1,660 k (prior year: EUR 0 k).

When determining provision amounts to be recognized, assumptions must be made on
the probability that there will be an outflow of resources. While these assumptions
constitute the best estimate of the situation underlying the matter, they are subject to
uncertainty because of the necessary use of assumptions. When measuring the
provisions, assumptions also have to be made on the amount of the possible outflow of
resources. A change inthe assumptions cantherefore lead to a difference inthe amount
of the provision. The use of estimates thus also leads to uncertainties here.

Determining the recoverable amount of the cash-generating units “PLM-SAP”, “KEONYS
FR” and “ISR” for impairment testing of the goodwill is based on inputs such as weighted
average cost of capital and value in use. Value in use is calculated using cash flow
projections based on 5-year financial plans prepared by management and on the
assumption of along-term growthrate of 1.0% (prioryear: 1.0%). The cash flows from the
expected revenue are derived from the strategic alighment of the respective business
division and the strategy of the CENIT Group using the expected product mix, and the
expected cash outflows are calculated based on this.



E Income statement

1. Revenue

The breakdown of revenue by business unit and region is presented in the segment reporting in
note H. Revenue is also broken down into the following categories:

Breakdown of sales by product/income type

in EUR k 2022 2021

Third-party software (including software updates) 88,139 88,543
CENIT consultingand service 55,719 39,822
CENIT software (including software updates) 17,710 17,688
Merchandise 584 18
Total 162,152 146,071

Breakdown of sales by contract type

in EUR k 2022 2021
Royalties 105,849 106,231
PLM 97,293 95,593
EIM 8,556 10,638
Sale of goods and services 54,292 37,964
PLM 35,225 32,580
EIM 19,067 5,384
Fixed-price projects 2,011 1,876
PLM 2,011 1,876
EIM 0 0
Total 162,152 146,071

The revenue results from ordinary activities.

As of the end of the reporting period, there are contract assets (F8) of EUR 1,639 k (prior year:
EUR 2,133 k) and contract liabilities (F17) of EUR 18,469 k (prior year: EUR 15,877 k). Contract
liabilities of EUR 15,877 k recognized atthe beginning of the year are included in full in income.

Development of orders

Orderintake in the CENIT Group amounted to EUR 167,595 k in the past 2022 reporting period
(prioryear: EUR 148,845 k). The orderbacklogas of 31 December 2022 amounted to EUR 46,054
k (prior year: EUR 40,610 k), which corresponds to the overall amount of the transaction price



allocated to the unfulfilled performance obligations as of 31 December 2022. Of the order backlog,
EUR 43,974 k (prior year: EUR 40,610 k) will be turned into sales within one year.

2. Research and development costs

In 2022, all of the product development was non-project-related, which does not, however, meet
the recognition criteriain IAS 38.57. The development costs incurredfor the projects of EUR 9,263
k (prior year: EUR 8,264 k) were recognized as an expense in the reporting period.

3. Other income

Otherincome breaks down as follows:

in EUR k 2022 2021

Income from tax credit 119 1,071
Lr:jcr:?:]?sirrzyv’;hfocszss-charging of marketingand 304 274
Income from exchange differences 222 281
Income from the reversal of provisions 638 579
Income from insurance refunds/damages 18 44
Income from pre-school subsidy 27 43
Income from the sale of non-currentassets 5 4
Otherincome 27 25
Total 1,359 2,321

The income from exchange differences stemmed in particular from the translation of US dollars
and Swiss francs.

The FZulG [“Gesetz zur steuerlichen Forderung von Forschung und Entwicklung” or
“Forschungszulagengesetz”: German Research Grant Act] dated 14 December 2019 introduced a
new research and development subsidyin Germanyinthe form of aresearch grant. In orderto be
entitled tothe grant, a company mustimplement subsidized research and development projects
that were commencedafter 1January 2020. All research and development projectsare eligible to
the extent that they can be allocated to one or several of these categories: basic research,
industrial research or experimental development. The research grant amounts to 25% of the
eligible expenses. The tax creditis takeninto account by creditingitto the corporate tax liability
or — if it cannot be credited in full —by payment of the receivable. In 2022, CENIT AG reported
income of EUR 65 k from the research grant for 2022 (prior year: EUR 720 k).

In France, entities are granted government grants, termed ‘research and development tax credit
(CIR)’. The R&D tax creditamounts to 30% of the qualifying expenses. These include expenses for
basic research as well as applied research and development costs. The tax credit is taken into
account by creditingitto the corporate tax liability or—if it cannot be credited infull—by payment



of the receivable. In 2022, KEONYS SAS reported income of EUR 50 k from this tax credit (prior
year: EUR 350 k) in otherincome.

4, Cost of materials

This item contains the cost of purchased third-party software of EUR 65,609 k (prior year:
EUR 64,850 k) and the cost of purchased services of EUR 5,907 k (prior year: EUR 3,745 k).

5. Personnel expenses

The disclosure essentially relates to salaries, voluntary social benefits, allocations to the provision
for vacation, profit participations and Management Board bonuses as well as social security and
pension costs.

in EUR k 2022 2021

Wages and salaries 55,153 48,732
Social security and pension costs 12,113 10,954
Total 67,266 59,686

Pension costs mainly include employer contributions to statutory pension insurance. With the
exception of Switzerland, the statutory pension insurance is organized as a defined contribution
plan. CENIT also offersits employeesin Germany the option of making contributions to a pension
trust fund or directinsurance by means of deferred compensation. For these defined contribution
plans, the employerdoes notenterintoany obligations. The value of future pension payments is
based exclusivelyon the value of the contributions paid by the employerforthe employees to the
external welfare provider, including income from the investment of said contributions.

The Swiss LOB pension plans and the pension paymentsin France are designed as defined benefit
plans in accordance with IAS 19. We refer to the comments in note F19.

An annual average (on a quarterly basis) of 854 (prior year: 692) persons were employed by the
Group, plus 41 trainees (prior year: 32).

The numberof employeesas of the end of the reporting period came to 861 (prioryear: 685). 642
(prioryear:456) of those were employed in Germany, 177 (prioryear: 185) in other EU countries
and 42 (prior year: 44) in other countries.

CENIT did not make use of short-time workin the reporting period. In the prior year, short-time

work was used to compensate for personnel expenses of EUR 1,100 k and social security
contributions of EUR 285 k.

Personnel expenses comprise termination benefits totaling EUR 655 k (prior year: EUR 659 k).
EUR 527 k (prior year: EUR 116 k) are reported under liabilities as of the end of the reporting
period, as they did not yet affect cash. In the reporting period, the liabilities include severance
payments of EUR 255 k from earlier reporting periods (prior year: EUR 373 k).



6.

equipment

Amortization of intangible assets and depreciation of property, plantand

Amortization and depreciationis broken downinthe statement of changesin non-currentassets
presented in notes F1and F2.

7. Other expenses

8.

The valuation allowance on trade receivables breaks down as follows:

in EUR k

Repairsand maintenance
Legal and consulting fees
Premises expenses
Motor vehicle costs

Advertising costs

Telecommunication and office supplies

Travel expenses
Otherpersonnel expenses
Insurance
Expensesfromexchange losses
Training

Rentand lease expenses

Bank charges and fees
Supervisory Board compensation
Internal events

Losses from disposals of assets
Other

Total

in EUR k

Income from impaired receivables

Impairmentlosses onreceivables and bad debts

Total

Valuation allowance on trade receivables

2022

2,437
2,036
1,020
1,234
1,266
712
1,231
505
536
422
295
150
113
90

82

483

12,612

2022
84
264

-180

2021
1,449

1,273
963
875
857
721
543
434
394
302
285
139
103

90
63
12
407

8,910

2021
247

170

77



The comparatively high impairment losses on receivables and bad debts recognized in the 2020
reporting period on account of the coronavirus pandemic meant that some income was recorded

from impaired receivables in the prior year.

0. Interest result

The total interest income and total interest expenses break down as follows:

in EUR k 2022

Interestincome from unwinding of the discount on accrued
liabilities

Interestincome from business taxes

Total interestincome 62

Utilization of creditlines and guarantees 247

Interest expenses for business taxes

Interest expenses fromleases 178
Netinterest fromthe measurement of pension obligations 10
Total interest expenses 435
Interestresult -373

10. Earnings from financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss

61

2021

15

136

161

-153

Earnings from financial instrumentsat fair value through profitorlossincludethe change in value
of the short put and long call option in connection with the future acquisition of the remaining
interests in ISR Information Products AG amounting to EUR 3,272 k. In the prior year, this item
included a write-up of EUR434 k on the investment in ASCon Systems Holding GmbH (formerly:

Delta Management GmbH). See also note F4.

11. Income taxes

Income taxes contain German corporate income tax including solidarity surcharge and trade tax.

Comparable taxes of foreign subsidiaries are also shown in this item.

Expenses from income taxes break down as follows:

in EUR k 2022

Currenttax expense 2,134
Change indeferred taxes fromtemporary differences 462
Total 2,595

2021

1,855
306

2,161

The currenttax expenseincludes expenses of EUR41 k relating to other periods from ongoing tax

field audits (prior year: EUR 0 k).



Deferred taxes are calculated using the individual company tax rate. These are as follows:

in %

CENIT

CENITCH

CENIT NA

CENITRO

CENITFR

CENITJP

CORISTO

KEONYSFR

KEONYS BE

KEONYS NL

CENITCN

ISR

2022

31.00

27.00

24.00

16.00

25.00

34.00

31.00

25.00

25.00

25.00

25.00

30.00

2021
31.00
27.00
24.00
16.00
25.00
34.00
31.00
25.00
25.00
25.00
25.00

n/a

The expectedtax burden onthe taxable profitis 31% as of the end of the reporting period (prior

year: 31%) and is calculated as follows:

in %
Trade tax at a rate of 433.3% (prioryear: 433.6%)
Corporate income tax

Solidarity surcharge (5.5% of corporate income tax)

Effective tax rate

2022

15.17

15.00

0.83

31.00

2021

15.17

15.00

0.83

31.00

CENITthus bases its tax rate on that of CENIT AG, as the company makes the main contributionto
the Group’s earnings.



The difference between the current tax expense and the theoretical tax expense that would result
from a tax rate of 31% (prior year: 31%) for CENIT AG breaks down as follows:

in EUR k 2022 2021

Net profitor loss forthe period before taxes (EBT) 9,204 6,515
Theoretical tax expense based on atax rate of 31% (prioryear:31%) -2,853 -2,020
Non-deductible expenses -218 -270
Tax-freeincome 140 716
Change inunusedtax losses available foruse 507 -802
Expensesrelatingto otherperiods 15 -4
Effects of different tax rates within the Group and tax rate changes -155 209
Other -32 10
L::?:neet:: expense accordingtothe consolidated income 12,595 2,161
Tax rate 28.2% 33.2%

The effects of different tax rates withinthe Group include tax expensesthatdo not relate to EBT
of EUR-137 k (prior year: EUR -142 k).

12. Earnings per share

Earnings per share are calculated in accordance with the rules in IAS 33, Earnings per Share, by
dividing the Group’s net income or loss by the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the reporting period. Basic earnings per share do not take into account any options; they
are calculated by dividing the net income/loss attributable to shares after non-controlling
interests by the average number of shares. Earnings per share are diluted if, in addition to ordinary
shares, equity instruments are issued from capital stock that could lead to afuture increase in the
number of shares. Options or warrants are takeninto account only if the average share price for
the ordinary shares during the reporting period exceeds the strike price ofthe optionsor warrants.
This effect is calculated and stated accordingly.

The following reflects theunderlyingamountsused to calculatethe basicand diluted earnings per

share:
in EURk 2022 2021
Net profit/loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of 6,283 4,251
the parent
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used to 8,367,758 8,367,758

calculate basicearnings pershare

No treasury shares were held as of the end of the reporting period.



There have been no transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares between
the end of the reporting period and the date of preparingthe consolidated financial statements.

Based on IAS 33.49, basic and diluted earnings pershare total EUR 0.75 (prior year: EUR 0.51), as
there were no dilutive effects.

13. Dividends paid and proposed

Declared and paid dividends on ordinary shares during the reporting period:
in EUR k 2021 2020

Dividend for2021: EUR 0.75 (2020: EUR 0.47) 6,276 3,933

The Management Board and Supervisory Board of CENIT AG will propose to the General Meeting
of Shareholders on 17 May 2023 that a dividend of EUR 0.50 be distributed from the retained
earnings of CENIT AG.

in EUR k 2022 2021

Dividend for 2022: EUR 0.50 (prioryear: EUR 0.75) 4,184 6,276

The payment of dividends by CENITAG to the shareholders does not have any income tax
implications for CENIT AG.
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1.

Statement of financial position

Intangible assets

Intangible assets developed as follows in 2022:

in EUR k

Cost

As of 1 January 2022
Exchange differences

Changes inthe basis of
consolidation

Additions
Disposals

As of 31 December 2022

Accumulated amortization

As of 1 January 2022
Exchange differences

Changes inthe basis of
consolidation

Additions

Disposals

As of 31 December 2022

Net carryingamounts

Cost

As of 1 January 2021
Exchange differences
Additions
Disposals

As of 31 December 2021

Accumulated amortization

As of 1 January 2021
Exchange differences
Additions
Disposals

As of 31 December 2021

Net carryingamounts

Software and
licenses

7,158

3,311

546
1,906
9,116

6,584

127

615
1,906
5,427
3,688

8,685

198
1,732
7,158

7,741

565
1,729
6,584

574

Customer
base

12,917
106

3,854

16,877

9,850
106

748

10,704
6,173

12,823
94

12,917

9,329
94
427

9,850
3,067

Goodwill

6,905

21,136

28,041

278

278
27,763

6,905

6,905

278

278
6,627

Total

26,979
112

28,301

546
1,906
54,034

16,712
114

127

1,362
1,906
16,409
37,625

28,413
101
198

1,732

26,980

17,348
101
992

1,729

16,712

10,268



The software from purchase accounting of SPI Numérique SARL (PLMsegment) hasanetcarrying
amount of EUR 83 k as of the end of the reporting period (prioryear: EUR 147 k). The remaining
amortization period as of the end of the reporting period is one year and two months.

The acquired goodwill of Coristo GmbH with a carrying amount of EUR 1,272 k (prior year:
EUR 1,272 k) was allocated to the cash-generating unit “PLM-SAP” to test for impairment, which
also constitutes a reportable business segment.

The customer base of KEONYS SAS identified as part of purchase accounting of the KEONYS Group
has an amortization period of six years and six months as of the end of the reporting period. The
carryingamountis EUR 2,558 k as of the end of the reporting period (prioryear: EUR 2,951 k). The
goodwill with a carrying amount of EUR 5,355 k (prior year: EUR 5,355 k) acquired as part of the
acquisition was allocated to the cash-generating unit “KEONYS FR” to test for impairment.

The customer base from purchase accounting of SynOpt GmbH has an amortization period of two
years and six months as of the end of the reporting period. The carryingamountis EUR 83 k as of
the end of the reporting period (prior year: EUR 116 k).

The customer base identified as part of purchase accounting of ISR Information Products AG has
an amortization period of six years and five months as of the end of the reporting period. The
carrying amount is EUR 3,533 k as of the end of the reporting period (prior year: EUR O k). The
software identified has a remaining amortization period of nine years and five months as of the
end of the reporting period andis valuedat EUR 2,505 k as of 31 December 2022 (prioryear: EUR O
k). The ban on competition identified has a remaining term of two years and five months and a
net carrying amount of EUR 312 k as of the end of the reporting period (prioryear: EUR 0 k). The
other trademark rights are valued at EUR 84 k as of the end of the reporting period (prior year:
EUR 0k) and have a remaining term of between two years and five monthsand four years and five
months. The goodwill with a carrying amount of EUR 21,137 k (prior year: EUR 0 k) acquired as
part of the acquisition was allocated to the cash-generating unit “ISR” to test for impairment.

Impairment losses

As far as intangible assets with a finite useful life are concerned, there was no indication in the
current 2022 reporting period that the useful life recognized needs to be adjusted.

The Group carried out an annual impairment test for goodwill.

The recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units “PLM-SAP”, “KEONYS FR” and “ISR” are
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections based on 5-year
financial plans prepared by management. As part of the 5-year financial planning, the revenueis
derived from the strategic alignment of the respective business division and the strategy of the
CENIT Group using the expected product mix, and the expected costs are calculated from this.

The key assumptions when deriving the salesforecast for the “PLM-SAP” cash-generating unit is
that the CENIT subscription area will continue to increase in significance, thus replacing CENIT
software salesinthe long term. In addition, the service areawill be expandedslightly, leading to
moderate sales growth overall. Costs are modeled based on the assumption of a moderate rate
of increase of 4% on average, bringingin a stable EBIT margin of around 10% for the business
division (prior year: 12%).



The basis for derivingthe sales forecast for the “KEONYS FR” cash-generating unitis that service
and the sale of third-party software will be expanded. In terms of expected costs, management
anticipates coststo rise at a lowerrate than sales of between 4% and 7% p.a. (prioryear: 4% and
5%), leading to a long-term rise in profitability overall.

The basis for deriving the sales forecast forthe “ISR” cash-generating unitisthat service and the
sale of CENIT software in particular will be expanded. In terms of expected costs, management
anticipates an annual increase of 8%, leading to a moderate rise in profitability overall.

The discountrate before taxes used for the cash flow projectionsis 11.89% for “PLM-SAP” (prior
year: 10.76%), 10.83% for “KEONYS FR” (prioryear: 10.35%) and 11.33% for “ISR”. Cash flows after
the period of five years are extrapolated using a growth rate of 1% (prior year: 1%) for all cash-
generating units. This growth rate is based on a conservative estimate by the Management Board.
The test showed that the value in use is higher than the carrying amount. As a result, there was
no indication of a need to recognize an impairment loss since the date of purchase accounting,
and goodwill remains unchanged.



2.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment developed as follows in 2022:

in EUR k

Cost

As of 1January 2022

Exchange differences

Changesinthe basis of

mranecalidatina

Additions
Disposals

As of 31 December 2022

Accumulated depredation

As of 1January 2022

Exchange differences

Changesinthe basis of

PN PN P PSP

Additions
Disposals

As of 31 December 2022

Netcarrying amounts

Cost

As of 1January 2021
Exchange differences
Additions

Disposals

As of 31 December 2021

Accumulated depredation

As of 1January 2021
Exchange differences
Additions

Disposals

As of 31 December 2021

Netcarrying amounts

Buildings
including
buildings on
third-party
land*

17,439
28
2,657
762
854
20,032

7,454

53
2,634
854
9,285
10,747

17,601
37

1,362
1,561

17,439

6,317
15
2,456

1,333
7,454

9,985

Plantand
machinery

6,889

33

360
324
6,958

6,317

30

476
322
6,500
458

8,605
33
360
2,109

6,888

7,791
31
598

2,103
6,317

572

Furniture and
fixtures*

3,686

2,155
958
961

5,848

2,359

1,115
1,160

960
3,681
2,167

4,018

865
1,203

3,686

2,426

999
1,073
2,359

1,327

*This also includes assets from leases. Further details can be found in section I.

Total

28,014
69
4,812
2,080
2,138
32,838

16,131
35
1,168
4,270
2,136
19,466
13,371

30,225
75

2,587
4,874

28,014

16,534
53
4,052

4,509
16,130

11,884



3. Investments recognized at equity
CENIT AG holds a share of 33.3% (prior year: 33.3%) in CenProCS AlRliance GmbH, an entity
domiciled in Stuttgart. This entity specializes in providing packaged services of its partners, CENIT

AG Stuttgart, PROSTEP AG Darmstadt and CS Sl LePlessis Robinson, France, in the field of IT, as
well as coordinating and marketing said services.

The joint venture listed above is included in these consolidated financial statements using the
equity method.

The assets, liabilities and revenue of CenProCS AlRliance GmbH are as follows as of 31 December
2022:

in EUR k 2022 2021
Currentassets

(thereof cash: EUR 1,394 k (prioryear: EUR 265 k)) 7,156 >384
Currentliabilities 6,987 5,813
Equity 169 170
Revenue 48 48
Total comprehensiveincome -1 -1
Carryingamount of the investment 59 60
Share of profitof the jointventure 0 0

4, Non-current other financial assets and non-current financial liabilities

The purchase agreement for the acquisition of ISR Information Products AG already included
arrangements for the acquisition of the remaining shares of 25.1%. The agreement comprises two
puttable instruments. Firstly, each of the remaining shareholders has the independent right that
CENIT must purchase all shares held on the exercise date. From CENIT’s perspective, this
corresponds to a short put option. This option can only be exercised in the period from 1 April
2026 to 31 March 2029. Secondly, CENIT has the rightthat the remaining shareholders must sell
all of theirinterests to CENIT. From CENIT’s perspective, this corresponds to a long call option.
This option can only be exercisedin the period from 1 October 2029 to 30 September2032. The
fair value of these options was measured using a Monte Carlo simulation. Future earnings were
projected based on historical data (share prices, EBITDAs) of ISR Information Products AG and
comparable companies. The point of departure was the fairvalue of ISR Information Products AG
as calculated using cash flow projections based on 5-year financial plans prepared by management
(discounted cash flow method).

The value of the short put option was calculated as EUR 1,660 k as of the end of the reporting
period, while the long call option was valued at EUR 5,657 k.

The measurement was classified as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy based on the inputs of the
valuation technique used.



Non-current otherfinancial assets alsoinclude the 4.76% (prioryear: 4.53%) capital involvement
in ASCon Systems Holding GmbH (formerly: DELTA Management Beratung GmbH) amounting to
EUR 3,184 k (prior year: EUR 3,184 k). Because the solution expertise of ASCon Systems Holding
GmbH and CENIT overlaps, the two companies want to build a clear lead as PLM experts in the
fields of digitaltwin and real-time dataintegration, thus driving forward the digital transformation
of companiesinthe areas of manufacturing and Industry 4.0. The fairvalue of the investment held
as a financial asset was derived from capital increases in the 2021 reporting period. The
measurement was classified as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy based on the inputs of the
valuation technique used. The measurement did not lead to any change in value (prior year: write-
up of EUR 434 k).

Relationship between significant
Valuationtechnique  Significant unobservable inputs unobservable inputs and fair
value measurement

Measurement of the acquisition
of sharesin ASCon Systems
Holding GmbH by third parties,
assumingthat otherfactors
affecting price are takeninto
account

The estimated fair value would
rise (fall) if the expected price for
the capital sharesin ASCon
Systems Holding GmbHwere
higher (lower)

Market transaction
inthe form of capital
increases



5. Deferred taxes

The recognition and measurement differences determinedbetween the profitin the tax accounts
and the financial statements under German commercial law and the adjustments of the finandal
statements under German commercial law of the consolidated entities to IFRS led to deferred
taxes of the following amounts in the following items:

in EUR k Deferred tax assets Deferred tax liabilities

31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2022 2021 2022 2021

Deferred tax assets on unused tax 1,423 1161 0 0

losses

Intangible assets 0 0 2,595 774

General valuation allowances 0 0 88 95

Receivables from service 0 0 64 90

agreements

(.)thfe.rprovmons and accrued 336 296 0 0

liabilities

IAS 19 pension obligations 208 358 0 0

Qn me{asgrementdlfferences of 0 0 1,014 0

financial instruments

Consolidation procedures 0 22 19 0

Total 1,967 1,837 3,780 961

Netting -950 -951 -950 -951

Total 1,017 886 2,830 10



The changes in deferred taxes affected the income statement as follows:

in EUR k 2022 2021
Deferred tax assetson unused tax losses 262 -436
Intangible assets 279 114
Valuation allowances on receivables 7 -61
Receivables fromservice agreements 28 -4
Otherprovisions and accrued liabilities 12 36
IAS 19 pension obligations 6 25
On measurement differences of financial -1,014 0
instruments

Consolidation procedures -41 20
Total -462 -306

The change in deferred taxes on actuarial losses from defined benefit obligations recognized in
other comprehensive income of EUR -155 k (prior year: EUR -76 k) was recognized directly in
equity.

As of 31 December 2022, no deferred income tax payables for temporary differences in
connection with investmentsin subsidiaries of EUR 179 k (prioryear: EUR 250 k) were recognized,
as CENITis in a position to control the timing of the reversal and the temporary differences are
not expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

As of the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused tax losses of EUR 6,595 k (prioryear:
EUR 6,958 k) for which deferred tax assets of EUR 1,423 k (prior year: EUR 1,161 k) were
recognized. Theserelateto KEONYS FR (EUR 5,449 k (prioryear: 6,010 k); deferred taxes reported
at EUR 1,362 k (prior year: EUR 1,077 k)), CENIT CN (EUR 531 k (prior year: EUR 335 k); deferred
taxesreported at EUR 38 k (prioryear: EUR 84 k)) and CENITJP (EUR 615 k (prioryear: EUR 613 k);
deferred taxesreportedat EUR O k (prioryear: EUR 0 k)). The deferredtaxes are recognizedat the
amount expected to be utilized within five years.

6. Inventories
in EUR k 31 Dec. 2022 31 Dec. 2021
Payments onaccount 72 15
Total 72 15
7. Trade receivables and receivables from investments recognized at equity

Trade receivablescomprisereceivablesfromthird partiesof EUR 26,032 k (prior year: EUR 24,713
k) and receivablesfrom investmentsrecognized at equity of EUR 3,891 k (prioryear: EUR 2,873 k).



The age structure of trade receivables and receivables from joint ventures was as follows at the

end of the reporting period:

in EUR k Total thereof: thereof:not due
impaired as of the end of
the reporting

thereof: past due but not impaired

period
lessthan 30 between between more than
days 30 and 60 61 and 90 90 days
days days
2022 30'22 283 21,860 4,099 2,657 390 917
2021 27'33 235 21,407 4,111 1,350 148 571
Valuation allowances on trade receivables and contract assets in EUR k
As of 31 December 2021 235
Addition (+)/reversal (-) 48
As of 31 December 2022 283
A breakdown of receivables by country is as follows:
in EUR k 31 Dec. 2022 31 Dec. 2021
Germany 16,850 16,338
Europe 11,266 9,704
Third countries 1,807 1,544
Total 29,923 27,586

8. Contract assets

As of the end of the reporting period, there are contract assets from ongoing, unbilled projects
totaling EUR 1,639 k (prioryear: EUR 2,133 k). Thisincludes afigure of EUR 1,008 k resulting from
ISR Information Products AG. The contract assets relate first and foremost to CENIT’s entitlements
to counterperformance for services provided but unbilled as of the end of the reporting period.
The contract assets will be reclassified to receivables when the rights become unconditional. This
generally happens when the Group issues an invoice to the customer.
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0. Other receivables

Other receivables break down as follows:

in EUR k 31 Dec. 2022 31 Dec. 2021
Receivables from staff 7 17
Receivables from refunds of wage replacementand social 31 110
security contributions

Receivables from deposits 284 287
Receivablefrom purchase price refund 103 79
Total 425 493

Otherreceivablesare all shortterm, not pastdue and notimpaired. Asinthe prioryear, there are
no long-term receivables in the reporting period.

10. Tax receivables

There were nolong-termincometax receivableseitherin the currentreporting yearorin the prior
year.

The short-term current tax receivables of EUR 2,222 k in total (prior year: EUR 2,453 k) relate to
entitlementsfrom prepayments for corporate incometax and trade tax of EUR 686 kin total (prior
year: EUR 316 k), receivables from the VAT prepayment amounting to EUR 635 k (prior year:

EUR 631 k) as well as the recognition of tax credits for research projects in Germany and France
of EUR 901 k (prior year: EUR 1,506 k).

11. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents break down as follows:

in EUR k 31 Dec. 2022 31 Dec. 2021
Bank balances 19,907 26,357
Cash onhand 7 4
Cash inthe statement of financial position 19,914 26,361
Overdrafts used via cash management 0 2
Cash presented inthe statement of cash flows 19,914 26,359

Bank balances earn interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. The fair value of
cash amounts to EUR 19,914 k (prior year: EUR 26,359 k).

The Group has credit lines of EUR 2,212 k as of the end of the reporting period (prior year:
EUR 2,348 k). This includes a figure of EUR 1,500 k that can be utilized either as a loan or as a
guarantee. The Group utilized EUR 738 k of this amount as a guarantee as of the end of the
reporting period (prior year: EUR 602 k).
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12. Other financial assets

Other financial assets break down as follows:

in EUR k 31 Dec. 2022 31 Dec. 2021

Prepaid maintenancefees 8,994 6,300
Prepaidrights of use and car insurance 1,787 1,182
Total 10,781 7,482

The prepaid maintenance fees involve prepayments by the CENIT Group that will be recorded as
expenses in subsequent periods.

13. Equity

Subscribed capital

Since the resolution adopted on 13 June 2006 to increase capital from company fundsand entry
in the commercial register on 14 August 2006, the capital stock (issued capital) of CENIT AG
amountsto EUR 8,367,758.00 and is fully paidin. It is splitinto 8,367,758 no-par value shares of
EUR 1.00 each (prioryear: 8,367,758 no-parvalue shares of EUR 1.00 each). The shares are bearer
shares and are no-par value common shares only.

CENIT AG still holds no treasury shares.

Notes on the components of equity

The capital reserves contain the share premium realized from issuing shares of the parent
companyinexcess of theirnominalvalue. If the legal reserve and the capital reserves pursuantto
Sec.272 (2) Nos.1 to 3 HGB together do not exceed a tenth of the capital stock or any higher
amount stipulated in the articles of incorporation and bylaws, they may only be used in
accordance with Sec. 150 AktG [“Aktiengesetz”: German Stock Corporation Act] to offset a net loss
for the year or a loss carryforward that is not covered by net income for the year or a profit
carryforward respectively, and cannot be offset by releasing other revenue reserves.

Other revenue reserves and the legal reserve pursuant to Sec. 150 AktG contain the profits
transferred to reserves.

The currency translation reserve contains the net differences resulting from translation of the
subsidiaries’ financial statements to the Group’s functional currency that are offset against equity.

As of the end of the reporting period, there are total non-controlling interests of EUR 1,950 k in
equity amounting to EUR 44,783 k. The non-controlling interests are held by private individuals,
with 25.1% in ISR Information Products AG. Non-controlling interests include the share of profit
of EUR 211 k allocable to shareholders without controlling interests. While belonging to the
Group, ISR Information Products AG recorded revenue of EUR 13,572 k in total, with net income
for the year of EUR 841 k. At EUR -63 k, the share of the Group’s cash flow is immaterial. The
shareholder meeting of ISR Information Products AG has not yet passed a resolution on the
appropriation of the profit for the 2022 reporting period.
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14. Liabilities from leases

The lease liabilities are due as follows:

in EUR k I;:';t;;epr::/rr:r:#g pI:;re;]r:;:S Present value

Lessthan one year 3,521 171 3,350
Betweenone andfive years 7,529 292 7,237
More than five years 945 39 906
Total 11,995 502 11,493

15. Current income tax liabilities and other provisions

in EUR k 31 Dec. 2022 31 Dec. 2021

Currentincome tax liabilities 558 480
Other provisions 74 85
Total 697 565

The current income tax liabilities developed as follows:

in EUR k

As of 1 January 2022 480
Utilization -240
Reversal 0
Addition 318
As of 31 December 2022 558
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The other provisions cover all identifiable obligations to third parties in accordance with IAS 37.
They developed as follows:

in EUR k General Meeting of Personnel measures, not
Shareholders fixed
As of 1 January 2022 85 0
Utilization 46 0
Reversal 39 0
Addition 52 22
As of 31 December 2022 52 22
of which long-term 0 0
of which short-term 52 22

The provisions will mainly be used in the following reporting period.

16. Trade payables and liabilities to investments recognized at equity

The liabilities are subject to customary retentions of title to the delivered goods.

in EUR k 31 Dec. 2022 31 Dec. 2021

Trade payables 11,163 6,044
Liabilities toinvestments recognized at equity 26 28
Total 11,190 6,071

Of the total liabilities, EUR 11,190 k is due within one year (prioryear: EUR 6,071 k). These are
not subjecttointerest.
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17. Other liabilities

Other current liabilities break down as follows:

in EUR k

Vacation and bonus entitlements

VAT/wage tax payables
Outstanding purchase invoices
Liabilities forsocial security

Personnel adjustment measures

‘Altersteilzeit’ (special German phased retirement scheme)
entitlements

Employer’s liability insurance, compensatory levy in lieu of
employingseverelydisabled persons

Financial statements costs
Long-service awards

Travel cost liability foremployees
Supervisory Board compensation
Individual warranty cases

Other

Total

Other non-current liabilities break down as follows:

in EUR k

Long-service awards

Long-term Management Board remuneration
Archiving costs

Total

31 Dec.

6,270
3,210

1,298
589
767

142

95

178
96
68
90
78

397

13,273

31 Dec. 2022
477
0
34

511

31 Dec.

7,076
3,183

1,630
602

489

180
182
47
87
63
82
272

13,893

31 Dec. 2021
507

182
34

723

The long-service awards total EUR 573 k (prior year: EUR 554 k). Of this figure, EUR 477 k (prior
year: EUR 507 k) is reported in non-current and EUR 96 k (prior year: EUR 47 k) in current other

liabilities. Thereare no written commitments to the employees for the long-service awards. These

were recognized as liabilities on account of the payment method and the resulting indication of

company practice.
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18. Contract liabilities

Contract liabilities break down as follows:

in EUR k 31 Dec. 2022 31 Dec. 2021
Deferred maintenance incomeand royalties 14,900 12,684
Payments onaccount received 3,569 3,193
Contract liabilities 18,469 15,877

The deferred maintenance fees and royaltiesinvolve pre-billed services forthe 2022 period that
will not be recorded as income until the following year. In the reporting period, an amount of
EUR 15,877 k deferred in the prior year was collected as revenue.

19. Pension obligations

Defined contribution plans

The Group offers all employees in Germany with an unterminated and permanent employment
relationship the possibility to participate in an employer-funded pension scheme. CENIT
voluntarily pays,with aright of revocation, a pre-defined fixed amount each monthinto a defined
contribution pensioninsurance policyof aninsurance firm. Thisresulted in expenses of EUR 244 k
for CENIT in the reporting period (prior year: EUR 226 k). In addition, employer contributions to
statutory pension insurance in Germany totaling EUR 3,151 k were paid in the reporting period
(prior year: EUR 2,475 k).

Defined benefit plans

Companies in Switzerland must grant their employees minimum old-age pension payments, and
the pension plan payments often exceed the statutory minimum payments. Although the future
pension payments depend in principle on the contributions saved, including the interest on the
retirementassets, thereisaresidual riskfora company that it will in future have to make further
contributionsto the pension planfor service periods already worked by the employee. Thisison
account of the guarantees contained in pension law. These guarantees relate among other things
to the minimum interest on retirement assets in the statutory field, the balance of retirement
assets and the (minimum) conversion rate. Together with the remedial duty in the event of a
(potential) shortfall in the pension plan, these guarantees mean that LOB old-age pensions in
Switzerland are classified as defined benefit plans in accordance with IAS19 and are presented
accordingly in the statement of financial position. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in
other comprehensive income taking into account deferred taxes.

In France, the statutory basic pension is supplemented by obligatory additional pensions which,
like the basic pension, are financed using the cost sharing method. If an employee decides to enter
retirement,he orshe receives apension paymentfromthe employer.The amountisvariable, but
isbased on the number of years of service and amounts to between one and six months’ salary.

The total obligation recognized in the statement of financial position from the defined benefit
plans relates only to employees still working and is as follows:
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in EUR k 2022 2021

Presentvalue of the defined benefit obligation 5,257 4,496
Fair value of plan assets 4,413 3,099
Benefit liability 844 1,397

The net liability developed as follows:

in EUR k 2022 2021
Netliability as of 1 January 1,397 1,575
Netincome/expenserecognized 130 279
Contributions by the employer -121 -125
Actuarial gains -585 -359
thereof from changes in estimates -698 -279
thereof from experience adjustments 90 -111
thereof from return on plan assets 24 31
Netforeign exchange difference 23 27
Netliability as of 31 December 844 1,397

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

in EUR k 2022 2021
Presentvalue of defined benefit obligation as of 1 January 4,496 6,405
Currentservice cost 120 272
Interestexpense 19 8
Contributions by plan participants 121 125
Actuarial gains/losses -608 -390
thereof from changes in estimates -698 -279
thereof from experience adjustments 90 -111
Benefits paid/reimbursed 911 -2,090
Past service cost 0 4
Netforeign exchange difference 198 162
Presentvalue of defined benefit obligation as of 31 December 5,257 4,496
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The benefits of EUR 2,090 k reimbursed in the prior year fell due on account of a total of seven

employees in Switzerland leaving the Group.

The weighted average duration of the obligationsis 9.86 years (prioryear: 9.27 years).

The changesin fairvalue of the plan assets are as follows:

in EUR k 2022

Fair value of plan assets as of 1 January 3,
Expectedreturnon planassets
Actuarial gains/losses
thereof from return on plan assets
Contributions by the employer
Contributions by plan participants
Benefits paid/reimbursed
Netforeign exchange difference

Fair value of plan assets as of 31 December 4,

All of the plan assets come from the insurance credit from the insurance contracts. Consequently,
there are no special risks from plan assets. The total return expected on plan assetsis calculated
on the basis of past experience. This is reflected in the principal assumptions (see below). The

actual losses on plan assets came to EUR 14 k in total (prior year: EUR 26 k).

in EUR k 2022
Currentservice cost

Interestexpense

Expectedreturnon planassets

Past service cost

Netbenefitexpense

The Group expectsto contribute EUR 151 k in total toits definedbenefit pension plansin the 2023

reporting period.

099

121

121

911

176

413

120

19

-9

0

130

2021

4,830

125

125

-2,090

136

3,099

2021

272

279
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The principal assumptions used in determining the pension obligation of CENIT CH are shown
below:

% 2022 2021

Discountrate 2.25 0.25
Expectedreturnon planassets 2.25 1.0
Anticipated rate of salary increase 1.0 1.0
Lump-sum payment 50 50

20% eachin 20% eachin
thelast5 thelast 5
yearsbefore vyearsbefore
retirement retirement

Probability of reaching retirement

Average rate of employee turnover 15 15

Mortality BVG 2020 BVG 2020

The following basic assumptions were made for the pension obligation of KEONYS FR:

% 2022 2021

Discountrate 3.73 0.98
Anticipated rate of salary increase 1.5 0.5
Average rate of employee turnover 9 9
Mortality INSEE 18-20 INSEE 2017

The authoritative actuarial assumptions used to calculate the defined benefit obligation are the
discount rate and the rate of salary increase. The sensitivity analyses presented below were
carried outon the basis of the changes in therespective assumptionsas of the end of the reporting
period that are reasonably possible, with the other assumptions remaining unchanged in each
case.

In the case of the obligations of CENIT CH of EUR 4,445 k (prioryear: EUR 3,557 k), if the discount
rate were to go up by 0.5% or down by 0.5%, the obligation would decrease by 3.1% (prioryear:
3.8%) and increase by 3.4% (prior year: 4.2%) respectively. If the rate of salary increase were to
rise by 0.5% or drop by 0.5%, the obligation wouldincrease by 0.1% (prior year: 0.2%) or fall by
0.1% (prior year: 0.2%) respectively.

In the case of the obligations of KEONYS FR of EUR 812 k (prior year: EUR 939 k), if the discount
rate were to go up by 0.5% or down by 0.5%, the obligation would decrease by 3.96% (prioryear:
4.44%) and increase by 4.06% (prioryear: 4.56%) respectively. If the rate of salary increase were
to rise by 0.5% or drop by 0.5%, the obligation would increase by 4.13% (4.55%) or fall by 4.07%
(prior year: 4.49%) respectively.

m 109



20. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise trade receivables, receivables from joint
ventures as well as cash and cash equivalents, bank loans and trade payables. The main purpose
of these financial instruments is to finance the Group’s business activities and the Group’s
inorganic growth.

The Group assesses the concentration of risk for trade receivables and contract assets as low, as
the customers are located in different countries, belong to different industries and operate on
markets that are generally independent of each other. There are no significant differences
between the carryingamountand fairvalue of receivables and liabilities due to their short term.

The Group is exposed to credit, counterparty and liquidity risks as well as interest and exchange
rate fluctuations in the course of its operations. The Group’s risk management system, which is
presented in detail in the management report, also covers the financial risks.

Credit or counterparty risk

The Group obtains credit ratings from external agencies before accepting anew customerin order
to assess the creditworthiness of prospective customers and define their credit limits.

Credit ratings for major new customers are made by Creditreform e.V. For new and existing
customers, the credit risk is reduced among other things by issuing invoices for downpayments.
The payment behavior of existing customers is analyzed on a constant basis. In addition, the credit
risk is controlled using limits for each contractual party, which are examined annually.

No creditrating is carried out for contracts won by our contractual partners, since thisis already
done at contractual partner level.

Inaddition, receivables balances are monitoredby us on an ongoing basis, with the result that the
Group’s exposure to risk of default is not significant.

As we do not conclude any general netting agreements with our customers, the sum of the
amounts reported underassets also represents the maximum credit risk. There are no identifiable
concentrations of credit risk from business relationships with single debtors or groups of debtors.
With respect to the other financial assets of the Group, such as cash, the Group’s maximum
exposure to creditrisk arising from default of the counterparty is equalto the carryingamount of
these instruments.

Apart from customary retention of title, the Group does not have any collateral or other credit
enhancement measures that would reduce this default risk.

Currency risk

The currency risk exposure mainly arises where receivables or liabilities exist or will be generated
in the ordinary course of business in a currency other than the local currency of the Company.

In addition, there are currency risks from domestic bank balances denominated in USD. The
resulting risks amount to EUR 84 k (prior year: EUR 5 k) with a total volume of USD 895 k (prior
year: USD 57 k) and a change of +/- 10%. The risk from cash on hand is considered immaterial on
the whole.
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There are no other risks from foreign currencies.

Interest rate risk

The Group took out bank loans with floating interest rates in the reporting period for the first
time. As aresult, itisexposedtorisk from changes in market interest rates. The Group monitors
market movements and examines the use of derivative financial instruments as interest hedges
when converting the short-term bank loan into a financing strategy thatis secured longterm. An
interest rate change of +/- 1% currently would have an impact on earnings and thus on equity
amounting to +/- EUR 214 k.

The discountrate is a key assumption when determining the pension obligations. The impactofa
change in the discount rate is presented in section F19.

The CENIT Group’s policy is to manage its interest income using a mix of fixed and floating-rate
investments. The Group uses financial instruments where necessary to achieve this goal.

As of the end of both reporting periods, there were no derivative financialinstruments for hedging
against interest risks.

Liquidity risk

The Group needs sufficient liquidity to meetits financial obligations. Liquidity risks generally also
arise from the possibility that customers may not be able to settle obligations to the Group under
normal trading conditions. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves,
credit lines from banks and by constantly monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and
reconciling the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. The credit rating of the Group
allows sufficient cash to be procured. Moreover, the Group has lines of credit that have not yet
been used.

The liability to banks of EUR 21,353 k reportedinthe statement of financial positionis due within
one year and therefore constitutes a liquidity risk for the Group. CENIT’s credit rating allows for
sufficient refinancing of the loan. The funding commitments by banks are testimony to CENIT's
good credit rating.

The puttable instruments described in F4 for the acquisition of the remaining shares in ISR
Information Products AG lead to a cash outflow as of the exercise date and are therefore taken
into account in CENIT’s liquidity planning.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital managementisto ensure that it can demonstrate a
strong credit rating and a high equity ratio in order to support its business and maximize
shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in
economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group can adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholdersorissue new shares. No changes
were made to the objectives, policies and processes as of 31 December 2021 and 31 December
2022.

m 111



The Group monitors its capital in relation to total assets.

in EUR k 31 Dec. 2022 31 Dec. 2021

Total assets 127,037 92,805
Equity 44,783 43,645
Equity as a percentage of total assets (%) 35.3 47.0

21. Liabilities to banks

To finance inorganic growth, the Group took out a loan of EUR 23,000 k in the reporting period.
Theloanis valued at EUR 21,350 k as of the end of the reporting period and has a remaining term
of nine months. The borrowing rate for this bridging loan is calculated based on the 3-month
EURIBOR, which is at least 0%, plus a mark-up of 1.35 percentage points and thus most recently
amounted to 2.543%. No collateral was provided for that loan.

22. Financial instruments

The table below shows the carrying amounts and fair values of all of the Group’s finandal
instruments included in the consolidated financial statements.
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Classi- Carrying  Carrying Fair value Fair value

in EUR k .
fication amount amount
2022 2021 2022 2021
Financial assets
Non-current other financial
FVTPL 8,841 3,184 8,841 3,184
assets
Non-current other financial AC 1147 0 1147 0
assets
Cashand cash equivalents AC 19,914 26,361 19,914 26,361
Receivables 30,348 28,079 30,348 28,079
thereof:
° Trade receivables AC 26,032 24,713 26,032 24,713
. Receivables from
. AC 3,891 2,873 3,891 2,873
investees
. Other receivables 425 493 425 493
Contract assets AC 1,639 2,133 1,639 2,133
Current other financial assets AC 10,781 7,482 10,781 7,482
72,670 67,239 72,670 67,239
Financialliabilities
° Liabilities to banks AC 21,352 2 21,352 2
° Trade payables AC 11,163 6,044 11,163 6,044
. Liabil |t.| estoi nves.tments AC 26 )8 26 )8
recognized at equity
*  Other non-current FVTPL 1,660 0 1,660 0
financialliabilities
* Non-current and current AC 11,493 10,621 11,493 10,621
leaseliabilities
° Other liabilities
e Qutstandingpurchase
. . AC 1,298 1,630 1,298 1,630
invoices
Contract liabilities AC 18,469 15,877 18,469 15,877
65,461 34,200 65,461 34,200

The fairvalue of the financial assets and financial liabilities corresponds to their carryingamount
at amortized cost because, with the exception of lease liabilities, they are current assets and
liabilities only. With reference to IFRS 7.29 (d), the fair values of the lease liabilities are not
disclosed. Thefairvalue of non-current financial assetsand liabilities measured at fair value results
from the observable prices onthe market orfrom unobservableinputs of the valuationtechnique
used as Level 3in the fairvalue hierarchy. The valuation technique used is describedin section F4.

m 113



G Statement of cash flows

The statement of cash flows showshow the cash and cash equivalents of the CENIT Group changed
during the course of the reporting period and the prior year as a result of cash inflows and
outflows. Cash flows were broken down into cash flow from operating, investing and financing
activities in accordance with IAS 7. The amounts reported from foreign entities are generally
translated at the annual average rates. However, as in the statement of financial position, liquidity
isreported atthe closing rate. The effectsof exchangerate changes on cash are shown separately
if they are material.

The cash flow frominvesting activities and financing activities is determined directly on the basis
of payments made or received. The cash flow from operating activities, on the other hand, is
derivedindirectly fromthe Group’s netincomeorloss forthe year. When performing the indirect
calculation, changesinitemsinthe statement of financial position considered in connection with
operatingactivities are adjusted for effects from currency translation and changesin the basis of
consolidation. There are therefore differences compared to changes in the relevant items in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Investmentsin property, plantand equipment and intangiblefixed assets and financial assetsare
included in the cash outflow from investing activities.

Only assets that can be readily converted into cash without significant deductions and that are
subject to minor fluctuations in value are included in cash and cash equivalents.

Cash and cash equivalents include all cash and cash equivalents reported in the statement of
financial position (F10) provided they have an original maturity of less than three months, as well
as overdrafts repayable on demand.

The cash paid for the purchase of shares in fully consolidated entities (net cash outflow) of
EUR 27,927 k, whichisreportedinthe cash flow from investing activities, stems from stepping up
the interests in Coristo GmbH for the purchase price of EUR 1,600 k and from the acquisition of
ISR Information Products AG. A purchase price of EUR 28,605 k was paid for the acquisition of ISR
Information Products AG. Net of cash and cash equivalents acquired amounting to EUR 2,278 k,
this results in a cash outflow of EUR 26,327 k.
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Reconciliation of the movements in liabilities to cash flows from financing activities

in EUR k Lease liability

Balance as of 1 January 2022 10,621

Changein cash flows from financing activities

Cash paidforlease liabilities -3,605
Overall change in cash flows from financing activities -3,605
Increase in obligation from new leases 1,366
Change inexistingleases 22
Addition to basis of consolidation 2,911
Interestexpense 178
Total non-cash otherchanges 4,477
Balance as of 31 December 2022 11,493
H Segment reporting

Pursuantto IFRS 8, business segments must be demarcated based on the internal reporting from
group divisions that are regularlyreviewedby the entity’s chief operating decision makerto make
decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance.

For management purposes, the Group is organized into business units based onits products and
services, and has two reportable operating segments as follows:

o EIM (Enterprise Information Management)

e PLM (Product Lifecycle Management)

The presentation is based on internal reporting.

The PLM (Product Lifecycle Management) segment focuses on industrial customers and the
corresponding technologies. Its industry focus is on the automotive, aerospace, mechanical
engineering and shipbuilding industries. Special emphasis is placed on products and services in
product lifecycle management, such as CATIA from Dassault Systémes or SAP, and internally
developed software such as cenitCONNECT and FASTSUITE. The Enterprise Information
Management (EIM) segment focuses on the customer segment of trade and commerce, banks,
insurance firms and utilities. The focus here is on products of the strategicsoftware partner |IBM
and internally developed software and consultancy services in the fields of document
management and business intelligence.
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SEGMENT REPORTING

in EUR k EIM PLM Reconciliation Group

2022 27,622 134,529 0 162,152
External revenue

2021 16,022 130,049 0 146,071
EBIT 2022 2,728 3,577 0 6,305

2021 2,603 3,631 0 6,234
Otherinterestresult 2022 0 0 2,899 2,899
and financial result 2021 0 0 281 281

2022 0 0 2,595 2,595
Income taxes

2021 0 0 2,161 2,161
Netincome of the 2022 2,728 3,577 304 6,609
Group forthe year 2021 2,603 3,631 -1,880 4,354

2022 49,852 54,032 23,153 127,037
Segmentassets

2021 7,466 55,639 29,700 92,805

2022 19,565 35,844 26,845 82,254
Segment liabilities

2021 6,390 39,801 2,969 49,160
Investmentsin 2022 771 1,856 0 2,627
property, plantand
equipment 2021 246 2,538 0 2,784
and intangible assets
Amortization and 2022 1,965 3,667 0 5,632
depreciation 2021 383 4,661 0 5,044

EIM = Enterprise Information Management; PLM = Product Lifecycle Management

Inthe segmentation by business unitand by region, those financial assets and tax reimbursement
rights as well as current and deferred incometax liabilities and other liabilities are disclosedin the
“Reconciliation” column forsegment assets and segment liabilities respectively that could not be
attributed to the respective business units.

The segmentation by region is based on the location of the Group’s assets. Sales to extemal
customers disclosed in geographical segments are based on the geographical location of the
respective group company of the individual segment.

The reconciliation of segment assets breaks down as follows:

in EUR k 31 Dec. 2022 31 Dec. 2021

Deferred tax assets 1,017 886
Currenttax receivables 2,222 2,453
Cash and cash equivalents 19,914 26,361
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Total

The reconciliation of segment liabilities breaks down as follows:

in EUR k

Deferred tax liabilities

VAT liabilities

Currentincome tax liabilities

Liabilities to banks

Total

The segmentation by region is shown below:

in EUR k

External
revenue

Non-
current
segment
assets

2022

2021

2022

2021

Germany

98,869

83,793

66,617

21,895

Switzerland

~
[e)]
N
N

’

11,184

44

92

North
America

7,155

6,585

409

481

Romania

2,641

2,172

538

134

France

37,744

34,283

5,127

5,751

23,153
31 Dec. 2022
2,830
2,107
558
21,350
26,845
B
g % c ©
® 5 & =z
9] < & O
o ]
z

3,817 2,806 1,217 261

3,982 | 2,779 1,107 186

136 132 67 24

195 284 26 50

The reconciliation of non-current segment assets breaks down as follows:

in EUR k

Deferred tax assets
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31 Dec. 2022

1,017

29,700

31 Dec. 2021
10
2,479

480

2,969

Reconciliation
Consoli-
dation
Group

0 0 162,152

0 0 146,071

1,017 -12,051 62,060

886  -3,512 26,282

31 Dec. 2021
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| Other notes

1. Leases

CENIT leases office space and vehicles. The term of the leasesis typically three years forvehides
and generally five toten years for office space, with the option of extending the leases after this
period. Some leases provide foradditional lease payments basedon changesin local priceindices.
CENIT has notsubletany property. The weightedaverage interest rate is 0.91% for property (prior
year: 0.88%) and 3.64% for vehicles (prior year: 3.8%).

In addition, CENIT leases some IT equipment with contractual terms of between one and three
years. These leases are either short term or (/and) they are for low-value assets. The Group has
decided not to recognize right-of-use assets or lease liabilities for those leases. Information on
leases where the Group is a lessee is provided below.

The Group had expenses from short-term leases of EUR 172 k in the reporting period (prioryear:
EUR 114 k) and expenses from leases of low-value assets of EUR 30 k (prior year: EUR 30 k).

in EUR k Buildings Vehicles Total

As of 1 January 2022 9,246 1,241 10,487
Depreciationamountin the reportingyear 2,518 948 3,466
Additions toright-of-useassets 709 656 1,365
Additions to changesinthe basis of consolidation 2,544 367 2,911
Disposals from contractual changes 0 0 0
Exchange differences 28 0 28
As of 31 December 2022 10,009 1,316 11,325

The right-of-useassets from leases are reported in property, plantand equipment underland and
buildings (building) and furniture and fixtures (vehicles).

2. Related party disclosures

Balances and transactions between CENIT and its subsidiaries that are related parties were
eliminated as part of consolidation and are not explained in the notes.

Related parties of the CENIT Group within the meaning of IAS 24 thus only concern the members
of the Management Board and Supervisory Board, their dependents, joint ventures as well as
significant shareholders, including entities they control.

No transactions with related parties were conducted in the reporting period or the prior year.
Otherwise, CENIT recorded sales with joint ventures amounting to EUR 7,908 k (prior year:
EUR 6,736 k).
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As of the end of the reporting period, there were no liabilitiesto related parties (prioryear: EUR O
k). The receivablesfrom and liabilities to investments recognized at equity are reportedseparately
in the statement of financial position.

The Company’s Management Board members were:

e PeterSchneck, Stuttgart, memberof the Management Board of CENIT AG since 18
October 2021 and spokesperson forthe Management Board of CENIT AG from 1 January
2022,

Responsible for: operations, investor relations and marketing.

e Dr.rer. pol. Dipl.-Kfm. Markus A. Wesel, Hohenschéftlarn, member of the Management
Board of CENIT AG until 15 October2022. Responsiblefor: finance, organization and
personnel.

o Axelle Mazé, Garche, France, member of the Management Board of CENITAG since
17 October2022. Responsible for: finance, organization and personnel.

The Company’s Supervisory Board members were:

e Rainer-Christian Koppitz (CEQ), Munich, chairsince 20 May 2021

e Prof. Dr. rer. pol. Isabell M. Welpe (university professor), Munich, deputy chairsince 20
May 2021

e Dipl.-Ing. Ricardo Malta (Service Manager CENIT Aktiengesellschaft, Stuttgart), Munich,
employeerepresentativesince 18 May 2018
Mr. Rainer-ChristianKoppitzis CEO of the KATEK SE Group, a member of the supervisory board of
i-pointing Ltd. and chair of the supervisory board of NFON AG.

Prof. Dr. rer. pol.lsabell M. Welpe isa member of the supervisory board of Deloitte Deutschland
GmbH Wirtschaftspriifungsgesellschaftand a member of the supervisory board of CANCOM SE.

All other members of the Supervisory Board did not belong to any other supervisory boards or
control bodies during the reporting year.

The remuneration system for the Management Board of CENIT AG comprises a performance-
based componentand acomponentthatisindependent of performance. The performance-based
part is based onthe Group’s earnings forthe year (EBIT) in accordance with IFRS. Pursuant to the
articles of incorporation and bylaws, the Supervisory Board receives fixed compensation. Each
member of the Supervisory Board receives afixedamount of EUR 20,000 payable afterthe end of
the reporting period (prior year: EUR 20,000). The chair of the Supervisory Board receives twice
that amount, while the deputy chair receives one and a half times that amount.
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The expense for the remuneration of the members of the Management Board and Supervisory
Board active as of 31 December 2022 recognized in profit or loss breaks down as follows:

in EUR k 2022 2021

Management Board remuneration

Fixed 470 604

Fringe benefits 27 49

Performance-based 291 298
Total short-term benefits 788 951
Long-termincentive 0 182
Total long-term benefits 0 182
Total remuneration of the Management Board 788 1,133
Supervisory Board compensation 90 90
Total compensation of the Supervisory Board 90 90
Total 878 1,223

Total compensation of the Supervisory Board solely includes short-term benefits.

Disclosures on the remuneration of the Management Board and the Supervisory Board of CENIT
AG are presented individually in the remuneration report, which is published separately.

Total remuneration of the active Management Board in accordance with Sec. 314 (1) No. 6a HGB
amounts to EUR 788 k in the reporting period (prior year: EUR 912 k). Of this figure, EUR 497 k
(prioryear: EUR 653 k) relates to fixed components while EUR 291 k (prioryear: EUR 259 k) relates
to performance-based components. Total remuneration of former Management Board members
in accordance with Sec. 314 (1) No. 6a HGB amounts to EUR 812 k in the reporting period (prior
year: EUR 297 k) plus EUR 190 k due to the contract ending (prior year: EUR 0 k).

The D&O insurance was continued in 2022 for Management Board members and Supervisory
Board members as well as other executives. The premiums of EUR 99k (prioryear: EUR 99 k) were
borne by the Company.

The Management Board held 14,000 shares as of the end of the reporting period (0.17%). The
Supervisory Board members held 13,100 shares (0.16%).

3. Notifications pursuant to Sec. 21, 22, 25 WpHG

During the 2021 reporting period, several notices pursuant to Sec. 21 (1) WpHG
[“Wertpapierhandelsgesetz”: German Securities Trading Act] were received from LBBW Asset
Management Investmentgesellschaft mbH. The last notice was dated 15 November 2011 and was
as follows: Pursuant to Sec. 21 (1) WpHG, we informyou that the share of voting rights of LBBW
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Asset Management Investmentgesellschaft mbH in CENIT AG, Industriestralle, 70565 Stuttgart,
Germany, across all of our investmentfunds fellbelowthe threshold of 5% on 11 November 2011
and, at 385,421 shares, amounted to 4.61% on that date in relation to the total amount of voting
rights (8,367,758). Of these voting rights, 3.67% (307,421 voting rights) are attributed to us
pursuantto Sec.22 (1) Sentence 1 No.6 WpHG. Votingrights are allocated to us by the following
shareholders, whose voting rights in CENIT AG amount to 3% or more: Baden-Wirttembergische
Versorgungsanstalt fiir Arzte, Zahnirzte und Tierdrzte.

In a letterdated 29 October 2015, MainFirst SICAV, Senningerberg, Luxembourg, announced that
its share of votingrights in CENIT AG, Stuttgart, Germany, exceeded the threshold of 5%: MainFirst
SICAV, Senningerberg, Luxembourg, informed us on 29 October 2015 pursuant to Sec. 21 (1)
WpHG that its share of votingrightsin CENIT AG, Stuttgart, Germany, exceeded the threshold of
5% of voting rights on 28 October 2015 and amounted to 5.05% on that date (corresponding to
422,792 voting rights).

During the 2021 reporting period, several notices pursuant to Sec. 40 (1) WpHG were received
from PRIMEPULSE SE. The last notice is dated 11 August 2021 and is as follows: PRIMEPULSE SE,
Munich, Germany, informed us pursuant to Sec. 40 (1) WpHG that its share of voting rights in
CENIT AG, Stuttgart, Germany, exceeded the threshold of 20% on 10 August 2021 and amounted
to 25.01% on that date (corresponding to 2,092,950 voting rights).

During the 2022 reporting period, several notices pursuant to Sec. 40 (1) WpHG were received
from Allianz Global Investors GmbH. The last notice was dated 25 May 2022 and was as follows:
Allianz Global Investors GmbH, Frankfurt am Main, Germany, informed us pursuant to Sec. 40 (1)
WpHG that its share of votingrightsin CENIT AG, Stuttgart, Germany, fell below the threshold of
3% of voting rights on 24 May 2022 and amounted to 2.87% on that date (corresponding to
240,000 voting rights).

Inaletterdated 5 August 2022, Otus Capital Management Ltd., London, UK, informedus pursuant
to Sec. 40 (1) WpHG thatits share of votingrightsin CENIT AG, Stuttgart, Germany, exceeded the
threshold of 3% on 3 August 2022 and amounted to 3.20% on that date (corresponding to 267,929
voting rights).
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4. Group auditor’s fees

in EUR k 2022 2021
Auditfees (annual financial statements and consolidated financial

151 201
statements)
thereof relatingto other periods: EURO k (prioryear: EUR 37 k)
Total 151 201

5. Events after the reporting period

mip Management Informationspartner GmbH with its registered officesin Munich became part of
the CENIT Group with an acquisition date as of 31 January 2023. The purchase price includes a
fixed amount of EUR 3,273 k and a variable earn-out agreement. The software and consulting
company mip GmbH is a specialistinthe GSA region for data management and analysis, software
development and the operation of IT infrastructure and applications. The 100% takeover of the
roughly 30 employees of mip, a strong and agile data management expert with annual sales of
almost EUR 5 million, is a logical and carefully planned milestone in CENIT’s growth strategy.

With the signing of the contract on March 29, 2023, CENIT AG sold 100% of the shares in its
subsidiary CENIT Japan K.K.. The Japanese subsidiary of CENIT will then become part of Argo
GraphicsInc. (Tokyo) as of June 01, 2023, which will act as masterresellerforthe CENIT software
FASTUITE E2 inthe future and thus strengthen CENIT's presence on the Japaneserobotics market.
The purchase priceis calculatedon the acquisition date and is based on an enterprise value of EUR
1,000 k.

Translated with www.DeeplL.com/Translator (free version)

6. Declaration pursuant to Sec. 161 AktG on the German Corporate Governance
Code

The Management Board and Supervisory Board of the Company have issued the declaration for
2022 required by Sec. 161 AktG and made itavailable onthe Company’s homepage
(https://www.cenit.com/en_EN/investors/corporate-governance.html).

Stuttgart, 31 March 2023

CENIT Aktiengesellschaft
The Management Board

Al ey

Peter Schneck Axelle Mazé
Spokesperson, Management Board Member, Management Board
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Independent auditor’s report

To CENIT AG, Stuttgart

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements and of the combined management report
Opinions

We have audited the consolidated finandal statements of CENIT AG, Stuttgart, andits subsidiaries (the Group), which
comprise the consolidated statement of finandal position as at 31 December 2022, the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changesin equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the annual period from 1January 2022 to 31 December 2022 as well as the
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. In addition, we
have auditedthe combined managementreport of CENIT AG, Stuttgart, forthe annual period from 1January 2022 to
31December2022. Inaccordance withthe German legal require ments, we have not audited the content of the sections
1.7 b) “Personnel policy”, “Remuneration system — profit sharing”, 6.1 “Key characteristics of the internal control and
risk management system”, 6.8 “Statement on the appropriateness and effectiveness of the internal control and risk
management system” in the combined management report or the corporate governance statement prescribed by
Sec.289f HGB and/or Sec. 315d HGB orthe non-financial group statement prescribed by Sec. 315b HGB, referredto in
the combined management report.

In our opinion, on the basis of the knowledge obtained in the audit,

e the accompanying consolidated financial statements comply, in all materialrespects, with the IFRSs as adopted by
the EU, and the additional requirements of German commercial law pursuant to Sec.315e (1) HGB
[“Handelsgesetzbuch”: German Commercial Code] and, in compliance with these requirements, give a true and fair
view of the assets, liabilities and financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2022 and of its finandal
performance forthe annual period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022, and

e the accompanyingcombined management reportasawhole provides an appropriate view of the Group’s position.
In all materialrespects, this combined management reportis consistent with the consolidated financial statements,
complies with German legal requirements and appropriately presents the opportunities and risks of future
development. Our opinion on the combined management report does not cover the aforementioned components
of the combined managementreport for which we have not audited the content.

Pursuantto Sec.322 (3) Sentence 1 HGB, we declare that ouraudit has notled to any reservations relating to the legal
compliance of the consolidated financial statements and of the combined management report.

Basis for the opinions

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements and of the combined management report in
accordance with Sec.317 HGB and the EU Audit Regulation (No 537/2014, referred to subsequently as “EU Audit
Regulation”) and in compliance with German Generally Acce pted Standards for Financial Statement Audits promulgated
by the Institut der Wirtschaftsprifer [Institute of Public Auditors in Germany] (IDW). Our responsibilities under those
requirements and prindples are further described in the “Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements and of the combined management re port” section of our auditor’s report. We are independent of
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the group entities inaccordance with the requirements of European law and German commercialand professional law,
and we have fulfilled our other German professional responsibilities in accordance with these re quirements. Inaddition,
inaccordance with Art. 10 (2) f) of the EU Audit Regulation, we declare that we have not provided non-audit senices
prohibited under Art. 5 (1) of the EU Audit Regulation. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinions on the consolidated financial statements and on the combined
management report.

Other matter

The consolidated financial statements and combined management report of CENIT AG forthe previous annual period
endingon 31 December 2021 was audited by a different auditor, which issued unmodified audit opinions on these
consolidated financial statements and this combined management report on 31 March 2022.

Key audit matters in the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements forthe annual period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022. These matters were
addressedin the context of ouraudit of the consolidated finandal statements as a whole, andin forming our opinion
thereon; we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have presented the key a udit matters from our perspective below. We have structured our presentation of the key
audit matters as follows:

@ Risk forthe financial statements
@ Auditapproach
® Related disclosures

Revenue recognition
@ Risk forthe financial statements
The Group reports revenue of EUR162.2 millionfortheannual period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022.

The Group primarily generatesrevenue from the licensing of software (proprietary and third-party s oftware), s oftware
updates, the provision of IT servicesas well asthe provision of consulting services for the planning, implementation and
optimization of business and IT processes.

Due to the large number of product types and the complexity of the rules around revenue recognition, there is a risk
forthe consolidated financial statements that revenue is re cognized without having provided the actual service. There
is also arisk thatrevenueis not recognizedinthe correct period. As a result, this matter was a key audit matter as part
of our audit.

@ Auditapproach

To audit revenue recognition, we assessed the design, implementation and effectiveness of the internal controls in
terms of revenue recording and cut-off based onour understanding ofthe process. We also considered the IT systems
environment relevant for financial reporting purposes in this context.

We assessedthe recognition ofrevenue forall main product types, i.e. from licensing of software (proprietary s oftware
and third-party software), software updates, the provision of IT services as wellas the provision of consultingsenices
for the planning, implementation and optimization of business and IT processes by comparing the invoices with the
correspondingorders, contracts and acceptance records. We used revenue in the 2022 reporting period asa base, which
was selected using an actuarial method.

We assessed the timing of revenue recognition for revenue from licensing of software, the provision of IT seniices as
well as the provision of consulting services by comparing the invoices with the corresponding orders, contracts and
acceptance records. We used revenue in December 2022 as a base, which was selected consciously.

To substantiate the existence of the reve nue as of the re porting date, we obtained invoice confirmations selected using
an actuarial method for the trade receivables not yet settled as of the end of the reporting period. For outstanding
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replies from the invoice and balance confirmation work, we carried out alternative audit procedures by recondiling
revenue among other things with the underlying orders, contracts, invoices, delivery notes and acceptance re cords
and/or proof of hours as well as the payments received.

® Related disclosures

The disclosures by CENIT AG regarding the presentation of revenue in the financial reporting are induded in sections
“D. Accounting policies” and “E.1. Revenue” in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Presentation of the acquisition of ISR AG in the financial reporting
@ Risk forthe financial statements

On 31 May 2022, CENITAG acquired 74.9% of the shares in ISR AG, Braunschweig, as well as further options regarding
the additional purchase of the remaining 25.1% of the shares. The purchase price net of cash and cash equivalents
acquired amounted to EUR 28.6 million.

The goodwillresulting from the acquisition and reportedin the consolidated financialstatements of CENIT AG as of 31
December 2022 amounts to EUR 21.1 million. The rights fromthe longcall option are reported under non-current other
financial assets at EUR5.7 million, while the obligations from the short put option are recognized under non-cumrent
financial liabilities at EUR 1.7 million.

The identifiable assets and liabilitiesacquired are generally re cognized at acquisition-date fair value in accordance with
IFRS 3.The Group usedan external expert to identifyand measure the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired. The
longcalloptionand the short put optionwere assessed byanother external expertandvalued usinganoption pricing
model.

The identification, recognition and measure ment of the assets and liabilities acquired and of both options is complex
and is based onassumptions by the Management Board that are subject to judgment. The significant assumptions relate
to the sales planning and margin development of the acquired operations, the capital costs and the volatility of the
input parameters.

There is a risk for the consolidated finandal statements that the assets and liabilities acquired and the options are
identifiedinaccurately and/or recognized and measured incorrectly. There is also a risk that the disclosures in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements are not correct. In view of these facts and due to the significance of the
acquisition of ISR AG for the presentation of the assets and liabilities and finandal performance in the consolidated
financial statements of CENIT AG, this matter was a keyaudit matter as part of our audit.

@ Auditapproach

We first gained an understanding of the purchase transaction by asking questions of employees in the finance
department and by inspecting and assessing the relevant contracts. We analyzed the individual contract components
thathave aneffecton the consolidated financial statements and assessed the accuracy of the financial re porting. We
reconciled the purchase price with the underlying purchase agreement and the proof of payment.

We assessed the competency, ability and objectivity of the independent experts engaged by the executive directors.

We involved our internal valuation specialists to assess, among other things, the appropriateness of the significant
assumptions and of the identification and measurement methods. Our internal valuation specialists compared the
assumptions and data underlying the capital costs with their own assumptions and with publicly accessible data.

We also evaluated the documentation prepared by the executive directors and/or the experts used. We checked
whether the measurement methods used corresponded to the measurement principles. We discussed the expected
sales and margin development with the persons responsible for the planning.

Furthermore, we assessed the process for identifying the assets and liabilities acquired in the context of our knowledge
of the business modelof ISRAG for compliance with the requirements in accordance with IFRS3. Ourinternalvaluation
specialists compared the license rates used to measure intangible assets with reference values from relevant databases.

To assess clerical accuracy, we checked the calculations or did our own calculations. Last but not least, we assessed
whether the disclosures on the acquisition in the notes were complete and accurate.

® Related disclosures
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The disclosures bythe CENIT Group on the presentation of the ISR acquisition in the financial re portingare contained

” o«

in sections “D. Accounting polides”, “C. Consolidation prindiples”, “F.1. Intangible assets” and — for the options —in

“E.10. Earnings fromfinancialinstruments at fairvalue through profitorloss”, “F.4. Non-current other financial assets
and non-current financial liabilities” in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Recoverability of goodwill
@ Risk forthe financial statements

Goodwillof EUR 27.8 million is reported inthe ‘Intangible assets’ itemin the consolidated financial statements as of 31
December2022. This represents a share of 21.9% of total assets. The goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units.

The cash-generating units are subject to impairment tests at least once a year or as the need arises. This involves
comparing the carrying amounts of the cash-generating units with their respective recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is determined by calculating the value in use of the respective cash-generating units using the
discounted cash flow method. The cash flow projections for the cash-generating units are based on the enterprise
planning prepared bythe Management Board and approved bythe Supervisory Board. The planning covers a period of
one year andis then rolled forward using medium-term assumptions over the next four years and long-term growth
rates (terminal value). Expectations around future market developments are also included. Cash flows are discounted
using the weighted average cost of capital ofthe respective cash-generatingunit. Based on the Company’s calculations
and the further documentation, there was noneed forthe Companyto record anywrite-downs forthe 2022 reporting
period.

The findings from this assessment are highly dependent on the estimate of future cash flows by the Management Board
and on the discount rate used as well as the growth rates. They are thus subject to considerable estimation
uncertainties. Consequently, thereis a risk that the goodwillis not recoverable at the amount re ported. In view of these
facts and due to the significance of the goodwill for the presentation of the assets and liabilities and finandal
performance in the consolidated financial statements of CENIT AG, this matter was a key audit matter as part of our
audit.

@ Auditapproach

To audit impairment of goodwill, we assessed the design of the internal controls based on our understanding of the
process.

We assessedthe competency, ability and objectivity of the independent expert engaged by the executive directors.

To assessthe quality and reliability of the enterprise planning, we compared the planning for the prior re porting period
with the actual results and analyzed any variances (planning reliability) in cases where the prior-year planning was
available. We discussed the assumptions and premises underlying the planning with those responsible and tested these
for plausibility. To do this, we reconciled the assumptions made with the macroeconomic and sector-specific market
expectations,amongotherthings. We alsoexamined whether future net cash flows were derived a ppropriately from
the assumptions and premises.

We involved our internal valuation specialist to verify the valuation methods used. In the knowledge that even small
changes in the discount rate used can have material effects on the amount of the business value calculated, we
examinedthe parameters usedto determine the discountrate in each case, includingthe weighted cost of capital, and
checked whether these were within the customary marketrange.

We checkedwhetherthe future cash flows underlying the valuations and taken together with the cost of capital used
provide an appropriate basis forvaluation overall.

We checked the clerical accuracy of the calculation method used to determine the values in use.

Last but not least, we audited the completeness and accuracy of the disclosures for the notes to the consolidated
financial statements required by IAS 36.

® Related disclosures

The disclosures by the CENIT Group regarding goodwill and its recoverability are included in sections “D. Accounting
policies” and “F.1. Goodwill” in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Other information

The executive directors and/orthe Supervisory Board are responsible for the otherinformation. The other information
comprises:

e the corporate governancestatement prescribed by Sec. 289f HGB and/or Sec. 315d HGB referred to in the combined
management report,

e the separate non-finandal statement prescribed by Sec. 315b HGB referred to in the combined management report,
which is expected to be provided to us after the date of this auditor’s report,

e the sections 1.7 b) “Personnel policy”, “Remuneration system — profit sharing”, 6.1 “Key characteristics of the
internal control and risk management system”, 6.8 “Statement on the appropriateness and effectiveness of the
internal control and risk management system” in the combined managementreport,

e the assurances by the executive directors prescribed by Sec. 297 (2) Sentence 4 HGB and Sec. 315 (1) Sentence 5
HGB on the consolidated financial statements and the combined management report,

e the report of the Supervisory Board and
e the other parts of the ‘annual report’,

e but notthe consolidated financial statements, the combined management report disclosures for which we have
audited the content or our corresponding auditor’s report.

The SupervisoryBoard is responsible for the re port of the Supervisory Board. The declaration pursuant to Sec. 161 AktG
on the German Corporate Governance Code, which is part of the corporate governance statement, is the responsibility
of the executive directors and of the Supervisory Board. Otherwise the executive directors are responsible for other
information.

Our opinions on the consolidated financial statements and on the combined management report do not cover other
information, and consequently we do not express an opinion orany other form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with ouraudit ofthe consolidated financial statements, our responsibilityis to read the aforementioned
otherinformation and, in so doing, to consider whether the otherinformation

e is materiallyinconsistent with the consolidated finandal statements, the combined management report disdosures
for which we have audited the content or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or

e otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If we conclude, based onthe workcarried out by us on the otherinformation obtained before the date of thisa uditor's
report, thatthis otherinformationis materially misstated, we are obliged to report this fact. We do not have anything
to reportin this regard.

Responsibilities of the executive directors and the Supervisory Board for the consolidated financial statements and
the combined management report

The executive directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that comply, inall
material respects, with IFRSs asadopted by the EU and theadditional require ments of German commerdal law pursuant
to Sec.315e (1) HGB, and that the consolidated financial statements, in compliance with these requirements, give a
true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and financial performance of the Group. In addition, the
executive directors are responsible for such internal controls as they have determined necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated finandal statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraudulent
acts (i.e. manipulation of the financial reporting and misappropriation of assets) or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the executive directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s
abilityto continue as a going concern. Theyalso have the responsibility for disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern.Inaddition, theyare responsible for financialreporting based on the goingconcern basis of accounting
unlessthereisanintentionto liquidate the Group orto cease operations, orthereis norealistic alternative but to do
so.

Furthermore, the executive directors are responsible for the preparation ofthe combined management report that, as
a whole, provides an appropriate view of the Group’s position and is, in all material respects, consistent with the
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consolidated finandal statements, complies with German legal requirements and appropriately presents the
opportunities and risks of future development. In addition, the executive directors are responsible for such
arrangements and measures (systems) as they have considered necessary to enable the preparation of a combined
management report that is in accordance with the applicable German legal requirements, and to be able to provide
sufficient appropriate evidence for the assertions in the combined management report.

The SupervisoryBoard is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements and of the combined managementreport.

Auditor’s responsibility for the audit of the consolidated financial statements and of the combined management
report

Ourobjectives are to obtainreasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraudulent acts or error, and whether the combined management
reportasa whole provides anappropriate view of the Group’s position and, inallmaterial respects, is consistent with
the consolidated finandal statements and the knowledge obtained in the audit, complies with the German legal
requirements and appropriately presents the opportunities and risks of future development, as wellas to issue an
auditor’s report thatincludes our opinions on the consolidated financial statements and on the combined management
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
Sec.317 HGB andthe EU Audit Regulation andin compliance with German Generally Acce pted Standards for Financial
Statement Audits promulgated by the Institut der Wirtschaftsprifer (IDW) will always detect a material misstatement.
Misstatements canarise from fraudulentacts orerrorandare considered material if, individuallyorin the aggregate,
theycould reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis ofthese consolidated
financial statements and this combined management report.

We exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also

e |dentifyandassess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated finandal statements and of the combined
management report, whetherdue to fraudulent acts or error, design and performaudit procedures responsive to
thoserisks, and obtain audit evidence thatis sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinions. The risk
of notdetectinga materialmisstatement resulting fromfraudulent acts is higher thanforone resulting from error,
as fraudulent acts may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit of the consolidated financial statements and of
arrangements and measures (systems)relevant to the audit ofthe combined management reportin order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate inthe circumstances, but not for the purpose of e xpressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of these systems.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used by the executive directors and the reasonableness of
estimates made by the executive directors and related disclosures.

e Concludeonthe appropriateness of the executive directors’ use of the goingconcern basis of accountingand, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
signifi@antdoubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we condude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in the auditor’s report to the related disclosuresin the consolidated
financial statements andin the combined management report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
respective opinions. Our condusions are based ontheaudit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to be able to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements present the underlying transactions and eventsina
manner that the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, finandal position
and financial performance of the Group in compliance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and the additional
requirements of German commercial law pursuant to Sec. 315e (1) HGB.
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e Obtainsuffidentappropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express opinions on the consolidated finandal statements and on the combined management
report. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible forouraudit opinions.

e Evaluate the consistency of the combined management report with the consolidated financial statements, its
conformity with German law, and the view of the Group’s position it provides.

e Perform audit procedures on the prospective information presented by the executive directors in the combined
management report. On the basis of sufficient a ppropriate audit evidence we evaluate, in particular, the significant
assumptions used by the executive directors as a basis for the prospective information, and evaluate the proper
derivation of the prospective information from these assumptions. We do not express a separate opinion on the
prospective information and onthe assumptions used as a basis. There is a substantial unavoidable risk that future
events will differ materially from the prospective information.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, amongother things, the planned scope and timing of
the auditand significant audit findings, includingany significant deficiencies ininternal control that we identify during
our audit.

We provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with the relevantindependence
requirements and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on ourindependence and, where applicable, the related actions or safeguards taken to eliminate risks to independence.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these mattersinourauditor’s report unless law orregulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter.

Other legal and regulatory requirements

Assurance report in accordance with Sec. 317 (3a) HGB of the electronic rendering of the consolidated financial
statements and the combined management report prepared for disclosure purposes

Opinion

We have performed an assurance engagement in accordance with Sec. 317 (3a) HGB to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the rendering of the consolidated financial statements and the combined management report
(hereinafter the “ESEF documents”) contained in the file ,391200KYFPOLFJNEWL98-2022-12-31-de.zip“(SHA256:
17d2e14eaa8e0a0455e656e4bae7b678c83976faaad989d eebcd280990928076) and prepared for disclosure purposes
compliesin all material respects with the requirements of Sec. 328 (1) HGB for the electronic reporting format (“ESEF
format”). Inaccordance with German | egal re quirements, this assurance engagement extends only to the conwversion of
the information contained in the consolidated financial statements and the combined management report into the ESEF
formatandtherefore relates neither to the information contained within these renderings nor to any other information
contained in the above-mentioned file.

In our opinion, the reproduction of the consolidated financial statements and the combined management report
containedinthe above-mentionedfile and prepared for publication purposes complies in all material respects with the
requirements of Sec. 328 (1) HGBforthe electronic re portingformat. We do not expressanyopinion onthe information
containedinthisrenderingnoron anyotherinformation containedin the above-mentioned file beyond this reasonable
assurance conclusion and our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements and the
accompanying combined management report for the annual period from 1January 2022 to 31 December 2022
contained in the “Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements and of the combined management
report” above.

Basis for the opinion

We conducted our assessment of the rendering of the consolidated finandal statements and the combined
management report contained in the above-mentioned file in accordance with Sec. 317 (3a) HGBand the IDW Assurance
Standard: Assurance in accordance with Sec. 317 (3a) HGB on the Electronic Rendering of Financial Statements and
Management Reports Prepared for Disclosure Purposes (IDW AsS 410 (06.2022)). Our responsibility is described in more
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detailinthe section “Responsibility of the auditor forthe audit of the ESEF documents”. Ouraudit firm hasapplied the
IDW Standard on Quality Management 1: Requirements for Quality Ma nagement in Audit Firms (IDW QMS 1 (09.2022)).

Responsibilities of the executive directors and the Supervisory Board for the ESEF documents

The executive directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the ESEF documents including the
electronicrenderingof the consolidated financial statements and the combined management reportin accordance with
Sec.328(1) Sentence4 No.1HGB and forthe taggingof the consolidated financial statements in accordance with Sec.
328 (1) Sentence 4 No. 2 HGB.

In addition, the executive directors ofthe Companyare responsible for the internal controls they consider necessary to
enablethe preparation of ESEF documents that are free from material non-compliance with the requirements of Sec.
328 (1) HGB for the electronic reporting format, whether due to fraudulent acts or error.

The Supervisory Board isresponsible for overseeing the process of preparing the ESEF documents as part of the finandial
reporting process.

Responsibility of the auditor for the audit of the ESEF documents

Our objective is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the ESEF documents are free from material non-
compliance with the requirements of Sec.328 (1) HGB, whether due to fraudulent acts or error. We exerdse
professional judgmentand maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also

e |dentifyandassessthe risks of material non-compliance with the requirements ofSec. 328 (1) HGB, whether due to
fraudulentacts orerror, designand performassurance procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain assurance
evidence thatis sufficientand appropriate to provide a basis forourassurance conclusion.

e Obtainan understanding of internal control relevant to the assessment of the ESEF documents in order to design
assurance procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose ofexpressing a condusion
on the effectiveness of these controls.

e Evaluatethe technicalvalidity of the ESEF documents, i.e. whether the electronic file containing the ESEF documents
meets the requirements of Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2019/815, in the version valid as of the re porting
date, on the technical specification for this electronicfile.

e Evaluate whether the ESEF documents enable an XHTML rendering with content equivalent to the audited
consolidated financial statements and the audited combined managementreport.

e Evaluate whetherthe tagging of the ESEF documents with Inline XBRL technology (i XBRL) provides an a ppropriate
and complete machine-readable XBRL copy of the XHTML renderingin accordance with Articles 4 and 6 of the
Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2019/815 as amended as of the end of the reporting period.

Further information pursuant to Art. 10 of the EU audit regulation

We were elected as group auditor bythe Annual General Meetingof Shareholders on 20 May 2022. We were engaged
by the Supervisory Board on 24 May 2022. We have been the group auditor of CENIT AG, Stuttgart, since the 2022
reporting period.

We declare that the opinions expressed in this auditor’'s report are consistent with the additionalreport to the
Supervisory Board pursuant to Art. 11 of the EU Audit Regulation (long-form audit report).

Other matter — use of the auditor’s report

Ourauditor’s report must always be read together with the audited consolidated finandal statements and the audited
combined management report as well as the assured ESEF documents. The consolidated financial statements and
combined management report converted to the ESEF format—including the versions to be published in the company
register—are merelyelectronicrenderings ofthe audited consolidated financial statements and the combined audited
management report and do not take their place. In particular the ESEF report and our assurance opinion contained
therein areto be used solely together with the assured ESEF documents made available in electronic form.
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German Public Auditor responsible for the engagement
The German Public Auditor responsible for the engagementis Simon Harms.
Frankfurt am Main, 31 March 2023

Grant Thornton AG
Wirtschaftspriifungsgesellschaft

Prof. Dr. Thomas Senger Simon Harms
Wirtschaftspriifer Wirtschaftspriifer
(German Public Auditor) (German Public Auditor)
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Responsibility Statement in the Annual Financial Report

(Group Financial Report)

After considering comments received, the German Accounting Standards Board (GASB) agreed at
its 114th meeting on the following wording of the responsibility statement required by section
37y no. 1 of the Wertpapierhandelsgesetz (WpHG—German Securities Trading Act) in conjunction
with sections 297(2) sentence 2and 315(1) sentence 6 of the Handelsgesetzbuch (HGB— German
Commercial Code) for the Group financial statements:

“To the best of our knowledge, and in accordance with the applicable reporting principles, the
Group financial statementsgive atrue and fairview of the assets, liabilities, financial position and
profit or loss of the group, and the group management report includes a fair review of the
development and performance of the business and the position of the group, together with a
description of the principal opportunities and risks associated with the expected development of
the group.”

The Management Board

i g

Peter Schneck Axelle Mazé
Spokesman, Management Board Member, Management Board

m 132



o~

N Sy

N =

=




CENIT Aktiengesellschaft, Stuttgart
BALANCE SHEET

ASSETS

A.
l.

FIXED ASSETS

Intangible assets

Franchises,
industrial and similarrights
and assets and licenses in such rights and assets

Property, plantand equipment

1. Land andbuildings, including buildings on third-
partyland

2. Plantandmachinery

3. Otherequipment, furniture and fixtures

Finandial assets
1. Sharesinaffiliates
2. Equityinvestments

3. Loansto affiliates

CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories
1. Workin process

2. Paymentsonaccount

Receivablesandotherassets

1. Trade receivables

2. Receivablesfrom affiliates

3. Receivablesfrom otherinvestees andinvestors
4

. Otherassets

Cash on hand, bankbalances

PREPAID EXPENSES

EUR

385,959.22

325,724.62
68,990.19

39,004,816.75
2,802,757.89
429,000.00

279,014.13
70,178.78

9,672,138.18
1,471,050.85
3,857,782.50
3,705,637.60

31 Dec. 2022

EUR

325,666.43

780,674.03

42,236,574.64

349,192.91

18,706,609.13

6,920,446.05

6,068,818.06

75,387,981.25

31 Dec. 2021
EUR

552,817.44

400,857.62

441,634.75
24,323.01
866,815.38

9,105,647.38

2,802,757.89

1,330,000.00
13,238,405.27

392,117.04
15,862.22
407,979.26

13,813,606.13
1,442,466.12
2,849,451.49
810,117.45
18,915,641.19

15,289,599.88

3,159,523.66

52,430,782.08
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CENIT Aktiengesellschaft, Stuttgart
BALANCE SHEET

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

A.

m 135

EQUITY

Subscribed capital
Capital reserves

Revenue reserves
1. Legalreserve

2. Otherrevenuereserves

Netretained profit

PROVISIONS

1. Taxprovisions

2. Otherprovisions

LIABILITIES

Liabilities to banks

Payments received on account of orders
Trade payables

Liabilities to affiliates

Liabilities to otherinvestees and investors

oV|P|WINIPF

Otherliabilities

thereofforsocialsecurity: EUR 10,687.25 (prior
year:EUR 0.00)

thereoffortaxes: EUR 631,923.68 (prioryear:
EUR 1,519,826.19)

DEFERRED INCOME

EUR

345,967.00
5,173,983.65

21,350,000.00
382,040.53
5,194,931.95
662,171.10
26,092.51
3,162,741.26

31 Dec. 2022
EUR

8,367,758.00
1,058,017.90

418,387.90
13,870,955.48

8,915,353.54
32,630,472.82

5,519,950.65

30,777,977.35

6,459,580.43

75,387,981.25

31 Dec. 2021
EUR

8,367,758.00
1,058,017.90

418,387.90
13,870,955.48

9,877,738.22
33,592,857.50

234,066.00
7,433,363.65
7,667,429.65

763,985.90
2,226,412.50
716,832.35
27,534.11
1,575,971.96

5,310,736.82

5,859,758.11

52,430,782.08



CENIT Aktiengesellschaft, Stuttgart

INCOME STATEMENT
Revenue

2. Decreasein inventoriesof workin process (prioryear:
increase)

3. Otheroperatingincome
thereofincome from currency translation: EUR 95,486.85
(prior year: EUR 190,947.61)
Total operating performance

4. Costof materials

a. Costof raw materials, consumables and supplies and of
purchased merchandise

b.  Costofpurchased services

5. Personnel expenses

a.  Salaries

b.  Socialsecurityand pensioncosts

6. Amortization ofintangible assets and depreciation of
property, plantand equipment

7. Otheroperatingexpenses
thereof from currency translation: EUR 152,980.79 (prior
year: EUR 124,998.08)
Operating result

8. Income from equity investments
thereoffrom affiliates: EUR 3,375,552.20
(prioryear: EUR 276,254.02)

9. Otherinterestandsimilarincome
thereoffrom affiliates: EUR 50,812.86
(prioryear: EUR 84,091.12)

10. Write-downs offinancial assets

11. Interestandsimilarexpenses
thereof from unwinding of the discount on provisions:
EUR 7,152.00 (prior year: EUR 8,044.00)

12. Incometaxes

13. Earnings aftertaxes

14. Othertaxes

15. Netincomefortheyear

EUR
95,094,909.34

-113,102.91

879,850.96

36,200,870.59

6,040,600.48

32,299,079.78
5,578,333.89

721,278.12

11,818,643.72

2022
EUR

95,861,657.39

42,241,471.07

37,877,413.67

3,202,850.81
3,375,552.20

50,967.86

0.00
247,678.21

1,021,616.11
5,360,076.55

46,642.73
5,313,433.82

2021
EUR
92,928,877.91

-130,556.16

1,338,162.71

94,136,484.46

34,799,779.08

5,017,502.79
39,817,281.87

33,639,885.17
5,763,289.29
39,403,174.46

1,074,318.80

10,012,940.09

3,828,769.24
276,254.02

84,091.12

344,664.52
14,558.52

1,027,308.95
2,802,582.39

50,524.85
2,752,057.54
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CENIT Aktiengesellschaft, Stuttgart

Notes to the financial statements for 2022

A General

CENIT AG has its registered offices in Stuttgart and is entered in the commercial register at
Stuttgart local court (HRB 19117). It is a large listed corporation within the meaning of Sec. 267
(3) HGB [“Handelsgesetzbuch”: German Commercial Code] in conjunction with Sec. 264d HGB.

These financial statements have been preparedin accordance with Sec. 242 etseq. and Sec. 264
et seq. HGB as well as in accordance with the relevant provisions of the AktG [“Aktiengesetz”:
German Stock Corporation Act]. The Company is subject to the requirements for large
corporations. The standards of Deutsches Rechnungslegungs Standards Committee e.V., Berlin,
(DRSC) (the Accounting Standards Committee of Germany (ASCG)) have been observed to the
extent that they are relevant for the annual financial statements of the Company.

The income statement is classified using the nature of expense method.

For the sake of clarity, some of the “thereof” notesto be disclosed eitherin the balance sheet and
income statement or in the notes are included in the notes.

B Accounting principles

The following accounting and valuation methods, which remained unchanged in comparison to
the prior year, have been used to prepare the financial statements.

Acquiredintangible assets are recognized at acquisition costand are amortized over their useful
lives using the straight-line method if they have a limited life. The depreciation tables published
by the German Ministry of Finance serve as a guide here. The useful life is between three and ten
years. Additions are amortized pro rata temporis.

Property, plantand equipmentare recognized at acquisition cost and are depreciatedif they have
a limited life. Depreciation is recorded over the customary useful life using the straight-line
method. The depreciation tables published by the German Ministry of Finance serve as a guide
here. The useful life of property, plantand equipmentis between three and ten years. Additions
are depreciated pro rata temporis.

Low-value assets with an individual net value notexceeding EUR 150 were fully expensedin the
year of acquisition. Assets with anindividual netvalue not exceeding EUR 800 are fully expensed
in the year of acquisition with theirimmediate disposal being assumed.

Financial assets are recognized atacquisition cost. Write-downs to theirlower attributable value
are recognized only if impairment is expected to be permanent.

Workin processisvalued at production cost or, in the case of third-party work, at acquisition cost.
Own work comprises directlaborand appropriate, proportionate overheads for personnel, write-
downsand rentas well as general and administrative expenses. If the market value is lower as of
the balance sheet date, work in process is recognized at that value.

Merchandise and payments on account are measured at acquisition cost. Where necessary, write-
downs to the lower net realizable value are recognized.
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Receivables and other assets are stated at theirnominal value. All recognizable specificrisks are
taken into account with specific bad debt allowances. A general bad debt allowance of 1%
(prioryear: 1%) was established for the general credit risk.

Cash on hand and bank balances are each stated at nominal value.

Expenses paid before the balance sheet date thatrepresentan expense foracertain period after
that date are accrued as prepaid expenses on the assets side of the balance sheet. Income
received beforethe balance sheetdate thatrepresentsincome foracertain period after that date
is reported as deferred income on the liabilities side of the balance sheet.

Equity items are stated at their nominal amount.

Provisions account for all foreseeable risks and contingent liabilities and are recognized at the
settlement value deemed necessary according to prudent business judgment. Expected future
price and cost increases are included invaluingthe provisions. Provisions with aresidual term of
more than one year were discounted at the average market interest rate of the last seven fiscal
years published by the German Central Bank for their respective residual term. The discounting
expense is disclosed in the financial result, while effects from the change in the interest rate or
the change inthe termare presentedinthe operatingresult. Provisions for potential losses from
pendingtransactions (‘loss provisions’) comprisefuture losses notyetrealized. There isarisk of a
loss from pending transactions if income and expenses from the same transaction, not yet
completed, do not balance out, but lead instead to a net obligation. A provision of EUR 4 k was
recognized for this in the fiscal year (prior year: EUR 0 k).

Liabilities are recorded at the settlement value.

To determine deferred taxes arising due to temporary or quasi-permanent differences between
the carrying amounts of assets, liabilities, prepaid expenses and deferred income in the statutory
accounts and theirtax carryingamounts, the resultingtax burden and relief are valued using the
company-specifictax rate at the time the differences reverse; theseamounts are not discounted.
The option not to recognize deferred tax assets was exercised.

Foreign currency assets and liabilities were translated using the mean spot rate on the balance
sheet date. If they had residual terms of morethan one year, the realization principle (Sec. 252 (1)
No. 4 Clause 2 HGB) and the historical cost principle (Sec. 253 (1) Sentence 1HGB) were applied.

CENIT generates revenue from the licensing of (standard) software (proprietary software and
third-party software), software updates (for proprietary software and third-party software), the
provision of IT services as well as the provision of consulting services for the planning,
implementation and optimization of business and IT processes. Revenue is also generated from
the sale of goods.

At CENIT, the different products are categorized according to the following contract types:

- Royalties —these encompass the revenue from software and software updates

- Fixed-price projects

- Sale of goods and services — this encompasses revenue from service and consulting
projects that also include hardware sales

- Merchandise
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Software licenses

Royalties from grantingtemporary licenses—to the extent that the software grants a rightto use
the intellectual property as of the date of granting the license — and income from the sale of
permanent licenses are recognized when the software has been provided to the customer
(revenue recognition at a pointin time).

Royalties from software as a service are recognized pro rata over the termof rendering the service.
Royalties from software as a service are generally charged annually or quarterly in advance. The
advance payments received for future services are recognized as deferred income.

Software updates

This includes revenue from contracts that grant the customeraccess to software updates. These
updates mainly involve error resolution, improved performance of the existing functions of the
software or adjustments to changed framework conditions.

Royalties from software updates are recognized pro rata overthe term of renderingthe service.
Royalties from software updates are generally charged annually or quarterly in advance. The
advance payments received for future services are recognized as deferred income.

Services (consulting & service)

Revenue from services charged on an hourly basis relates to consulting services, training,
application and user support. For these services, revenue recognition generally takes place
monthly based on hours worked.

If there are multiple element arrangements that comprise the sale of software licenses and
services, these are examined to determine if one or several performance obligations exist. If
several performance obligations are identified, the transaction price is allocated in proportion to
the relative stand-alone selling prices. CENIT bases its derivation on its own stand-alone selling
pricesor, if these are not available, on relative stand-alone selling prices for comparable industry
transactions. Revenue recognition for the separate performance obligations can take place at a
pointin time or over time, depending on when the customer has control of the service.

Fixed-price projects / contracts for work

Income from contracts for which a fixed price was agreed (generally contracts for work in
connection with software programming orimplementation) and that have the characteristics of a
contract for work is recognized upon customer acceptance and thus when risk has transferred.

Merchandise

Revenue from merchandise relates chiefly to the sale of end devices. Sales of merchandise are
recognized whenthe performance obligation has been met through delivery to the purchaser.
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C

1.

The development of fixed assetitemsis presented separatelyin the statement of changes in fixed

Notes to the balance sheet and income statement

Balance sheet

Fixed assets

assets (see pages 151 and 152).

2.

The information on shareholdings breaks down as follows:

No.

6a

6b

10

The loans to affiliates contain aloan of EUR 429 k (prioryear: EUR 0 k) to CENITSRL. The loan has
a term of three years. The prior-year loans of EUR 1,000 k to KEONYS SAS and of EUR 330 k to
KEONYS B.V. were repaid in full in the fiscal year.

Financial assets

Name and location of registered
offices

CENIT (Schweiz) AG
Effretikon, Switzerland
CENIT North Americalnc.
Auburn Hills, USA
CENIT SRL

lasi, Romania

CENIT France SARL
Toulouse, France
CENIT Japan K.K.
Tokyo, Japan

KEONYS SAS

Suresnes, France
KEONYS Belgique SPRL
Waterloo, Belgium
KEONYSNL BV
Houten, Netherlands
CENIT Software Technology
(Suzhou) Co., Ltd.
Suzhou, China

Coristo GmbH
Mannheim, Germany

CenProCS AlRliance GmbH
Stuttgart, Germany

ISR Information Products AG
Braunschweig, Germany

Currency

CHF

usD

RON

EUR

YEN

EUR

EUR

EUR

CNY

EUR

EUR

EUR

Share-
holding
in%

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

333

74.9

Subscribed
capital EUR
k

313

28

105

10

470

155

19

18

662

25

150

170

Equity
EUR k

1,354

1,682

704

372

47

2,307

1,731

557

157

2,043

169

3,329

Earnings
EUR k

112

459

41

923

156

148

-210

475

-1

1,817
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3. Inventories

Inventories totaling EUR 349 k (prior year: EUR 408 k) stem primarily from work in process of
EUR 279 k (prior year: EUR 392 k). There were also payments on account of EUR 70 k as of the
balance sheet date (prior year: EUR 16 k).

4, Receivables and other assets
Trade receivables are all due in less than one year.

Receivables from affiliates valued at EUR 1,471 k (prioryear: EUR 1,442 k) and receivables from
other investees and investors valued at EUR 3,858 k (prior year: EUR 2,849 k) stem from trade
and are dueinlessthanone year. The loan of EUR 200 kto CENIT France SARL still disclosedin the
prior year was repaid in full in the fiscal year.

Otherassets consist mostly of EUR 65 k relating to tax refund claims from theresearch grant (prior
year: EUR 720 k), EUR 322 k relating to tax refund claims from corporate income tax and solidarity
surcharge for the fiscal year 2022 (prior year: EUR 0 k), EUR 72 k relating to repayment claims
(prioryear: EUR 0 k), EUR 7 k relatingto receivables from staff (prior year: EUR 5 k) and EUR 29 k
relatingtoreceivables from deposits (prioryear: EUR 25 k). The otherassetsitemalsoincludesan
option of EUR 3,188 k. This option reflects the value of the right to acquire the remaining 25.1%
of shares in ISR Information Products AG. This option can be exercised in the period between
1 October 2029 and 30 September 2032. With the exception of the option, as in the prior year,
other assets are due in less than one year.

5. Prepaid expenses
in EUR k 31 Dec. 2022 31 Dec. 2021
Acc'rued rights of use forlicenses and software 5,130 2291
maintenance
Otherprepaid expenses 939 868
Total 6,069 3,160

This mainly concerns prepaid expenses for royalties and maintenance fees as well as for rights of
use and insurance.

6. Deferred taxes

Deferred taxes stem chiefly from accounting and valuation differences between the statutory
accounts and the tax accounts. These differences relate mostly to other provisions.

On the whole there are net deferred tax assets, and the option not to capitalize these defermed
tax assets was exercised.

Deferred tax assets must be calculated based on a tax rate of 31% (prior year: 31%).
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7. Equity

Capital stock

As per the most recent entry in the commercial register on 14 August 2006, the capital stock of
the Company amountsto EUR 8,367,758.00 and has beenfully paidin. Itisdividedinto 8,367,758
no-par value shares of EUR1.00 each. The shares are made out to the bearer and are all no-par
value common shares.

Capital reserves

The capital reserves remained unchanged in the fiscal year, at EUR 1,058 k.

Legal reserve

At EUR 418 k, the legal reserve has also remained unchanged in comparison to the prior year.

Other revenue reserves

Other revenue reserves of EUR 13,871 k did not change since the prior year.

Net retained profit

Net retained profit developed as follows:

in EUR k 2022 2021

Netincome forthe year 5,313 2,752

Netretained profitinthe prioryear 9,877 11,058

Dividend 6,275 3,933

Profit carryforward from the prior year 3,602 7,126

Netretained profit 8,915 9,877
8. Provisions

As far as tax provisions are concerned, a figure of EUR 109 k relates to provisions for corporate
tax from prioryears, while EUR 237 k relates to trade tax arrears for the current fiscal year and for
prior years.

Other provisions essentially comprise provisions for outstanding supplier invoices of EUR 683 k
(prior year: EUR 1,301 k) and for personnel expenses of EUR 4,132 k (prior year: EUR 5,722 k).

9. Liabilities

As in the prior year, trade payables have a remaining term of less than one year.

Payments on account received relate to prepayments on customer orders of EUR 382 k
(prior year: EUR 764 k) with a remaining term of less than one year.

Liabilities to affiliates relate entirely to trade payables of EUR 662 k (prioryear: EUR 717 k). Asin
the prior year, trade payables to affiliates are due in less than one year.
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The liabilities to other investees and investors contain trade payables amounting to EUR 26 k
(prioryear: EUR 28 k). As inthe prioryear, the correspondingliabilities are due within one year.

The liabilities to banks of EUR 21,350 k (prioryear: EUR 0 k) relate exclusively to interest-bearing
bankloansand have a remaining term of nine months. No collateral was provided for that loan.

Other liabilities do not include any deferred items.

Other liabilities include an option of EUR 2,463 k (prior year: EUR 0 k) in connection with the
possible acquisition of the remaining 25.1% of ISR Information Products AG. This option can be
exercisedinthe period between 1 April 2026 and 31 March 2029. The remaining other liabilities
of EUR 700 k (prior year: EUR 1,576 k) are due in less than one year.

Of the liabilities disclosed, there are no amounts (prioryear: EUR 0 k) secured by liens or similar
rights.

in EUR k < lyear 1<5years >5years Total

Liabilities to banks 21,350 0 0 21,350
Payments received on account of orders 382 0 0 382
Trade payables 5,195 0 0 5,195
Liabilities to affiliates 662 0 0 662
:_rlf,lzlsllgt:;to otherinvesteesand %6 0 0 %
Otherliabilities 700 0 2,463 3,163
Total 28,315 0 2,463 30,778

Il. Income statement
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1. Revenue

in EUR k 2022 2021
Third-party software 46,226 45,580
thereof software 12,762 13,737
thereof software updates 33,464 31,843
CENIT consulting and service 32,682 31,056
CENIT software 14,949 15,727
thereof software 5,314 6,774
thereof software updates 9,635 8,953
Merchandise 581 20
Otherrevenue 657 544
Total 95,095 92,929

86% (prioryear: 87%) of sales was generated inGermany, 7% (prioryear: 6%) inother EU countries
and 7% (prior year: 7%) in other countries.

Revenue includes revenue relating to other periods of EUR 260 k (prior year: EUR 326 k) that
results from relicensing for the fiscal year 2021.

2. Other operating income

Otheroperatingincome includesincomerelating to other periods fromthe reversal of provisions
of EUR 391 k (prior year: EUR 190 k).

In addition, other operating income includes income from the research and development grant
for the fiscal year 2022 of EUR 65 k (prioryear: EUR 720 k), income from cross-charged salary and
other costs of EUR 209 k (prior year: EUR 92 k), insurance refunds of EUR 11 k (prior year:
EUR 12 k), rental income from subletting of EUR 7 k (prior year: EUR 7 k), marketing and sales
subsidies from partner companies of EUR 60 k (prior year: EUR 77 k) and exchange gains of EUR
95 k (prioryear: EUR 191 k). All of the exchange gains have been realized (prior year: EUR 171 k).

3. Personnel expenses
in EUR k 2022 2021
Salaries 32,299 33,640
Social security, pension and other benefit costs 5,578 5,763
Total 37,877 39,403

Social security contributions include pension costs of EUR 2,805 k (prior year: EUR 2,701 k).

m 144



As inthe prior year, personnel expenses do not include any expenses relating to other periods.

In the fiscal year 2022, CENIT AG no longer needed to make use of short-time work. In the prior
year, personnel expenses of EUR 886 k were compensated for usingthis measure. As part of the
short-time work scheme, CENIT was refunded social security contributions of EUR 285 k in the
fiscal year2021. The short-time work payments of EUR 358 k in 2021 were paid tothe employees
without affecting income.

4, Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses essentially relate to premises expenses of EUR 1,962 k (prior year:
EUR 2,018 k), vehicle costs of EUR 1,407 k (prioryear: EUR 1,408 k), travel expenses of EUR 479 k
(prioryear: EUR 219 k), marketing costs of EUR 843 k (prioryear: EUR 680 k) and exchange losses
of EUR 153 k (prioryear: EUR 125 k). Of the exchange losses, EUR 153 k (prioryear: EUR 125 k) has
already been realized.

Travel and marketing costs rose again year on year, as there were no longer any COVID-related
travel restrictions or restrictions on events.

5. Financial and interest result

The financial and interest result breaks down as follows:

in EUR k 2022 2021

Income from equity investments

Dividend CENIT (Schweiz) AG, Switzerland 1,550 0
Profit distribution CENIT SRL, Romania 266 276
Profit distribution ISR, Braunschweig 1,560 0
Total 3,376 276
in EUR k 2022 2021

Other interest and similar income

Interest on loans granted to subsidiary 51 84
Total 51 84
in EUR k 2022 2021

Write-downs of financial assets

Impairmentloss onthe carryingamount of the equity
investmentin CENIT Japan

Total 0 345

0 345
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in EUR k

Interest and similar expenses

Guarantee commission

Interest expenses from short-term loans

Interest expenses from unwinding the discount on provisions

Total

6. Income taxes

in EUR k

Current corporate income tax expense
Current capital gains tax expense
Current solidarity surcharge expense
Current trade tax expense
Withholding tax

Taxes in prior years

Total

Taxes mainly include corporate income tax, capital gains tax and the solidarity surcharge of
EUR 485 k (prioryear: EUR 505 k) as well as trade tax of EUR 496 k (prioryear: EUR 515 k) on the

taxable income for the fiscal year 2022.

7. Proposal for the appropriation of profit

The following appropriation of retained earnings will be proposed at the General Meeting of

Shareholders:

in EUR k

Net retained profit

Dividend distribution (EUR 0.50 per 8,367,758 participating
no-par value shares)

Profit carryforward

8. Auditor’s fees

The information on auditors’fees pursuantto Sec. 285 No. 17 HGB is provided in the consolidated

financial statements of CENIT AG.

2022

235

248

2022
70
390
25
496
4
37

1,022

2021

15

2021
479

26

515

7
0

1,027

31 Dec. 2022

8,915
4,184

4,731
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D Other notes

1. Personnel

An average of 387 (prior year: 398) members of staff and 52 (prior year: 52) executives were
employed during the fiscal year. There are also 28 employees in training at CENIT AG as of the
balance sheet date (prior year: 32).

2. Contingent liabilities

There are no contingent liabilities as defined in Sec. 251 HGB.

3. Other financial obligations

There are other financial obligations in connection with rental agreements and leases. The
resulting financial obligations are included in the following table:

in EUR k 2022 2021

Rental and lease obligations

Due in less than 1year 2,294 2,371
Duein 1to 5years 3,733 5,069
Due in more than 5 years 0 1,034
Total 6,027 8,474

Other financial obligations chiefly comprise the rent agreements entered into for leased office
buildings of EUR 4,865 k (prioryear: EUR 7,092 k) as well as vehicle leases of EUR 623 k (prioryear:
EUR 903 k). The extension options and price adjustment clauses customary forthe industry apply.

The company cars and communications equipment were leased by means of lease agreements in
orderto guarantee that these are always up to date and to avoid tying up liquidity. Renting office
space also avoids tying up cash and cash equivalents. Theseagreements resultin cash outflows in
future periods that are included in the above list.

4. Corporate boards

During the fiscal year, the following persons were members of the Management Board:

e Peter Schneck, Stuttgart, member of the Management Board of CENIT AG since 18
October 2021 and spokesperson forthe Management Board of CENIT AG from 1 January
2022, Responsible for: operations, investor relations and marketing.

e Dr. rer. pol. Dipl.-Kfm. Markus A. Wesel, Hohenschéftlarn, member of the Management
Board of CENIT AG until 15 October 2022. Responsible for: finance, organization and
personnel.

o Axelle Mazé, Garche, France, member of the Management Board of CENIT AG since
17 October 2022. Responsible for: finance, organization and personnel.
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The following members make up the Supervisory Board:

e Rainer-Christian Koppitz (CEO), Munich, chair since 20 May 2021

e Prof. Dr. rer. pol. Isabell M. Welpe (university professor), Munich, deputy chair since 20
May 2021

e Dipl.-Ing. Ricardo Malta (Service Manager CENIT Aktiengesellschaft, Stuttgart), Munich,
employee representative since 18 May 2018

Mr. Rainer-ChristianKoppitzis CEO of the KATEK SE Group, a member of the supervisory board of
i-pointing Ltd. and chair of the supervisory board of NFON AG.

Prof.Dr. rer. pol. Isabell M. Welpe isa member of the supervisory board of Deloitte Deutschland
GmbH Wirtschaftspriifungsgesellschaftand a member of the supervisory board of CANCOM SE.

All other members of the Supervisory Board did not belong to any other supervisory boards or
control bodies during the reporting year.

Disclosures on the remuneration of the Management Board and the Supervisory Board of CENIT
AG are presented individually in the remuneration report.

The remuneration system for the Management Board of CENIT AG comprises a performance-
based componentand acomponentthatisindependent of performance. The performance-based
part is based on the Group’s earnings for the year (EBIT) in accordance with IFRS. Total
remuneration of the active members of the Management Board amounts to EUR 788 k in the
reportingyear (prior year: EUR 912 k). Of this figure, EUR 497 k (prioryear: EUR 653 k) relatesto
fixed components while EUR 291 k (prior year: EUR 259 k) relates to performance-based
components. Total remuneration of former Management Board members in accordance with Sec.
314 (1) No. 6a HGB amounts to EUR 812 k in the reporting period (prior year: EUR 297 k) plus
EUR 190 k due to the contract ending (prior year: EUR 0 k).

Pursuant to the articles of incorporation and bylaws, the Supervisory Board receives fixed
compensation. Each member of the Supervisory Board receives a fixed amount of EUR 20,000
payable after the end of the fiscal year. The chair of the Supervisory Board receives twice that
amount, while the deputy chair receives one and a half times that amount. In accordance with
Article 14 of the articles of incorporation and bylaws, total compensation paid to the Supervisory
Board was EUR 90 k in 2022 (prior year: EUR 90 k).

The D&O insurance was continued in 2022 for Management Board members and Supervisory
Board members as well as other executives. The premiums of EUR 99k (prioryear: EUR 99 k) were
borne by the Company.

The Management Board held 14,000 shares as of the balance sheetdate (0.17%). The Supervisory
Board members held 13,100 shares.
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4. Changes at shareholder level

During the fiscal year 2011, several notices pursuant to Sec. 21 (1) WpHG
[“Wertpapierhandelsgesetz”: German Securities Trading Act] were received from LBBW Asset
ManagementInvestmentgesellschaft mbH. The last notice was dated 15 November2011and was
as follows: Pursuant to Sec. 21 (1) WpHG, we informyou that the share of voting rights of LBBW
Asset Management Investmentgesellschaft mbH in CENIT AG, Industriestralle, 70565 Stuttgart,
Germany, across all of our investment funds fellbelowthe threshold of 5% on 11 November 2011
and, at 385,421 shares, amountedto4.61% on that date in relation to the total amount of voting
rights (8,367,758). Of these voting rights, 3.67% (307,421 voting rights) are attributed to us
pursuantto Sec.22 (1) Sentence 1 No.6 WpHG. Votingrights are allocated to us by the following
shareholders, whose voting rights in CENIT AG amount to 3% or more: Baden-Wiirttembergische
Versorgungsanstalt fiir Arzte, Zahnarzte und Tierdrzte.

In a letterdated 29 October 2015, MainFirst SICAV, Senningerberg, Luxembourg, announced that
its share of voting rights in CENIT AG, Stuttgart, Germany, exceeded the threshold of 5%: MainFirst
SICAV, Senningerberg, Luxembourg, informed us on 29 October 2015 pursuant to Sec. 21 (1)
WpHG that its share of votingrightsin CENIT AG, Stuttgart, Germany, exceeded the threshold of
5% of voting rights on 28 October 2015 and amounted to 5.05% on that date (corresponding to
422,792 voting rights).

During the fiscal year 2020, several notices pursuant to Sec. 40 (1) WpHG were received from
Allianz Global Investors GmbH. The last notice was dated 25 November 2020 and was as follows:
Allianz Global Investors GmbH, Frankfurt am Main, Germany, informed us pursuant to Sec. 40 (1)
WpHG that its share of votingrightsin CENIT AG, Stuttgart, Germany, fell below the threshold of
3% of voting rights on 24 November 2020 and amounted to 2.97% on that date (correspondingto
248,286 voting rights).

Duringthe fiscal year 2021, several notices pursuant to Sec. 40(1) WpHG were received from LOYS
InvestmentS.A., with the last notice dated 22 June 2021 and reading as follows: LOYS Investment
S.A., Munsbach, Luxembourg, informed us pursuant to Sec. 40 (1) WpHG that its share of voting
rightsin CENITAG, Stuttgart, Germany, fell below the threshold of 3% of voting rights on 17 June
2021 and amounted to 1.10% on that date (corresponding to 92,064 voting rights).

During the fiscal year 2021, several notices pursuant to Sec. 40 (1) WpHG were received from
PRIMEPULSE SE. The last notice is dated 11 August 2021 and is as follows: PRIMEPULSE SE, Munich,
Germany, informed us pursuant to Sec. 40 (1) WpHG that its share of voting rights in CENIT AG,
Stuttgart, Germany, exceeded the threshold of 20% on 10 August 2021 and amounted to 25.01%
on that date (corresponding to 2,092,950 voting rights).

During the fiscal year 2022, several notices pursuant to Sec. 40 (1) WpHG were received from
Allianz Global Investors GmbH. The last notice was dated 25 May 2022 and was as follows: Allianz
Global Investors GmbH, Frankfurtam Main, Germany, informed us pursuantto Sec. 40 (1) WpHG
that its share of voting rights in CENIT AG, Stuttgart, Germany, fell below the threshold of 3% of
voting rights on 24 May 2022 and amounted to 2.87% on that date (corresponding to 240,000
voting rights).

Inaletter dated 5 August 2022, Otus Capital Management Ltd., London, UK, informedus pursuant
to Sec. 40 (1) WpHG thatits share of votingrightsin CENIT AG, Stuttgart, Germany, exceeded the
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threshold of 3% on 3 August 2022 and amounted to 3.20% on that date (corresponding to 267,929
voting rights).

E Group relationships

In compliance with Sec. 315e (1) HGB, the Company prepares consolidated financial statements
for the largest and smallest group of companies in accordance with International Finandcial
Reporting Standards (IFRS).

The consolidated financial statements of CENIT AG are published in the Federal Gazette.

F Subsequent events

mip Management Informationspartner GmbH with its registered officesin Munich became part of
the CENIT Group with an acquisition date as of 31 January 2023. The purchase price includes a
fixed amount of EUR 3,273 k and a variable earn-out agreement. The software and consulting
company mip GmbH is a specialistinthe GSA region for data management and analysis, software
development and the operation of IT infrastructure and applications. The 100% takeover of the
roughly 30 employees of mip, a strong and agile data management expert with annual sales of
almost EUR 5 million, is a logical and carefully planned milestone in CENIT’s growth strategy.

With the signing of the contract on March 29, 2023, CENIT AG sold 100% of the shares in its
subsidiary CENIT Japan K.K. The Japanese subsidiary of CENIT will then become part of Argo
GraphicsInc. (Tokyo) as of June 01, 2023, which will act as masterresellerforthe CENIT software
FASTUITE E2 inthe future and thus strengthen CENIT's presence on the Japaneserobotics market.
The purchase price is calculatedon the acquisition date and is based on an enterprise value of EUR
1,000 k.

G Declaration pursuant to Sec. 161 AktG on the German Corporate Governance
Code

The Management Board and Supervisory Board of the Company have issued the declaration for
2022 required by Sec.161 AktG and made it available on the Company’s homepage
(http://www.cenit.com/en_EN/investors/corporate-governance.html).

Stuttgart, 31 March 2023
CENIT Aktiengesellschaft

The Management Board

A ylag

Peter Schneck Axelle Mazé
Spokesperson, Management Board Member, Management Board
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CENIT Aktiengesellschaft, Stuttgart
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIXED ASSETS

Acquisition and production cost

in EUR As of Additi d,Addltllor;S/ Reclassificat Di | As of
n 1Jan. 2022 rtons Isposals trom ion Isposals 31 Dec. 2022
merger
. Intangible assets
Purchased franchises, industrial
and similar rights and assets 4,665,950.05 52,967.97 0.00 0.00  1,797,990.46 2,910,927.56
and licensesinsuchrights and
assets
Total 4,665,950.05 52,967.97 0.00 0.00 1,797,990.46 2,910,927.56
Il. Property, plantand equipment
1. Land andbuildings, including 1,687,909.77 8,713.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,696,622.77
buildings onthird-party land
2. Plantand machinery 4,990,004.55 243,224.60 0.00 0.00 3,690.78 5,229,538.37
3. Otherequipment, furniture
. 302,454.77 104,927.58 0.00 0.00 52,031.67 355,350.68
and fixtures
Total 6,980,369.09 356,865.18 0.00 0.00 55,722.45 7,281,511.82
. Finandal assets
1. Sharesinaffiliates 9,747,983.06  29,899,169.37 0.00 0.00 0.00  39,647,152.43
2. Equityinvestments 2,802,757.89 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,802,757.89
3. Prepayments on financial 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
assets
4. Loansto affiliates 1,330,000.00 600,000.00 0.00 0.00  1,501,000.00 429,000.00
Total 13,880,740.95 30,499,169.37 0.00 0.00 1,501,000.00  42,878,910.32
Fixed assets 25,517,060.09  30,909,002.52 0.00 0.00 3,354,712.91  53,071,349.70

- total -
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Accumulated amortization, depreciation and write-downs Net book values

As of Additions Additions from Disposals As of As of As of
1Jan. 2022 merger P 31 Dec. 2022 31 Dec. 2022 31 Dec. 2021

4,103,132.61

4,103,132.61

1,287,052.15

4,548,369.80
278,131.76

6,113,553.71

642,335.68
0.00
0.00

0.00
642,335.68

10,859,022.00

279,965.98

279,965.98

23,611.40

357,445.95
60,254.79

441,312.14

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

721,278.12

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00

1,797,837.46

1,797,837.46

0.00

2,002.00
52,026.06

54,028.06

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

1,851,865.52

2,595,261.25

2,595,261.25

1,310,663.55

4,903,813.75
286,360.49

6,500,837.79

642,335.68
0.00
0.00

0.00
642,335.68

9,728,434.60

325,666.43

325,666.43

385,959.22

325,724.62
68,990.19

780,674.03

39,004,816.75
2,802,757.89

0.00

429,000.00
42,236,574.64

43,342,915.10

552,817.44

552,817.44

400,857.62

441,634.75
24,323.01

866,815.38

9,105,647.38
2,802,757.89

0.00

1,330,000.00
13,238,405.27

14,658,038.09
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CENIT AG, Stuttgart

Independent auditor’s report on the annual financial statements
and the combined management report as of 31 December 2022

List of exhibits

Exhibit 1 Balance sheetas of 31 December 2022

Exhibit 2 Income statement for the fiscal year 2022

Exhibit 3 Notes to the financial statements for the fiscal year 2022

Exhibit 4 Combined (group) management report for the fiscal year 2022

Exhibit 5 “General Engagement Terms for Wirtschaftspriifer and Wirtschaftspriifungsgesellschaften [German

Public Auditors and Public Audit Firms]” dated 1January 2017
Independent auditor’s report
To CENIT AG, Stuttgart
Report on the audit of the annual financial statements and of the combined management report
Opinions

We have audited the annual financial statements of CENIT AG, Stuttgart, which comprise the balance sheet as at
31 December 2022, the income statement forthe fiscal year from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022 and the notes
to the financial statements, including the recognition and measurement policies presented therein. In addition, we have
audited the combined management report of CENIT AG, Stuttgart, for the fiscal year from 1 January 2022 to 31
December2022. In accordance withthe German legal requirements, we have notauditedthe content of the sections
1.7 b) “Personnel policy”, “Remuneration system — profit sharing”, 6.1 “Key characteristics of the internal control and
risk management system”, 6.8 “Statement on the appropriateness and effectiveness of the internal control and risk
management system” in the combined management report or the corporate governance statement prescribed by
Sec.289f HGB and/or Sec. 315d HGB orthe non-financial group statement prescribed by Sec. 315b HGB, referred to in

the combined managementreport.
In our opinion, on the basis of the knowledge obtained in the audit,

e the accompanying annual financial statements comply, in all material respects, with the requirements of German
commercial law applicable to business corporationsand give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities and finandal
position of the Companyas at31 December 2022 and ofits financial performance for the fiscal year from 1 January
2022 to 31 December 2022 in compliance with German legally required accounting principles, and

e the accompanying combined management report as a whole provides an appropriate view of the Company's
position. In all material respects, this combined management report is consistent with the annual finandal
statements, complies with German legal requirements and appropriately presents the opportunities and risks of
future development. Our opinion on the combined management report does not cover the aforementioned
components of the combined managementreport for which we have not audited the content.

Pursuantto Sec.322 (3) Sentence 1 HGB, we declare that ouraudit has notled to any reservations relating to the legal
compliance of the annual financial statements and of the combined management report.

Basis for the opinions

We conducted our audit of the annual financial statements and of the combined management report in accordance
with Sec.317 HGB and the EU Audit Regulation (No 537/2014, referred to subsequently as “EU Audit Regulation”) and
in compliance with German Generally Accepted Standards for Financial Statement Audits promulgated by the Institut
der Wirtschaftspriifer [Institute of Public Auditors in Germany] (IDW). Our responsibilities under those re quirements
and principles are further described in the “Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the annual financial statements
and of the combined management report” section of our auditor’s report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the requirements of European law and German commercial and professional law, and we hawe fulfilled
ourother German professionalresponsibilitiesinaccordance with these requirements. In addition, inaccordance with
Art. 10 (2) f) of the EU Audit Regulation, we declare that we have not provided non-audit services prohibited under Art.
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5 (1) of the EU AuditRegulation. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtainedis suffident and appropriate to
provide a basis forouropinions ontheannual financial statements and on the combined managementreport.

Other matter

The annual financialstatements and combined management report of CENIT AG forthe previous fiscal year ending on
31 December 2021 was audited by a different auditor, which issued unmodified audit opinions on these annual finandial
statements and this combined managementreport on 31 March 2022.

Key audit matters in the audit of the annual financial statements

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
annual financial statements for the fiscal year from 1January 2022 to 31 December 2022. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the annual financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon; we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have presented the keyaudit matters from our perspective below. We have structured our presentation of the key
audit matters as follows:

@ Risk forthe financial statements
@ Auditapproach
@ Related disclosures

Revenue recognition
@ Risk forthe financial statements
The Companyreports revenue of EUR 95.1 million for the fiscal year from 1January 2022 to 31 December 2022.

CENIT AG primarily generates revenue from the licensing of software (proprietary software and third-party s oftware),
software updates, the provision of IT services as well as the provision of consulting services for the planning,
implementation and optimization of business and IT processes.

Due to the large number of product types and the complexity of the revenue streams, there is a risk for the annual
financial statements that revenue is recognized without having provided the actual service. There is also a risk that
revenueis notrecognized inthe correct period. As a result, this matter was a keyaudit matter as part of our audit.

@ Auditapproach

To audit revenue recognition, we assessed the design, implementation and effectiveness of the internal controls in
terms of revenue recording and cut-off based onourunderstanding ofthe process. We also considered the IT systems
environment relevant for financial reporting purposes in this context.

We assessedthe recognition ofrevenue forall main product types, i.e. from licensing of software (proprietary s oftware
and third-party software), software updates, the provision of IT services as wellas the provision of consulting s enices
by comparing the invoices with the corresponding orders, contracts and acceptance records. We used revenue in the
fiscal year 2022 as a base, which was selected using an actuarial method.

We assessed the timing of revenue recognition for revenue from licensing of software, the provision of IT seniices as
well as the provision of consulting services by comparing the invoices with the corresponding orders, contracts and
acceptance records. We used revenue in December 2022 as a base, which was selected consciously.

To substantiate the existence ofthe revenue as of the balance sheet date, we obtained invoice confirmations selected
using anactuarial method forthe trade receivables not yet settled as of the balance sheet date. For outstanding replies
from the invoice confirmation work, we carried out alternative audit procedures by reconciling reve nue among other
things withthe underlying orders, contracts, i nvoices, delivery notes and acceptance records and/or proof of hours as
well as the payments received.
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® Related disclosures

Forthe recognitionand measurement policies used, we referto section B of the notes to the finandal statements and
to Il.1 regarding the breakdown of revenue.

Accounting for options in connection with the acquisition of ISR AG
@ Risk forthe financial statements

On 31 May 2022, CENIT AG acquired 74.9% of the shares in ISR AG, Braunschweig, as well as further options regarding
the additional purchase of the remaining 25.1% of the shares.

The rights from the long calloption are reported under otherassets at EUR 3.2 million, while the obligations from the
short put option are recognized under other liabilities at EUR 2.5 million.

The long call option and the short put option were assessed by an external expert and valued using an option pricing
model.

The recognition and measurement of both options is complexand is based onassumptions by the Management Board
thatare subject to judgment. The significant assumptions relate to the enterprise planningand margin development of
the acquired company, the capital costs and the volatility of the input parameters.

There is a riskfor the annualfinancial statements that the shares in affiliatesand the options are incorrectly re cognized
and measured. In view of these facts and due to the significance of the acquisition of ISR AG for the presentation of the
assets and liabilities in the annual financial statements of CENIT AG, this matter was a keyaudit matteras part of our
audit.

@ Auditapproach

We first gained an understanding of the purchase transaction by asking questions of employees in the finance
department and by inspecting and assessing the relevant contracts. We analyzed the individual contract components
that have an effect on the annual financial statements and assessed the accuracy of the accounting.

We assessed the competency, abilityand objectivity of the independent expert engaged by CENIT AG.

We involved our internal valuation specialist to assess, among other things, the appropriateness of the significant
assumptions and of the measurement methods. Ourinternal valuation s pecialist compared the assumptions and data
underlying the capital costs with their own assumptions and with publicly accessible data.

We also evaluated the documentation prepared by the executive directors and/or the experts used. We checked
whether the measurement methods used corresponded to the measurement principles. We discussed the expected
sales and margin development with the persons responsible for the planning.

To assess clerical accuracy, we checked the calculations or did our own calculations. Last but not least, we assessed
whether the disclosures in the notes were complete and accurate.

® Related disclosures

Forthe recognitionand measurement policies used, we referto section B of the notes to the finandal statements and
to 1.2 for the explanation of financial assets and to 1.4 and 1.9 for the explanation of the options.

Recoverability of the shares in affiliates
@ Risk forthe financial statements

The Companyreports shares in affiliatesof EUR39.0 millionin the annual financial statements as of 31 December 2022.
This represents a share of 51.7% of total assets.

As of the balance sheet date, CENIT AG determined the recoverability of the shares by means of internal business
valuations. The fairvalue ofthe shares was determined as the present value of future cash flows using the discounted
cash flow method, based on enterprise planning pre pared by the Management Board and approved by the Supenisory
Board.The planning covers a period of oneyearand is thenrolled forward using medium-term assumptions over the
next four years and long-term growth rates (terminal value). Expectations around future market developments were
also included. Cash flows were discounted using the weighted average cost of capital. Based on the Company's
calculations and the further documentation, there was no need for the Company to record any write-downs for the
fiscal year 2022.
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The findings from this assessment are highlydependent on the estimate of future cash flows and of the growth rates
by the Management Board and on the discount rate used. They are thus subject to considerable estimation
uncertainties. Consequently, there is a riskthat the shares in affiliates are notrecoverable atthe amount reported. In
view of these facts and due to the significance of the measurement ofthe sharesforthe presentation of the assets and
liabilitiesand financial performance inthe annual finandal statements of CENIT AG, this matter was a key a udit matter
as part of ouraudit.

@ Auditapproach

To audit the fairvalues of the shares in affiliates, we assessed the design of the internal controls based on our
understanding of the process.

We assessedthe competency, ability and objectivity of the independent expert engaged by the executive directors.

To assess the qualityandreliability of the enterprise planning, we compared the planning forthe priorfiscal year with
the actual results and analyzed anyvariances (planningreliability) in caseswhere the prior-year planning was available.
We discussed the assumptions and premises underlying the planning with those responsible and tested these for
plausibility. To do this, we reconciled the assumptions made with the macroeconomic and sector-specific market
expectations, amongotherthings. We alsoexamined whether future net cash flows were derived a ppropriately from
the assumptions and premises.

We involved our internal valuation specialist to verify the valuation methods used. In the knowledge that even small
changes in the discount rate used can have material effects on the amount of the business value calculated, we
examinedthe parameters usedto determine the discount rate in each case, includingthe weighted cost of capital, and
checked whether these were within the customary marketrange.

We checkedwhetherthe future cash flows underlying the valuations and taken together withthe cost of capital used
provide an appropriate basis forvaluation overall.

We checked the clerical accuracy of the calculation method used to determine the business values.
® Related disclosures

Forthe recognitionand measurement policies used, we referto section B of the notes to the finandal statements and
to 1.2 regarding the breakdown of financial assets.

Other information

The executive directors and/orthe SupervisoryBoard are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises:

e the corporate governancestatement prescribed by Sec. 289f HGB and/or Sec. 315d HGB referred to in the combined
management report,

e the separate non-finandal statement prescribed by Sec. 315b HGB referred to in the combined management report,
which is expected to be provided to us after the date of this auditor’s report,

e the sections 1.7 b) “Personnel policy”, “Remuneration system — profit sharing”, 6.1 “Key characteristics of the
internal control and risk management system”, 6.8 “Statement on the appropriateness and effectiveness of the
internal control and risk management system” in the combined managementreport,

e the assurances by the executive directors prescribed by Sec. 297 (2) Sentence 4 HGB and Sec. 315 (1) Sentence 5
HGB on the consolidated financial statements and the combined managementreport,

e the report of the Supervisory Board and
e the other parts of the ‘annual report’,

e butnotthe annualfinancial statements, the combined management reportdisclosures for which we have audited
the content or our corresponding auditor’s report.

The SupervisoryBoard is responsible for the re port of the Supervisory Board. The declaration pursuant to Sec. 161 AktG
on the German Corporate Governance Code, which is part of the corporate governance statement, is the responsibility
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of the executive directors and of the Supervisory Board. Otherwise the executive directors are responsible for other
information.

Our opinions on the annual finandal statements and on the combined management report do not cover other
information, and consequently we do not express an opinion orany other form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit, our responsibility is to read the aforementioned other information and, in so doing, to
consider whether the otherinformation

e is materially inconsistent with the annual financial statements, the combined management re port disclosures for
which we have audited the content or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or

e otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If we conclude, based onthe workcarried out by us on the otherinformation obtained before the date of thisauditor's
report, thatthis otherinformationis materially misstated, we are obliged to report this fact. We do not have anything
to reportin this regard.

Responsibilities of the executive directors and the Supervisory Board for the annual financial statements and the
combined management report

The executive directors are responsible for the preparation of the annual finandal statements that comply, in all
material respects, withthe requirements of German commercial law a pplicable to businesscorporations, and that the
annual financial statements give a true and fair view ofthe assets, liabilities, financial position and financial performance
of the Companyincompliance with Germanlegallyrequired accountingprinciples. In addition, the executive directors
are responsible for such internal controls as they, in accordance with German legally required accounting principles,
have determined necessary to enable the preparation of annual financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraudulent acts (i.e. manipulation of the financial reporting and misappropriation of
assets) orerror.

In preparing the annual financial statements, the executive directors are responsible for assessingthe Companys ability
to continue as a goingconcern. Theyalso have the responsibility for disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern. In addition, they are responsible for financial reporting based on the going concern basis of accounting,
provided no actual orlegal circumstances conflict therewith.

Furthermore, the executive directors are responsible for the preparation ofthe combined management report that, as
a whole, provides an appropriate view of the Company’s position and is, in all material respects, consistent with the
annual finandal statements, complies with German legal requirements and appropriately presents the opportunities
and risks of future development. In addition, the executive directors are responsible for such arrangements and
measures (systems) as they have considered necessary to enable the preparation of a combined management report
thatis inaccordance with the applicable German legal requirements, andto be able to provide sufficient a ppropriate
evidence for the assertions in the combined managementreport.

The Supervisory Board is responsible for overseeing the Company’s finandal reporting process for the preparation of
the annual financial statements and of the combined management report.

Auditor’s responsibility for the audit of the annual financial statements and of the combined management report

Our objectives are to obtainreasonable assurance about whetherthe annual finandal statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraudulent acts orerror, and whether the combined management report
as a whole provides anappropriate view of the Company’s position and, inallmaterial respects, is consistent with the
annual finandal statements and the knowledge obtained in the audit, complies with the German legal re quirements
and appropriately presents the opportunities and risks of future development, as well as to issue an auditor’s report
thatincludes our opinions on the annual financial statements and on the combined management report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
Sec.317 HGB andthe EU Audit Regulation andin compliance with German Generally Acce pted Standards for Financial
Statement Audits promulgated by the Institut der Wirtschaftsprifer (IDW) will always detect a material misstatement.
Misstatements canarise from fraudulentacts orerrorandare considered material if, individuallyorin the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these annual
financial statements and this combined management report.
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We exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the annual financial statements and of the combined
managementreport, whetherdue to fraudulentacts orerror, design and performaudit procedures responsive to
thoserisks, and obtain audit evidence thatis sufficientand appropriate to provide a basis for our opinions. The risk
of notdetectinga material misstatement resulting from fraudulent acts is higher thanfor one resulting from error,
as fraudulent acts may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit of the annual financial statements and of
arrangements and measures (systems)relevant to the audit of the combined management reportin order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s systems.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting polides used by the executive directors and the reasonableness of
estimates made by the executive directors and related disclosures.

e Concludeontheappropriateness of the executive directors’ use of the goingconcern basis of accountingand, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
signifiant doubt onthe Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in the auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the annual finandal
statements and in the combined management report or, ifsuch disdosuresare inadequate, to modify our respective
opinions. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Companyto cease to be able to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the annual financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the annual financial statements present the underlying transactions and events in a
mannerthatthe annual financial statements give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and
financial performance of the Companyin compliance with German legally required accounting principles.

e Evaluatetheconsistencyof the combined management report with the annual finandal statements, its conformity
with German law, and the view of the Company’s position it provides.

e Perform audit procedures on the prospective information presented by the executive directors in the combined
management report. On the basis of sufficient appropriate audit evidence we evaluate, in particular, the significant
assumptions used by the executive directors as a basis for the prospective information, and evaluate the proper
derivation of the prospective information from these assumptions. We do not express a separate opinion on the
prospective information and onthe assumptions usedas a basis. There is a substantial unavoidable risk that future
events will differ materially from the prospective information.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, amongother things, the planned scope and timing of
the auditand significant audit findings, includinganysignificant deficiencies ininternal control that we identify during
ouraudit.

We provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with the relevantindependence
requirements and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on ourindependence and, where applicable, the related actions or safeguards taken to eliminate risks to independence.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the annual financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unlesslaw or regulation predudes public disclosure about the matter.

Other legal and regulatory requirements

Assurance report in accordance with Sec. 317 (3a) HGB of the electronic rendering of the annual financial statements
and the combined management report prepared for disclosure purposes

Opinion

We have performed an assurance engagement in accordance with Sec. 317 (3a) HGB to obtain reasonable assurance
aboutwhetherthe rendering of the annual financial statements and the combined management re port (hereinafter the
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“ESEF  documents”) contained in the file ,391200KYFPOLFJNEWL98-JA-2022-12-31-de.zip“(SHA256:
302bbd5e4316dc664e818ae8fcaa5al19657f8d4c35020919138003838ce 8050c) and prepared for disclosure purposes
compliesin all material respects withthe requirements of Sec. 328 (1) HGB for the electronic reporting format (“ESEF
format”).Inaccordance with German legal re quirements, this assurance engagement extends only to the conwversion of
the information contained in the annual finandal statements and the combined management report into the ESEF
formatandtherefore relates neither to the information contained within these renderings nor to any other information
contained in the above-mentioned file.

In ouropinion, the reproduction of the annual financial statements and the combined management report contained
in the above-mentioned file and prepared for publication purposes complies in all material respects with the
requirements of Sec. 328 (1) HGBfor the electronic re portingformat. We do not expressany opinion on the information
containedinthisrenderingnoron anyotherinformation containedinthe above-mentioned file beyond this reasonable
assurance conclusion and our audit opinion on the accompanying annual finandal statements and the accompanying
combined managementreportforthe fiscalyearfrom 1January 2022 to 31 December 2022 containedinthe “Report
on the audit of the annual financial statements and of the combined management report” above.

Basis for the opinion

We conducted our assessment of the rendering of the annual financial statements and the combined management
reportcontainedinthe above-mentioned fileinaccordance with Sec.317 (3a) HGB andthe IDW Assurance Standard:
Assurance in accordance with Sec. 317 (3a) HGB onthe Electronic Rendering of Financial Statements and Management
Reports Prepared for Disclosure Purposes (IDW AsS410 (06.2022)). Our res ponsibility is described in more detailin the
section “Responsibility ofthe auditor for the audit ofthe ESEF documents”. Our audit firm hasapplied the IDW Standard
on Quality Management 1: Requirements for Quality Managementin Audit Firms (IDW QMS 1 (09.2022)).

Responsibilities of the executive directors and the Supervisory Board for the ESEF documents

The executive directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the ESEF documents including the
electronicrendering of the annual financialstatements and the combined management reportinaccordance with Sec.
328 (1) Sentence 4 No. 1 HGB.

In addition, the executive directors ofthe Companyare responsible for the internal controls they consider necessary to
enablethe preparation of ESEF documents that are free from material non-compliance with the requirements of Sec.
328 (1) HGB for the electronic reporting format, whether due to fraudulent acts or error.

The Supervisory Board isresponsible for overseeing the process of preparing the ESEF documents as part of the finandial
reporting process.

Responsibility of the auditor for the audit of the ESEF documents

Our objective is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the ESEF documents are free from material non-
compliance with the requirements of Sec.328 (1) HGB, whether due to fraudulent acts or error. We exerdse
professional judgmentand maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also

e |dentifyandassessthe risks of material non-compliance with the requirements ofSec. 328 (1) HGB, whether due to
fraudulentacts orerror, designand performassurance procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain assurance
evidence thatis sufficientand appropriate to provide a basis forourassurance conclusion.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the assessment of the ESEF documents in order to design
assurance procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose ofexpressing a condusion
on the effectiveness of these controls.

e Evaluatethe technicalvalidity of the ESEF documents, i.e. whether the electronic file containing the ESEF documents
meets the requirements of Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2019/815, in the version valid as ofthe balance
sheet date, on the technical specification for this electronicfile.

e Evaluate whetherthe ESEF documents enable an XHTML renderingwith content equivalent to the audited annual
financial statements and the audited combined managementreport.

Further information pursuant to Art. 10 of the EU audit regulation

We were elected as auditor by the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on 20 May 2022. We were engaged by the
SupervisoryBoard on24 May2022. We have been the auditor of CENIT AG, Stuttgart, since the fiscal year 2022.
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We declare that the opinions expressed in this auditor’s report are consistent with the additional report to the
Supervisory Board pursuant to Art. 11 of the EU Audit Regulation (long-form audit report).

Other matter — use of the auditor’s report

Our auditor’s report must always be read together with the audited annual financial statements and the audited
combined managementreportas well asthe assured ESEF documents. The annualfinancialstatements and combined
management report converted to the ESEF format — including the versions to be published in the company register —
are merely electronic renderings of the audited annual financial statements and the combined audited management
reportanddo nottake theirplace. Inparticularthe ESEFreportand ourassurance opinion contained thereinare to be
used solely together with the assured ESEF documents made available in electronic form.

German Public Auditor responsible for the engagement
The German Public Auditor responsible for the engagementis Simon Harms.
Frankfurt am Main, 31 March 2023

GrantThornton AG
Wirts chaftspriifungsgesellschaft

Prof. Dr. Thomas Senger Simon Harms
Wirtschaftspriifer Wirtschaftsprifer
(German Public Auditor) (German Public Auditor)

160



Responsibility Statement in the Annual Financial Report

(Financial Report)

After considering comments received, the German Accounting Standards Board (GASB) agreed at
its 114th meeting on the following wording of the responsibility statement required by section
37y no. 1 of the Wertpapierhandelsgesetz (WpHG—German Securities Trading Act) in conjunction
with sections 297(2) sentence 2and 315(1) sentence 6 of the Handelsgesetzbuch (HGB— German
Commercial Code) for the financial statements:

“To the best of our knowledge, and in accordance with the applicable reporting principles, the
financial statements give atrue and fairview of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit
or loss of the corporation, and the managementreportincludes afairreview of the development
and performance of the business and the position of the corporation, together with a description
of the principal opportunities and risks associated with the expected development of the
corporation.”

The Management Board

e g

Peter Schneck Axelle Mazé
Spokesman, Management Board Member, Management Board
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CENIT AG
Industriestrasse 52-54
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